AGENDA
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
6:00 p.m. Monday, July 21, 2025

The Greene County Commission will meet at the Greene County Courthouse on
Monday, July 21, 2025, beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor)

Call to Order

*Invocation — Commissioner Chase Murray
*Pledge to Flag — Commissioner Kathy Crawford

Proclamations
* A Proclamation for the Greeneville Rescue Squad 75" Anniversary- Previously Presented June 14, 2025

* A Proclamation for Kenneth Robert Carpenter Retirement- Previously Presented June 26, 2025
* A Proclamation for the 75" Anniversary of the Clyde Austin 4-H Center- Previously Presented July 2025
* A Proclamation for Greene County Fair Week- July 21-26, 2025, 75" Anniversary
¢ A Proclamation for International Overdose Awareness Day, August 31, 2024
i:or the Greater Good

Public Hearing

* Related to Resolution A- Consideration of A Resolution To Rezone Certain Territory Owned By Raguel
Ingram From R-2 Medium Density Residential District to B-2 General Business District, Within The
Unincorporated Territory Of Greene County, Tennessee

Approval of Prior Minutes

Reports
e Greene County Veterans Report
e Greene County Board of Education Financial Report
* Greene County Solid Waste Department Report
* Greene County Committee Minutes

Election of Notaries
Old Business
Resolutions

A. Consideration of A Resolution To Rezone Certain Territory Owned By Raguel Ingram From R-2 Medium
Density Residential District to B-2 General Business District, Within The Unincorporated Territory Of Greene
County, Tennessee

B. Consideration of A Resolution Authorizing The Appropriation of $112,641 In Opioid Settlement Funds
Restricted For The Use As Set Forth By The Opioid Abatement Council For The FYE June 30,2026

C. Consideration of A Resolution To Authorize Supplemental Funding To The Greene County Partnership
From Fund #189 For Up To $100,000 To Prevent The Loss of ARP Funding For FYE June 30, 2026

D. Consideration of A Resolution To Adopt Regulations Related To The Sale Of All Parcels Purchased By The
County At A Delinquent Tax Sale Pursuant To T.C.A.67-5-2501 (Exhibit A)

E. Consideration of A Resolution To Amend the Greene County Zoning Resolution Concerning Campgrounds
And Related Uses within The Unincorporated Territory of Greene County, Tennessee

Other Business

Adjournment

Closing Prayer — Commissioner Jason Cobble



Greene County Commission Agenda, continued July 21, 2025

**THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE MONDAY, AUGUST 18, 2025, AT GREENE COUNTY
COURTHOUSE **

**THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT COMMISSION MEETING IS
THURSDAY, AUGUST 7, 2025, AT 12:00 P.M. **

Page 2



Greene County Commission Committee Meetings

fime ™ T Comm
|

July Calendar

| Meeting Location

July 21, Monday | 6:00 PM | County Commission

Greene County Courthouse

July 23, Wednesday 8:30 AM | Insurance Committee ' Annex
July 29, Tuesday 8:30 AM | Zoning Appeals | Annex
August Calendar Time : Committee Name | Meeting Location
‘ August 4, Monday | 3:30 PM ' Education Committee | Central School Office
' August 6, Wednesday 8:30 AM T Budget & Finance I Annex
i' Date To Be Determined 3:00 PM ' Courthouse Renovation Greene County Courthouse
' August 12, Tuesday 8:30 AM Range Committee | Range
August 12, Tuesday | 1:00 PM Planning Committee ' Annex
August 12, Tuesday | 3:30 PM 911 Board CAmnex
August 14, Thursday I 3:00 PM EMS Board Annex
‘ August 18, Monday | 6:00 PM County Commission Greene County Courthouse
| August 19, Tuesday 6:00 PM | Agriculture Committee ' UT Extension Office
I Date To Be Determined = 3:00 PM Courthouse Renovation  Greene County Courthouse
August 26, Thursday | 8:30AM | Zoning Appeals " Annex
' August 27, Wednesday = 8:30 AM . Insurance Meeting Annex
September Calendar ‘ Time Committee Name Meeting Location
i September 1, Monday ‘ | Labor Day Holiday Greene County Courthouse and Annex
1 September 3, Wednesday i 8:30 AM ‘ Budget & Finance Annex
' Daté To Be Determined ' 3:00 PM J‘ Courthouse Renovation Greene County Courthouse
' September 9, Tuesday ' 1:00 PM ‘ Planning Committee ~ Annex
September 9, Tuesday | 3:30 PM Annex

September 15, Monday

' 6:00 PM | County Commission

‘ 911 Board

Floor
Date To Be Determined 3:00 PM | Courthouse Renovation | Greene County Courthouse
| September 24, Wednesday 8:30 AM | Insurance Committee Annex
' September 30, Tuesday ' 8:30AM | Zoning Appeals | Annex

This calendar subject to change- The Courthouse Renovation Meetings will resume once the core

samples are returned.

| Greene County Administration Center -15t



County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, Greeneville Emergency & Rescue Squad, Inc. has faithfully served the
citizens of Greene County, Tennessee, for 75 years with unwavering dedication,
professionalism, and a commitment to saving lives; and

WHEREAS, since its founding in 1949, the Squad, which is an all-volunteer organization,
has provided critical emergency assistance in rural Greene County which spans over 622
square miles. Initially focused on basic rescue operations, including vehicle extrication
and disaster relief, the squad has grown into a vital component of the county’s emergency
response system, responding to calls 24/7 for services like swift water rescue, search and
rescue, and medical standby; and

WHEREAS, the members of Greeneville Emergency & Rescue Squad, Inc., both past
and present, have demonstrated outstanding service, sacrificing time and effort to ensure
the safety and well-being of all residents through countless acts of heroism, selflessness,
and service, the squad has exemplified the highest standards of emergency care and
community support; and

WHEREAS, this milestone marks a legacy of public service and resilience, as the Squad
continues to evolve to meet modern challenges while remaining rooted in its core mission
of emergency response and lifesaving efforts; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Greene County, Tennessee, proudly recognize and express
their deep appreciation for the vital role Greeneville Emergency & Rescue Squad, Inc.
has played in protecting lives for three-quarters of a century;

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee, do
hereby recognize the

teville Emergerncy L Rescue S
ergerncy
7% Unriversavy

throughout Greene County, and | call upon all citizens and urge all residents to join in

celebrating this remarkable anniversary and honoring those who serve and have served
in this distinguished organization.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have
hereunto set my hand and caused the
official seal of Greene County,
Tennessee, to be affixed this fourteenth
day of June 2025.

Greene County Mayor

2 U)ewme, 2325

Date

L




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, Kenneth Robert Carpenter stands as a paragon of service, having devoted more
than half a century to safeguarding the citizens of Greene County through his work with the
Greene County Sheriffs Office and currently in his esteemed role as Chancery Court Bailiff,
where he upheld the dignity, order, and security of our judicial system; and

WHEREAS, through his calm presence, unwavering professionalism, and deep respect for the
law, Mr. Carpenter has earned the admiration and respect of colleagues, judges, court staff, and
the citizens of Greene County, serving not only as a guardian of the courtroom but as a quiet
pillar of strength and civility; and

WHEREAS, Kenneth Robert Carpenter answered the call to service with unwavering
dedication-—first as a member of the Michigan National Guard (1955-1957), then as a proud
member of the United States Air Force (1958-1963), where he served with distinction and
received an honorable discharge; and

WHEREAS, he extended that same spirit of service to our community—serving as a TSSAA
Sports Official for an extraordinary 61 years, contributing his time and talents as a member of
the Jaycees and the Moose Lodge, and devoting eight years to public leadership as a Greene
County Commissioner; and

WHEREAS, he has drawn strength from his deep faith as a devoted member of Reformation
Lutheran Church, and from the enduring love of his wife of 64 years, Judith Borders Carpenter,
with whom he has shared a life rich in meaning, raising two children, Lisa and Brent, and
delighting in the lives of his three grandchildren; and

WHEREAS, his decades of service have left an indelible mark on our Sheriff's Department and
our community at large, inspiring generations with his humble leadership, resolute work ethic,
and a commitment to service above self; and

WHEREAS, as he concludes a remarkable chapter defined by courage, discipline, and quiet
heroism, we take this opportunity to honor a legacy built not merely on years, but on the
immeasurable impact of a life devoted to others built on courage, compassion, and dedication
that will continue to inspire those who follow in his footsteps;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it proclaimed that we, with deepest respect and profound gratitude, we
recognize and celebrate

Ferneth Rabient Cavpenter

for a lifetime of dedicated service to the people of Greene County. On the momentous occasion
of his retirement, Thursday, June 26, 2025, we commend his many years of loyal, principled,
and selfless commitment—marked always by an unwavering devotion to the greater good. As
he enters this new chapter, we extend our warmest wishes for a retirement filled with peace,
fulfillment, and the joy of a legacy well earned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal of
Greene County, Tennessee, to be affixed
this twenty-sixth day of June 2025.

/Nvaa M}WMN

Greene County Mayor

2 U)wme, 2325

Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, the Clyde Austin 4-H Center in Greeneville, Tennessee, stands as a beacon of
education, service, and youth development, rooted in a rich history of community resilience and
commitment that began humbly in 1935; and

WHEREAS, in its earliest days, approximately 65 children camped at the UT Research and
Education Center—then known as the Tobacco Experiment Station—sleeping in barns and
contributing produce and poultry to support their stay, embodying the self-sufficiency that defines
the 4-H tradition; and

WHEREAS, in 1947, the vision and generosity of Mr. Clyde Austin led to the donation of 23.5
acres of land for the establishment of a permanent camp. By 1948, buildings from Camp Forrest,
a former World War Il military base, had been repurposed into dormitories, a recreation hall, and
a swimming pool was added, creating a lasting home for Greene County's 4-H youth; and

WHEREAS, decades of dedicated leadership—particularly by individuals like Jess Francis—
transformed the center through renovation and growth, culminating in a major expansion from
1979 to 1982 with the construction of new facilities, including a kitchen, dining hall, additional
dormitories, and a 200,000-gallon pool; and

WHEREAS, in 2001, the legacy was deepened through the generosity of Tom Austin, son of
Clyde Austin, who further enriched the camp’s mission by donating 4.6 acres for the development
of a wetland and environmental study area, leading to the creation of "Camp Explore," an
innovative environmental education program that embodies the 4-H commitment to stewardship
of the natural world; and

WHEREAS, today the Clyde Austin 4-H Center is a fully accredited, modern facility and one of
three such centers operated by the University of Tennessee Extension. It continues to shape the
lives of thousands of young people, grounded in the 4-H pledge to clearer thinking, greater loyalty,
larger service, and better living; NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, on behalf of the
citizens of Greene County, do hereby recognize and celebrate the

Clyde Unstin #-F Cernler 75 Unrivers avy

and encourage all citizens to honor its remarkable legacy, support its continued mission, and help
foster even greater opportunities for our youth to learn, grow, and lead.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal of
Greene County, Tennessee, to be affixed
this twenty-fitth day of June 2025.

Greene County Mayor

25 Quwne, 2o2S

7 Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, the Greene County Fair has grown from humble beginnings into one of the most beloved
county events. There has been a fair in some form in ‘Greene County since 1870 when the Farmers
and Mechanics Association held its first exposition. The present Greene County Fair Association was
incorporated in 1949, drawing thousands of visitors annually to celebrate the traditions, talents, and
triumphs of our people; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Fair has for seventy-five years stood as a proud symbol of Greene

County's agricultural roots, community spirit, and commitment to youth development and civic pride;
and

WHEREAS, the Fair has weathered wars, storms, economic shifts, and even global challenges,
emerging each year with renewed energy thanks to the tireless efforts of volunteers, board members,
civic leaders, and local businesses who believe in its mission and magic; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Fair is recognized statewide as one of the best of its size. In 2023 the
Fair was recognized as the Champion Fair in the AAA Fair Division. Our 2024 Fair was named
Champion of Champions by the Tennessee Association of Fairs, the highest honor they bestow; and

WHEREAS, the Fair has long served as a showcase for the best of Greene County—where 4-H and
FFA youth display their hard-earned skills, where local growers and artisans present the fruits of their
labor, where aspiring artist talents are showcased, where the values of hard work, creativity, and
community pride are on full display; and

WHEREAS, the Fairgrounds have become a treasured gathering place where families and friends
reunite, children experience the magic of the midway, and generations pass down stories, skills, and
values that define our shared heritage; and

WHEREAS, the 75th Anniversary of the Greene County Fair is a momentous occasion to honor the
countless volunteers, board members, sponsors, and fairgoers whose dedication and passion have
sustained this cherished tradition through the decades; and

WHEREAS, this milestone year invites us to reflect on the past, celebrate the present, and look ahead
to a future filled with continued community pride, agricultural excellence, and joyful memories;

Now, Therefore, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Greene County Mayor, on behalf of the citizens of Greene
County, Tennessee, do hereby proclaim July 21-26, 2025, as

Greerce Courty Faiv Weelt
75 Unrversavy Celelvaltion

in Greene County and encourage all residents and visitors to join in commemorating the 75th
Anniversary of the Greene County Fair—an enduring celebration of who we are, where we come from,
and the bright future we share.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set
my hand and caused the official seal of Greene
County, Tennessee, to be affixed this twenty-
first day of July 2025.

Y /7 Greene County Mayor

2 Voly 2025
74 DateO




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable County Mayor

WHEREAS, International Overdose Awareness Day, observed annually on August 31st,
serves as a global moment of reflection and action—raising awareness of drug
overdoses, breaking the stigma surrounding substance use disorders, and honoring the
memory of those lost or injured due to overdose; and

WHEREAS, this is just one opportunity to remember community residents, friends, and
family that have been lost to overdose death and to promote strategies that can prevent
future loss. It is also an opportunity to recommit ourselves to work together in building a
safe, healthy, and resilient community while lowering barriers to effective treatment and
support, so that we can save more lives; and

WHEREAS, Greene County stands united in acknowledging the devastating impact of
overdose on our community, recognizing the profound loss and suffering it brings; and

WHEREAS, Greene County renews our commitment to taking bold action with the
establishment and support of the Greene County Drug Court, the Greene County
Anti-Drug Coalition, along with a myriad of other prevention programs in our schools and
community to curtail this devastating epidemic; and

WHEREAS, Greene County is committed to playing our part in reducing the toll of
overdose in our community, which continues to claim the lives of family, friends, and

community members every year and forever affects those who love and care about them:
and

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, Tennessee, do
hereby prociaim August 31, 2025, as

International Crerdase Uwareness Day

in Greene County, and | call upon ali citizens to deepen their understanding of addiction,
advocate for prevention, and support those battling substance use disorder. Together, we
must remain steadfast in our commitment to building a healthier, safer, and more
compassionate community.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have
hereunto set my hand and caused the
official seal of Greene County,
Tennessee, to be affixed this twenty-first
day of July 2025.

Greene County Mayor




STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF GREENE

GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
JUNE 16, 2025
6:00 P.M.

The Greene County Legislative Body was in regular session on June 16, 2025 at
6:00 p.m. at the Greene County Courthouse in the Criminal Courtroom (Top Floor).

Mayor Morrison called the meeting to order to transact business that has lawfully come
before the Honorable Body. Commissioners Nick Gunter gave the Invocation. Commissioner
Lisa Anderson led the Pledge to the Flag.

Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson,

and Waddle were present. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. There were 19 —

present and 2 — absent.



PROCLAMATIONS

A PROCLAMATION FOR C.A.R.E. ORGANIZATION DAY
PREVIOUSLY PRESENTED ON MAY 27, 2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison announced that the Proclamation for C.A.R.E.
Organization Day was previously presented on May 27, 2025.

Mayor Morrison read Proclamation stating on behalf of all citizens of Greene County,
Tennessee, do hereby recognized and extend our deepest gratitude to C.A.R.E. for their
extraordinary service, unwavering dedication, and profound impact on the lives of those
affected by Hurricane Helene, In honor of their commitment to uplifting and restoring our
community, I do hereby declare May 27, as C.A.R.E. Organization Day in Greene County,
Tennessee. I encourage all citizens to support and show appreciation to these extraordinary
faithfulness missionaries whose kindness and service continue to make a lasting difference.
These hard-working, neighbors made a conscientious effort to show the love of Christ through
their helping hands and spirit of service, and we are forever grateful.

A PROCLAMATION HONORING FAYE COLYER’S 104™ BIRTHDAY
PREVIOUSLY PRESENTED JUNE 6, 2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison announced that the Proclamation for
Faye Marie Colyer was previously presented June 6, 2025.

Mayor Morrison read Proclamation stating on behalf of all citizens of Greene County,
Tennessee, do hereby proclaim that in honor of her extraordinary life, immersurable
contributions, and a remarkable 104 years, today we celebrate Faye Marie Colyer recognizing
her as a pillar of faith, family, and community. We wish her all the best, and continued health

and happiness in the years to come.



A PROCLAMATION FOR KOREAN WAR VETERAN’S DAY
JULY 27,2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison read Proclamation stating I do hereby proclaim
July 27, 2025, as Korean War Veterans Day in Greene County, Tennessee, and encourage all
citizens to join me in this worthy observance. The bravery and heroism shown during the
Korean War have left an enduring legacy and we stand in awe of the unwavering commitment
and express our deepest respect and gratitude for all that served.

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation to Larry Henderson, Vietnam Veteran and
member of the Andrew Johnson Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 1990, on behalf of the Korean

War Veterans Day July 27, 2025.

A PROCLAMATION FOR TENNESSEE BEEF MONTH
JULY 2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison read Proclamation stating I do hereby proclaim
July 2025 as Tennessee Beef Month in Greene County, Tennessee, and I encourage all
citizens to support and appreciate the contributions of our hard-working farmers and their
families that supply the beef industry with the highest quality products available. We should
also pay tribute to their conscientious care for their cattle, and for the environment, all while
sustaining and maintaining our very vital food supply.

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation to Christian Dalton, UT Extension Director,

on behalf of the Tennessee Beef Month in July 2025.



A JOINT PROCLAMATION FOR GIFTS FOR KIDS CHRISTMAS IN JULY
MONTH OF JULY 2025

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison announced on behalf of C. Cal Doty, Mayor
of the Town of Greeneville, and myself, do hereby proclaim the month of July 2025 as
Gifts for Kids Christmas in July Month. We encourage our fellow citizens, businesses,
churches, and community organizations to participate in the various activities that are planned.

Mayor Morrison presented the Proclamation to Jancie Painter, Director of Gifts for
Kids. Jancie Painter spoke to the Commission in regards to Gifts for Kids and explained how
the program had impacted the kids and their families during the month of July with Christmas In
July event. She stated that anyone who can volunteer or can give a donation would be
appreciated. Mrs.Painter stated that Christmas in July Fundraiser for Gifts for Kids would be
held at Towne Square Shopping Center, Summer Street, Greeneville, TN. on July 11, 2025
from 3:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. This event will be a Friday Night Cruise-In featuring the Volunteer
State Auto Club and the sponsors will be City Garage Car Museum. She stated that food trucks

and vendors would be at the event.



FOR THE GREATER GOOD

Mayor Morrison announced that each Commissioner had been given a Letter in
regard to the Proposed Amendment to Greene County Zoning Resolution — Campgrounds
and Related Uses.

An attached copy of a resolution proposing amendments to the Greene County Zoning
Resolution regarding campgrounds and related uses in the unincorporated areas of Greene
County, Tennessee. This resolution was reviewed and unanimously approved by the Greene
County Regional Planning Committee on June 10, 2025.

The resolution is scheduled for presentation at the next Greene Count Commission
Meeting on July 21, 2025. This document is being provided to allow for a full and complete

review prior to that meeting.



APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Gunter and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve the prior minutes.

Mayor Morrison called for the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton,
Smithson, and Waddle voted yes. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote
was 19 —aye; 0 — nay; and 2 — absent. Mayor Morrison announced the prior minutes were

approved.



REPORTS
GREENE COUNTY AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
GREENE COUNTY VETERANS REPORT
GREENE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCIAL REPORT
GREENE COUNTY SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT REPORT
GREENE COUNTY COMMITTEE MINUTES.

A motion was made by Commissioner Parton and seconded by Commissioner
Clemmer to approve the Greene County Audit Committee Report, Greene County Veterans
Report, Greene County Board of Education Financial Report, Greene County Solid Waste
Department Report, and Greene County Committee Minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen,
Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted yes. Commissioner Murray and White were absent.

The vote was 19 — aye; 0 —nay; and 2 — absent. The motion to approve the Reports and

Committee Minutes passed.



ELECTION OF NOTARIES

Mayor Motrison read the names requesting to be notaries to be approved by the
Commission. A motion was made by Commissioner Smithson and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve the notary list.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. The following
vote was taken: Commissioner Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter,
Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton,
Smithson, and Waddle voted yes. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote
was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and 2 — absent. Commissioners voted in favor of the motion to approve

the notaries passed.



RESOLUTION A: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE
GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET FOR CHANGES IN REVENUES &
EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
(THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND)

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to approve the Consideration of a Resolution To Amend The Greene County Schools
Budget For Changes In Revenues & Expenditures For The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 (The General
Purpose School Fund).

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted yes.

Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and 2 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION B: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTON TO AMEND THE
GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET FOR CHANGES IN REVENUES &
EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

(THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND)

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Lawing to approve the consideration of A Resolution To Amend The Greene County Schools
Budget For Changes In Revenues & Expenditures For The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 (The General
Purpose School Fund).

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted yes.

Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay and 2 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION C: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTOIN OF THE
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATING A TOTAL
OF $13,676 TO THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Parton to approve the Consideration of A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body
To The Sheriff’s Department For The Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted yes.

Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and 2 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION D: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO AMEND
THE 2024-2025 BUDGET TO INCREASE APPROPRIATIONS IN
MULTIPLE FUNDS FOR TEMPORARY PERSONNEL COSTS ASSOCIATED
WITH THE YOUTH EMPLOYEMENT PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY
THE FIRST TENNESSEE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR THE
FYE JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Peters to approve the Consideration of A Resolution To Amend The 2024-2025 Budget
To Increase Appropriations In Multiple Funds For Temporary Personnel Costs Associated
with The Youth Employment Program Administered By The First Tennessee Development
District For The FYE June 30, 2025.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissions to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle

voted yes. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 2 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION E: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING
FUNDS FROM THE OPIOID ABATEMENT COUNCIL TO THE GREENE COUNTY
ANTI-DRUG COALITION, RECOVERY COURT, AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
ASSISTED DIVERSION (LEAD) PROGRAM FOR AMOUNTS RECEIVED DURING
THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioner Bible and seconded by Commissioner Crawford
to approve the Consideration Of A Resolution Appropriating Funds From The Opioid Abatement
Council To The Greene County Anti-Drug Coalition, Recovery Court, And Law Enforcement
Assisted Diversion (LEAD) PROGRAM For Amounts Received During The FYE June 30,
2025.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted

yes. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION F: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND
AMENDING THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025, BUDGET FOR FUND #116 — SOLID WASTE
(EXHIBIT A)

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Shelton to approve the Consideration Of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative
Body Appropriating Funds And Amending The FYE June 30, 2025, Budget For Fund #116
Solid Waste (Exhibit A).

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted

yes. Commissioner Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION G: CONSIDERATON OF A RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN FACILITIES AND PROPERTIES ON HAL HENARD ROAD
(ATTACHMENT A)
(ATTACHMENT B)
A motion was made by Commissioner Shelton and seconded by Commissioner
Crawford to approve the Consideration of A Resolution To Transfer Ownership Interests
In Facilities And Properties On Hal Henard Road (Attachment A) (Attachment B).

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted

yes. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTON H: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE PURCHASING
AGREEMENT FOR THE USE AND BENEFIT OF GREENE COUNTY AND
ALL OF ITS INDIVIDUAL COUNTY DEPARTMENTS

A motion was made by Commissioner Shelton and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve the Consideration Of A Resolution To Authorize The County Mayor
To Enter Into A Cooperative Purchasing Agreement For The Use And Benefit of Greene
County And All Of Its Individual County Departments.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle

voted yes. Commissioner Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 2 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTON I: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO ACCEPT A DONATION OF

REAL PROPERTY FROM THE GREENE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve the Consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene Legislative Body
To Accept A Donation Of Real Property From The Greene County Board of Education.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioner to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle

voted yes. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay;

and 2 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION J: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY FIXING THE TAX LEVY IN
GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING
JULY 1, 2025

A motion was made by Commissioner Peters and seconded by Commissioner
Bible to approve the Consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body
Fixing The Tax Levy In Greene County, Tennessee for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2025.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson and Waddle voted

yes. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION K: CONSIDERATON OF A RESOLUTION MAKING
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE VARIOUS FUNDS, DEPARTMENTS,
INSTITUTIONS, OFFICES AND AGENCIES OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE,
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2025, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2026

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner Peters
to approve the Consideration of A Resolution Making Appropriatings for the Various Funds,
Departments, Institutions, Offices And Agencies Of Greene County, Tennessee, For The Fiscal
Year Beginning July 1, 2025, and Ending June 30, 2026.

Greene County Budget Director Danny Lowey stated there were two adjustments from
the workshop that were made; one was a Salary Correction in one of the departments and the
other was an adjustment that was made for 3 million dollars in and out for grants in which he
said he was optimistic of getting some assistance from the State. He said there was a
$6.00 adjustment in one of the department’s budget that would be made.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted yes.

Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and 2 — absent.

The motion was made to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION L: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTON MAKING
APPROPRIATIONS TO NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS OF GREEN
COUNTY, TENNESSEE FOR THE YEAR BEGINNING
JULY 1, 2025 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2026
A motion was made by Commissioner Bible and seconded by Commissiner Peters
to approve the Consideration of A Resolution Making Appropriations To Nonprofit
Organizations Of Greene County, Tennessee For The Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2025,
And Ending June 30, 2025.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter,
Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted yes.

Commissioner Arrowood voted no. Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote

was 18 —aye; 1 —nay; and 2 absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Anderson to adjourn the meeting,

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote on their keypads. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Parton, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, and Waddle voted yes.
Commissioners Murray and White were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and 2 — absent.

The motion to adjourn the Commission Meeting passed.

Closing Prayer — Commissioner Brad Peters
NEXT GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING INFORMATION

**THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE
MONDAY, JULY 21, 2025**

**THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OR RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT
COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE
THURSDAY, JULY 10, 2025, AT 12:00 P.M.**

**THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED ON
THURSDAY, JUNE 19, 2025, FOR THE JUNETEENTH HOLIDAY **

**THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED ON
FRIDAY, JULY 4, 2025, FOR THE JULY 4™ HOLIDAY**

**THE GREENE COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE WILL BE CLOSED ON
SATURDAY, JULY 5, 2025, FOR THE JULY 4™ HOLIDAY**



STATE OF TENNESSEE
GREENE COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE
101 LONGVIEW DRIVE
GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
(423) 798-1707

July 10, 2025

Monthly report for June 2025

Electronic claims submitted: 173
Mailed claims, documents, etc.: 82
Telephone calls: 273
Walk-ins: 74
Appointments: 77
Referrals to other agencies: 51
Veteran’s Organization’s Meetings
1. Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 1990
American Legion Post 64
Disabled American Veterans Chapter 42
Elbert Kinser Detachment Marine Corp League
Veteran’s meeting held monthly at Farmer’s Daughter

B e

Sincerely,

R CTR

Sonja Forbes
Director/VSO



GZ0Z IsL€ Aep
JJoday |eloueul
s|jooyos Ajunon susaln)



000 Spung SN0 o4 3NG - - -00§TZ-1b1
00'0 pawY = - -TGEIT-TbT
000 'Sdd = - -S8€1Z-Tb1
000 Ayunuvy Jijea - - -bBETZ-Tb1
000 oeyy - - -ISETZ-THI
000 suofanpag uolun ypasd - - -DBETT-THT
12 Angesiq axgesn - - -QLETZ-TLT
000 Meunsny. - - -99€1Z-1pY
000 JuN02y sbues Yijean = - -S9ETZ-ThI
sy SSOUI] 1€20Ur) JNqEsq s - HIETZ-THL
000 WOT/IN 3iqesn - - -T9EVT-THL
08°9% 3)(7 oA 3iqensn = - -ISETZ-IbT
00°0 SN PUY STURIYSIUIRY = - -0SE1ZT-TkY
000 USWPGOM WIPOW = - ~(SETT-THD
000 3)n S;EUIeY 53SSIUUSL = - -GSE1Z-THI
000 123U=) F(qes) = - -ESEIZ-THT
000 SU] 3 uuR 3JeI0H = - -TSETT-TPT
oT'6E |eyuaq sayauaqduwin) = = -1SE1ZT-TH1
[1Yas swaug dwa) - - -0SE1Z-THT
000 Aem panun - ~BbEIZ-THT
000 SUJ [eaH 03sua) < - -BYETZ-THT
£0°EE WIPOIY 3jqesn = - -9PETT-THT
00°0 J5V.1 - Buipuads xai - eeq Pafes s m -SPELZ-THT
000 SU 5191pea) Jeuonen <= WETZ-TRT
000 sur Ajaply ueduawy - - -EVEIZ-IBT
DTLE 3)r1 awgesn - - <THETT-THT
oo SUL 13UE3) 03 19 - -TPETZ-THT
000 19I5 PUGAH WBWNTY - - TEETT-TIPT
000 IM 1D X1 0p = - -TEETT-IT
00°0 SUORNQUILOD JUBLLIBUESY = - -DEETZ-TbT
000 uaganpaq 3eDIpaiY 3vAoiduiy - - -STETT-IHT
0070 xel AJundas |enos - -0ZETT-TYT
600 predun puy Py XeL Swodu] - - -0TETT-THT
(19°8£0'012) qeAed SuNoy -~ -001TZ-IbT
BO°E60°BZY'9ST SITUN0SIY JO SMOPING PRI pue DaNsy  |j0)
BO'E60'STH'9ST ISSY 1301
ST'(8E'166 Ju3 SIA 10ud 104 3ARSIY 0L PEUD dxg - = -009%T-THT
Ob'6ES'ELY'PS (jonu0D) 188 JWALINS - SAUNGIPUHX] = = -00SHT-T41
GT'9LB'280°T (ronuod) seaue.qundul paiepibiun - = -00ZbI1-THI
S£'89¢'089'69 SINUBARY pajewnsy - = -00T4T-THE
{00°8p1°591) Xe| Auadold iqeidsiodur 4o SoueMOlY <= -OISTI-T4T
00 ¥BLLET'L SMqeasoRy saxel Apadold =+ -00ST1-IpT
ST'682'288 SWBWURBAOY S3YI0 WOI4 3ng =+ -0ERTI-THT
(0z'0} 31GRAIRIY KUNCIY < e OTHIT-THT
9L'79'822'1C 3ANSTUL YUM USED s -OPTTI-IET
¢B'100°9 jueg uy ysed == -OETTI-TbT
dueeg vopdinsag Junoxoy APquINN JUNCOYY
jooips asodung jesauan TPT : pung
ZJo 1 abeg SZ07 Aew pung gns g pungy
Wd €0:1 S20Z/21/9 aunlfaeq pung-qns pue pung Aq 153YS aoueirg AQ 199ys @dueey :Aq pajeasd
piapes) ARy RsA vonednp3 4o pieog AJUNo) SUISD Pauyaa D97 iwen Nejdwsy



(ooyds Isoding [RiBuat

00'0 T s|na) puny
(20°£60°82¥°9ST) Rjeg pung pue ‘saa Jo P ] ‘SeTUpqer) |e30)
(s2's80°TIE YY) sapinb3 o)
(00°000'002) ZbT oL ueo - paubisseun - THI- -0006E-THT
05'661°9£2°E paubisseun 135png = - -D006E-1HT
(er9c2’eB8T'eT) paubrsseun = = -DOOGE-THT
(st 1£2'191) weiboid (00425 PIPLAINKI ~ S35 ISUJ-UON JO UOnesadQ Jog paubissy o dSF -DLLPE-TPT
(15°v+9'68%) SAYUSIU] JSWANTY - UOREINP JoZ PIubIssY - Bl SSLPE-THT
(09°969°Z€) ss300ng 0) 53bpug - uonEINp3 104 paubissy - 0TT- -SSLbE-T4T
(£z'596°28) uoeINp3 Jo4 paubissy - - SSLPE-THT
(1+'22£0'9) 19ppET JSDIRD - UORINISU] Jad PIPLESSY - YD -09SPE-THT
(8T'EPSEFT'T) 197 SO - SeURIGUINILT = - OZIE-TYI
(oT°9bR'£80°Z} B3 JUBLNY - SBOURIGWINIUT = - OTHE-THT
(ze Lo0’c3T2VT) saRHIgeN 1oL
(5z'682'288) SMRATY JGEIRARUN/P3LRR] 5410 - < -0666Z-TbT
(oo'6E0°1ZT) saxe) Auadold Jusnbuisq PaiLa)sg - - SH66EZ-THT
(00'E82'SE6'9) saxe] Apadotd WaLnd pausa = ObR6Z-11T
(s5'zv2'es) (jonuad) spund JaLIO WOl SRjsuBlL - = -0IS8T-THT
(¥9°T2E'tSH'09) (1oQuoD) senuanay - -00S8T-T¥T
{sZ'v96'956'2L) {10.nu03) sueneudosddy ~ -0018Z-141
00°0 39ss3auu3Y JO NES Al ang - -0ESTZ-TH1
duejeg uondinsaq Junoidy Jaquiny junoxy
100135 asodund {eBuan EFT: pung
Z Jo 7 abeq 20T ARW puny gns B pungy
Wd £D:1 520Z/21/9 :owilfareq punj-qns pue pung Aq PIYS ureg Aq y334S 9oueieg Aq RSy
piajmes) ejiey uasn uoneanp3 Jo paeog AJuno) U9 paUYa] 291 ewieN ANedusy



TIT 265 682 ToCO BYT ¢V 290 798) SV IO 139 L) OOOOE 222 1 000 OOUOE 2221 SNNIASE 1001 89010 VIDL  O00b%

OSE06 T Tobb €5 000 ASY 18001 9010
(stz81'sL) %bE65 1b'2v6'TSS (€5°£50°208) 00°000'09¢'T 000 00°000°09€°T SYO @ SUCINQLILOD 0LSbb
000 %00°S8 00°Sk (00°552) 00°00€ 000 00°00€ |ENPIAIDUT WOLY PRISACDDY Sabeweq 095bb
00°0 bpng ON (99°999'99) (99'999'99) 000 000 000 Ayadoig Jo 3jes ObShb
{£9°816°075) %EY PEVLT {(15°888°2bS) (15°888'6b5) 00°000°2 00°0 000002 JuawIdIND3 Jo 3jes 0ESH
{99°€8¢'6T) %099'98 £b'6bE'ET {£5°059°1ST) 00°000'S£1 000 00°000°S£T SPUTYDY SNOAUEIADSIN 0LIbY
(egeLT) %I19'06 19°78¢2 (6£'812') 007000t 000 00°000°¢ sjeualely PopAINY JO 3RS SHIby
(05°€76'8) %t 08T (S£°9£1°28) (§£7921°2¢) 00°000°0p 00°0 00°000°0 s|ejuay/asea fird {2
(os'T1T'10T) %5 655 (1Z°261°408) (1Z°£61'6£6) 00°000°SZ1 000 00°000°SZT pauJed 153201 0TTth
T eel tl) Uett 2L ST 0L 22 WL CLEE9L) OO BLS DbL 000 DO BLS OPE __ S3JIABIS LNJBUND 80d SIDUVHD WI0L  DOOER
GO0 %000 000007 000 000001 000 000007 395U Punoibyoeg eIl AL EBSEY
{Sbeez’Ln) %0L"£0T (00°182°pT) {00°50€°£12) 00'+25°202 000 0025202 PIILD-5934 SDIAI9S AJuUnuwio) 185Er
(bE'06Y'S) %I0"Lb $SS6E T (9% ¥09°LE) 00°000°08 000 00°000°08 SI00YS {eNPIAIPUT WOL4 SIAIO5Y 0/sgp
00°0 Y%LE9T 2L’ (8Z'£81'8) 00°000°0§ 000 00°000°0S SW1SAS JAI0 uonepadsuel) TESED
000 %00°0 00°000°T 000 0070001 000 00°000'T saulpely buipusp 08EER
000 Y%l L'E 00°b2L°S (00922} 000009 000 00°000°S Apial] Jo ajes pOTED
TZTeon) 0aB6 LL L CL0 Ov ¥28 1) DO 005 ¢ TG00 DO 00 T S1IWa3d UNY SISNIOIT TWIOL  O00TF
(Zr8at) %86 L ¥5570 (9% 5281 00005 2 000 00005C SSUo0T Sbeiew . DIiih
0L 029 L1017 o6t ODT W0 T2662] _ \OUTZ9°80001) U0 OUZ SEU'ST (] 00'00Z BEUOT SaXVL V001 V101 0000P
000 OG0 FE DE£9¢ T0Z 9ET) 00 00F 000 00'00F XL |830] AICINIES 13010 06E0F
000 %6621 (ze'£58°9) (ze258'62) 00°000°0Z 000 00°000°02 Xe| asix3 yueg 02£0b
(8S°bET) %2961 81610 (z8°086) 00°000°5 000 00'000'S xeJ yuuq Xiy S0
{68°'SST'bS6) %81°101 (18°05£°90T) (18°'0S£'901°6) 000000006 00°0 00'000°000°6 Xe| S3[eS uonaQ Je0T 0120%
000 %06'LT 6€°420°81 (19'526'9) 00'000°S7 000 00°000°SZ 130 S3XRL JO NBIT UI SjuaWARY £9T0b
(19°£50'15} %9T"bST (£0zz8'orl) (£0°Z2800%) 00°000°09C 000 00°000°052 AUBN 307 S8XE JO Nar ul SJUBLIARY z910%
{£8°02€) %EY'8S WoLT (85°625'E) 00°000'9 000 00°000°9 WAL S9x2] jO Nar ut sjudlAed 1910
Pl wat)] %88"086€ (0£°689°2y) (0£°682'€b} 00'00T'T 000 00°00T°T saxe| dn-yPid 05104
(€£°6£92) %L 78 6°0TZ'TT (15°£8£'€5} 00'000°59 000 00°000°S9 Ayjeuad g 1S9usu] 0p10%
(ST'#BO’S) %IE'69 96'9Z£'ET (+0°££9°25) 00°000'9/ 000 00°000°92 M3 IS 0£10%
000 %65'18 78°'9€ (81°€9T) 00°002 000 0000 Ao3dnuyueq uompa([eD) 8a)sNIL SZ10%
000 %T1LE8 1£°22€'62 (69°££9°051) 00°000°081 000 00°000°087 YA J0UI4-SUOND3H 0] S,83)8NIL 0z10t
{09°8/8°€7) %ET' L6 65-°890°2/1 (15°1€6'22C'9) 00°000°00b°9 000 00°000°00b9 Xe{ AMBU0IY JUBLIND o110¢

INUIAIY JuU3LIn) PIZIjEIY pazijeaaup) pazi[e’ay qlA pajewinsy |e30L Sjuswpuawy 353 jeulbip

% |00Y2S 3s0AINg [elauary TPT  :puny

Z 10 T abeg ST0T Aew pund gns Ag

WBLLIESS SNUAY
Wd 25:2T 5202/21/9 PwrLfajeq pUN4-qns Afq SINUIADY JO JUIWIELS 291 Aq pageas)

piomes) ejAey| iesn

uoREINPJ JO PIEOE AJUNOY JUIIID

pauyeq 797 SweN ejdwa)



TFT PUmy o Te0T

TCE059¢66 t) ot B 98 CTFEI P 6 (GL VIO 905 09) GZB9/0B969 2 GLZQO0LIZG  UUUUZGO6ED
000 ToBD 69 SV LGL LT (G5 Cve¢a)  ODO00SZ 000 TO 000 G2 S2JUN0S H9H10 TWI0L 0006V
0oo %9961 PP ZsT 09 [EEFETA 2] 00000762 [v[eXv] 00°000°SZ Siajsuel] bunessdg 0086¢
000 1abpng ON (66'v6b°LE) (66'v6b°LE) 000 00°0 00°0 AISA0IBY IJURINSUT 0046
159TLE L) %P0 08 OL (e vr (GT00L ZZY) — L0 JrCo0PE GO OEG Z8T INJWNIIAOD IVE3UIT IVIOL WO0Zb
[SE65EL) %69 EL SEE9E 'L 00°C00"01
(88°20C°¢) %0 LTT (£S5 €¥5°6) (£5°EH5S59) 0000095 00°0 00°000°95 Jjusluasinquiay 240y 0oL
(2+'008°9) %909 20Ok (8€°569°0L) 00'0€6°9T1 000 00°0£6"97T 31e1S Ybnoayl (esspad BYI0 06SLb
000 %I1Z'L8 00°000°S (91°260'vE) 91'760°6E 91°Z60bE 00°000°S paddedipueH 3y Jo uoijesnp3 134944
TO0BIT I6L) TLET TS ELOECLEeb 6 (DDGBP I0E IF)] GEellZPel1G  650/69495 2 OO SVl L5 oF S3553NNS1 J0 3LV1S V10l 00097
00°0 %000 00°0LTE 00°0 0001t 000 G00L1°E sjuers g5 BYl0 0869
(00'81T°T6T) %66'E6 82012t (00'BTT 161} 8¢'8¢E’E0C 82°82€°€0C 000 eI AUNIBS JooUIS diIgnd 0869¢
000 %00°0 08°'6€L°ETT'S 000 08'6€E'ETT'G 086EE'ETT'S 000 S|SPOI 10CYIS SANEAOUUT 06/9¢
00'0 %ET 06 SEP06°62 (59'560°€s2) 00°000°€0E 000 00°000°£0¢ Spun{ ucgedINpPJ IJEIS PO 0653F
00'0 Y%CE'Es Sg691°'s (S1°0£8'ST) 00°000°1E 000 00°000'1E uonedNPg siaalg 0559
00’0 jabpng oN (65°925°6¢€) (65°925'6€) 000 oo0'0 000 Jappe Jaa4e) 019%¢%
00°0 %E6°EC 65°09b°18T (60'060°£S) 89°055°8€¢ 89°06§5'8E2 00°0 10015314 uoneanp] [epads Aels STS9¢
000 %P5 69 SO'6TE'69 (8£°185'1£0°T) £8'006°0+S°T £8°/6/°12 00°€PT'61S'T N-ald 31es S1SSH
000 Y%Ll 06 0t'681°8H0°Y (09 ebT’cH9'6€) 00°EEP’'169°EY 000 00°EE'TR9'ED Juapms Ul JuaUnsaAU] aassaula) 0159
INUIAIY JULIND pazjeay pazijeasun pozijeay dlA pajewgsy 2ol SjuRwpudwy 153 jewibuQ
% |0OYIS 350ding [RI3USD TpT  :pund
730 Z abed GZ0T Aey pun4 qns Ag
JUSWSIEIS DNUBADY
Wd Z5:21 SZ0Z/21/9 [dunl/aleq punj-qns Ag S3nuaAdy JO JUBLIBINS R3] ‘Aq pajeau)
pioyen) gjAey 2195 uonEdNpPy J0 pieog AJUNO0D U pauLag Do) SWEN 3jejdwd ]



%T18'9L  (E9LSHLET) €9'88€'b€ L'66L'6T9 €€°9£5'501 (00°959'158) (0095915} (00°000'008) WwRwdinbg uomnasul Jenbay  TCL
%i8e  (€6'16L°L8) TL'961'T 9E'6T0¥ST SHIIETT (00°800°€12) 00°000°9% (00°800'652) sabiey) B0 665
%0566  (0Z'01b) 000 0R'685'18 000 (00°001°28) (00°000°9r} {00 001°9¢) sieuaiely puy sanddns ssyio 66
%EZ'TIT  8E'SOL'BIT T0'8p1°2S LELOELST 00'tb6'8E (0o'osz'o61) {00000°017) (00'05£08) aiemyos  TLb
%6ZEPB  EYEVITLE S6'CTII8E B9'9ZS'OF 000 (00°D00'0S) 000 {0o'000°05) punog - Sicoqxal  6b
%00°0 (00°000°S) 000 00°0 00°0 (00°000'S) 000 {00°000°5) Suondsg - syoogqal  OEh
%69 PET  €6'9Eb'6P [fara:T47 3 1THS9°L6 Lb'L00'6 (00"005Zp1) 00°0 (00°005°ZbT) sayddng |euopnisul 67
%596 (00'104°T) 00'$b7'1E 00'v50° v 00°0 (00°000'82) 000 (00°000°82) S3D|AIRS PaRNUO) BYIQ  66E
%eeBs  (124p1°7) 0£'61S 65°26£8°ST b6660'T (00°00S'8T) 00°0 (00°005'81) 1dinb3-s20195 leday puy dUBLARY  9EE
%62°£9T  00'098'2 00'C 000112 00'096 {00°0S2"t) (00°08Z'y) 000 s21U36Y 31eAld YU spequod  ZTE
%8bee  (15°582'9) 00°0 6V HELYD 6T'9EE {00"000'02) 000 (00°000°02) uopezyiqels PUGAH - uawainay  LTZ
%16'vL  (69'2€9'8L) Q00 1€0E8'pE2 L1199 (00°£9b°c1E} 000 (00°e9¥'c1€) auedpaly BAodws  CT¢
%zLss  (9Z'E18°TT) 000 YL 981'b1 00'0 {00°00092) 000 (00°000°92) uonesuadwo) wawAodwaun  0TZ
%e6'st  (€5'5b5'Z2) 00 Lb8PT'61 b9 1106 (00'v69'1Y) 000 (00b69'TH) aoueinsul |euag 807
%08'86  (0T'2Z0¥'EY) 000 06'Z86'195'E LETZETEE (00'SBE’S09°E) 00°0 {00°58€'509°¢) Jouemsu] [eapa 0T
%026 (08'pLb) 000 0Z'S1S'S £9°S8S (00°066'S) ooe (00'066'S) uensur yn - 902
%S2'28  (99°840'892) 00'¢ bE'0SEZHZT 98°8bE'SHT (00'66£'015°T) 00°0 (00°66£'015°1) ewainay ;s 0T
%b6'E.  (61°€8Z'6bE) 000 18'1+0'T66 19°060°211 (o0'sze'ope’T) 000 (00'sze‘0bE'1) Aunoas jepos  10C
%91'ppl  TL°618'T9 000 1£°618°T02 S8'0E'SE (00°000'0%1) (00°000°SE) (00°000°501}) SJaydesf 3ImAsgns payiusn-uoN 86T
%IBECT  6bbL9'ST 000 6b'+29°E6 8b'2L9'ET {00 000"'02) 00'0 (00°000°02) SIaLPe3) 3ImMNSqRs payiua)  S6T
%bR'SE  (6L7SHSHOL) 000 15'S8E'ZVE (¢8'62v'82) {00°1£6'90L) 00'052'y (00 181'154) sabem g s3uejes 2yl0 68T
%0E08  (26°0££°TH2) 000 BO'TTHE86 08°296'851 (00 Zr1'527'1T) 00'000°SE (00°Zp1'092'T) sjuejsissy jeuanesnpy €97
%T6'6R  (05°050'9) 000 05'6v6'€S 0S'ESE°0E (00'000°09) 00°0 (00°000°09) SPRIUT) papudlx] Jappe Jsae) LT
%909 (8£696'1€) 000 22'0£0°81 £E'6£6'T (00°000°0S) 000 (00°000°05) weibold Jappe B3y £TT
%09'b,  (TLBOT'LLE'S) 000 62°092'56£'ST 65°E96'E6L°T (00°696'221°12) 000 (00°696'7£1°12) siayey) 911
aoTTL
ax3 aouejeg sajuelqunaug  saunyjpuddxy  saunypuadxy jobpng SjudwpulwWy junowy }abpng uondias3aq JUNOIIY  JOQWINN JUNOIIY
1¥6png passqumiuaupn  BupuersIng 91eQ-0)-iB2A  3q-03-YIUOW popudwy wbpng
30 %

[ooyds asoding |esduan I¥YT i pung

T o T sbed sz0z Aew
Wd €0:1 520Z/2T/9 WLl /orea pun4 Aq Iqo AQ AJRUNING SIINYPUICXT JO JUIWNES 291 :Aq pajeas)
pIoIMEID BjARY 498N uonedNpy Jo pieog AJUno) suazig pauysq D97 PwieN alejdwa)



00ETL

%05'6L (ZESDL'TSE) ELY0T'6S 6L'8TL'TEY'E 19°22L'vTr {re'szseve'y)  (va'zre'zoz) (00°'€88°6LE'Y) weibosd uogeanpy jepads  00ZTL =0l
%6666  (+8°E) 00°ZL9°ES ¥8'687'LT 000 (89'046'04) (89°06'0) 00°0 uawdinb3 uoesnp3 fepads  SZL
%bE6  (08'bET) 9K'065°C {78741 ¥LVT8 {00°052°€) 000 (00°052'e) sjeLaely puy sauddns B0 661
%98'86  (T4'597) LTYEL'T Z£009'11 £9'¥9L'1 (00°00S"4T) 000 (00'005"%1} sayddns jevornisur - 62k
%0070 (00°00S) 000 000 000 (00°00S) 00°0 (00°005) 1dinb3-s3313S Jeday puy dueuduel  9EE
%00°0 (00°005) 000 000 00°0 (00°00s) 00'0 (00°003) BupsaL puy uoienjeay  ZZE
%6L8L  (€9°¥86'95) 000 £5789'11Z 08'$9b'52 (91°249'892) (91°2£8'T61) (00°000°22) S30uaby 2eaud yym spenuoy  Z1€
%bl'ce  (90°629) 000 ¥6'0LE'L pE'8IR (00°000°8) 00°¢ (00°000'8) UoPEZIIqEIS PUGAH - JuswamEy  LTC
%' 1L (8STTET'ET) 000 ¥ THO'EE 98'9L6'C (00T or) 00'0 (00vET'9Y) asenpap Aoidwy 712
%000 (00°05¢°0) 000 00°C 000 (00°052°7) 000 (00°057'7) uonesuadio) wawhodwaun  0T¢
%81°'8¢  (00'004'E) 000 00°001'Z 00°0S2 (00°005°5) 00'0 (00°005°S) Soueinsul leusg 80T
UZHT0T  ETL8LYL 00'0 £1°490'955 1€£99'7S (00°£92'8pS) 00'0 (00°£97'8%5) 3sueansu] jeopdly  L0T
%¥6'0L  (29'2eE) 00'0 8E°98¢ 8£°Z6 {00'601'T) 00°0 (00°601'7) uemnsur 3y 902
%0099  (85'858'06) 0c'o r'8LE'9LT 0.°€95'1 (00°2€2'¢97) 00°0 (002€2°¢97) wawaiay ;aes  H0T
%8s (1€°Tb'79) 000 69'25Z'sET E0°ETp'91 (00'v69'267) 000 (00'v69°¢61} faundag jepos 10
%ELB0T  ST'BES'E 000 ST'865 0 05'286'9 (00'000°2€) {00°000°0€) (000002} S13Yea] AAMASGNS payieD-uoy  B6T
%EQTCT  TETHT'T 000 11’9 ET'8YL (00°000°S) 000 (00°000'S) SJ3yoeay NSNS pIYI)  S6T
%197 {((8°0€E'86) 000 £T°102°092 S0°205°62 (00-z£0'65E) 00°000°0€ (00'2€0'68¢5) wsibojoped y>aads  TLT
%59°s6  {08'8£8¢LT) 000 07'789°26¢ 90'656'65 (060'125'01V) 000 (00'TZS‘0TY) sjuegsissy [euoneanpl €91
%0825 (STT8Y'6H) 00°0 SCBHORY SZ'981°9 (00 TEL2LTT) 000 (oo TEL'CTT) s19ydea) punogawoy 82T
%0009  (507009'T) 000 $6'66£C 99'99Z (00r000'y) 00°0 (000004} welbaud sappe ivie)  LT1T
%b1's.  (02°80£'S9S) 000 08'6b2'80L'T TTT72'961 (00°850'+£2'7) 000 (00°860'pL2°T) s@wpeal 911
00TTL
%64'6L (L0°0S9°LLv'9)  TL B8PS TTLSB'6L6'YT  BSETE'B6L’T (00-90t‘Z50°2€) (00°000°002) (00°90+°TS8°1E) weiboid uoidngsuT Jenban  0OTTC IwI0L
%woaoor  (09°0) 00°0 Ob'EVE'SE 00°0 (00°tbE'8E) (00'bve'sE) 000 wowdinbz Byo 064
00TTL
ax3 Jduejeq SVURIQUINDUT  SaJNpuddx3  saunjipuadxy y3bpng SjusWpUSWY junowy Jabpny uoRdinsaq UN0JdY  JaqUUNN JUNOJDY

j336png paJsaqunouaup  Sulpuesing 21eQ-0]-JBAA  IJe-03-LRUOK papuswy 1°6png

10 %
Jooyas asoding |LsoUdsy I$T : pung
¥1 jo ¢ 3bed S707 Aew

Wd £0:T 520Z/ZT/9 rawill/a3eq punj Aq [qO Aq Alewins saunypuadxy Jo JUaWNS 291 :Aq payeas)
pJojmes) ejAe) 1980 uoneINnp3 o pieog Ajuno) auzlaln pauyaq D97 :Pwep ajejdway



YBECEET  00°SZ 00°0 00'00€ 00'0 (00's22) 00°0 (00's22) ajuemsuy [euaq  80¢
%9Z'6ET  06'T06Y 00'0 06'98¢'2T ST'ISS'T {00's8y'Z1) 000 (00°S8%'ZT) 3oueinsu] feapa  L0T
%SH'5ZT  09°S 000 09'22 09'c (00'22) 000 (00°22) asueinsur - 902
%EEETT  TE'ES6 000 TE'SCT'8 16’826 {00'251%) 00°0 (00'zs1’e) wPwaINdy NS YT
%66'STT  96'EEL 00'0 96'EZE'S 0€€€9 (00°065°p) 000 (00065 Auroas jepos 102
%819,  (TTEBT'ST) 000 8£°6¥5'8Y ZFb6E'S (00'€€££'€9) 00°0 (00"€EL'E9) sabep 1 SSweleS BUI0 68T
%S1Z0U  00°906 000 00°890°H 09°4S¥'S (00°291°ZH) 000 (00°z91°zH) |puuossed |eduay 291
0TIZL
%06'EE  (9£°¢B2'T69'Y)  EFOTI'EST T8 ELTEPTT €L'OVV'EL {(to'ses‘s60’c)  (10°8zs’v8z’v)  (00°090'S18°T) weibosd uoyedsnpy [euonedoA Q0ETL [BI0L
%09°01T  (8€'¥BL'S65'T) 19'682°S11 PY6LYBEL 00861 (€£6'120°984'T) (e6'1£L'02L°T) (00'05ZP1) juawdinby uopnasug jeuoesop  0EL
%E6'0 (10°006'265°T) 00°0 66'666'p1 00°000°ST (00'006°219°T) (00°€2£'009°T) (oozzt'ey) ssbieyd 20 66S
%8081  (50°826'24S) 90'SL£°06 ¢8°961°/8 00°00+'C {00'005'504) (00°005°289) (00°000'€2} SleuRlew puy s3Nddns U0 661
%00°09T  00°'000'ST 0000042 00°000'P2 0070 {00°000°0€) (00"000°0€) 000 alemyos 1L
%697 (§9°209212) P1'796'SE TTSEP'8T 89'220°C {(00'000°5£7) (00"000'281) (0000088} seyddns jeuordnnsur - 6TH
200’0 {o0°000'1} 000 000 00'0 (00'000°%) 00°0 (00'c00'1) 1dinb3-s351A335 Jleday puy nueuauel  9EE
Y%PE9ZT  09°9/9'TET 000 09°929°1€9 000 (00°000°008) 000 (00°000°005) SWASAS [00YPS 13YI0 YUM speauod  TIE
%5921 (14°256°41) 000 65°Lb8'E 58°162 (00°008°12) 00'g {0o0"008'12} uDREZINGES PUGAH - uswamay  LT12
%8TLE {£0°L10°€2) 00'0 £L6L9°€T 79°9%S (92°969'9¢) (9£°69T) (00 ¢25'08) alepsy sekodwy  ZT2
9%00°0 {00°002'€) 00'0 000 000 (00'002°c) 000 (00°00Z°¢) uonesuadwo) yswAodusun 012
%bSL {oorosz'e) 00'0 00009 00°05t (00'058°4) 00'0 {00°0S8?) aoueansul [|uag 802
%079 (ObTEE'ZOT) 000 09°6Eb°£91 $9'€6L'7 {00'7LL'692) 00°0 {00°2£2'69T) a3ueinsu] leipn - £0C
%IS6T  (£4°920'1) 00°0 £5'8v2 869 Co'vLT'T} 000 {00°%¢Z'T) aouemsuj 902
%b0Le  (68E0D'BTL) 000 T1°9£b69 899¢T'E {00°0¥+'¢81) (00°800'T) {00°zEV'98T) wewamdy 23@5 0T
%9ty (SLSTS'E9) 00°0 (5'198°(S 99'/68°2 {cez8e'121) (ze'12L) (po'999'021) Aunaas lees 102
%LE'VET  ST'9ST'S 00°0 ST'951°0Z SOER'T (00°000°ST) 000 {00°000'sT) SiaLpea] 3)MAsqns payiad-uoN 86T
%6L95  (80°T0H'S) 000 26'960°C ST'66T {00°005'ZT) 00'0 {00°00S°ZT) SI13YIed) NSNS PIya)  G6T
%000 (00°bE9°TT) 000 000 00°0 (Co'pEQ'1IT) (00'p£9'1T) 00°0 sabep 1 sauejes 2o 68T
%00°00T 000 000 0D (sS'8E6'8S) 000 000 000 [uuesiad soueping  £ZT
%005z (£0°052'27) 000 L6'6YL £C’ER (c0"000'E) 000 (00°000°E) weiboyg Jappe 1aaue)  LTT
%8199  {00°£18'90S) 00'0 00'66.'166 $5°508'001 (00°219'86%°T) 000 {00°219°86+T) sepest 91T
00£3L
axy aduejeg ssdueiqundul  saunppuadxi  sasnyipuadxy 1abpng SJUIWPUIWY  Junowy J26png uonidi>saq JUNoXdY  J3QUUNN JUNCIDY
jBpng passqundudun  6GulpueIsIng 2)2(-03-4B9 91eQ-CI-YJUOW papudy 396png
JO %

[ooyas asodind jesauan IPT  pung

¥1 jo € abed STOT Aely
Wd €0:T szoz/et/9 Bpwig/seq punyg Ag [q0 Aq Atewiwing S9.NJIPUIDXT JO JUSWRS 9 :Aq pajeald
piojmes)) pjAey uasn uonednpy §o pieog Ajuno) auaaln pauysq D97 wey sjepdwd ]



%97'sE  (L6'%89'LL) 000 E0°STE'TY L9104 (oo'000'021) 00°0 {00 000’027} safiem 1 saueles 22l 681
YLTITT  B6'BEY'ET 00'0 86°95¥'£6 POPTHpT (00'g18'€8) 000 (o0°g18'c8) siwepuanly B9
%Sz (LO'¥69'8TE) goo £6'688°558 £9°6E1°E9T (00°85'¥81°T) (00Z¥L'66T) (00°Z8'¥86) |uuosiad scuepiny  £21
%00°0 (oo 000'1) 000 000 000 {00"000°1) 000 (00'000°1) wesbolg Jappe] ;318 LI
OETZL
%0z°88 (£S'094°00T) LLT0L'03 0L°0L8'6EL SE'9TT1911 {00'€€0'1S8) 00°0 (00'c€0'TS8) 0z1rL |20l
%OT'TCC  6TITEL 76'898 LELSP'TT {8126y (00°000'9) 000 (00°000°9) wawdinby yieay  SEL
%LEPOT  ETTHE £9°8IV'E 0£'90T°C 00°001°Z (00'v80°0T) 000 (00°+80°0T) ssbieyy Y0 665
%ee'68  (00°091) 00'089 00099 00°0 (00°005°1) 000 (00°005'1) wawdolaasg Yeis/aames-ur IS
%Z8'08  (ZS'E92'T) [{ardi g4 ey (80vL't (00'008°TT) 00°0 (00"008'11) s|euaje)y puy sonddns S0 66b
%5126 (Sv'88S} 000 S5 T16'9 000 (o0005°¢} 000 (o0"005°2) sayddng Jeapsiy puy sbruq - £TF
%000 (06°051'9) 00'0 000 00°0 (00°051°9) 000 (0005179} SENAIBS PIPRIUCD JBUID  66€
%sZ'18  (ZF'1£5'0) 08'1p1’1 80°'628'6 aid {00z05°ET) (00°000'S) (00°705'8) jpaRy  SSE
%00°0 {00002} 00°0 00°0 000 (00°002) 000 (00°002) sabey) |2)sod  8YE
%Z6'IT  (I8'SOv'T) 000 61061 000 (009651} 000 (0079651} uoneaunwwoe)y L0
%L5'St  {ET'SLE'T) 000 £9°801°9 66101 {00'+80'8} 000 (00'480'8) asedipap sAoldw3  TTT
%00°0 {00°05+) 00°0 00’0 000 (00" 05b) 000 (00°05+) uonestediio? JuawAodwaun 01T
%BZ'Z9  (00°TT8) o0'e 00°6EE'T 00°0ST (0005127} 00°0 (00'0s12) Sduensu] |@uag 80T
%I0'T6  (TLE69'HT) aco 8Z'8EL'8HT 9T'bLb'ST {00°ZEbE9T) ooe (00°zep'€91) 0uemsuy [epa L0
%ZEP8  (09°0b) 000 0¥'81Z 0#'8€ (00°652) 000 (00°652) ouamsu 3N 902
%00'€8  {S+°626'6) 06’0 55°064'8p 26'SEE’g {00'0¢H'8S) 00'0 (00"02'8S) wawansy Awms  H02
%55 (SE9vH'8) 000 5507192 LE'6EE"Y (00°£95'¥E) 00°0 (00°295'vE) Aunoss jepos 102
%9409 {00°65L'%) 000 00'b9E"L 00°0 (oo611°21) 000 (oo611'ZT) sabem g sauejes U0 68T
%606 (S5°TES'TY) 00'0 ShLET'60F 86'2£6'0L (00'0LZ'05H) 00°000°S (00°0££'SSH) [puuosiag |enpay  I€E
%9608 (5T°56L'TT) 000 SCYST08 SLTLS'S (00°056°19) 000 (00°056'19) lopasng/ioswadng  SOT
SIVIABS YljesH 0Z1ZL
%t796 (28'6559) 000 BT'ZET'BIT 80'Z9T¥T (00°769'¥LT) 00'0 (00°769'vLT) OTITL 12301
%Q0°0 (007001) 00'0 000 00'0 (00°00T) 000 (o0'001) sableyd PO 669
%00'0 (oo 002) 000 000 000 (00002} 000 (00-002) sjeudjel puy s3yddns 18,30 66
%WOI'E0T  1§'GZE'T 000 1SSl 000 (00°008°Z) 0co (00°008°Z¥) SIVIABS PEPRIUOD BN B6E
%y0'9TY 212 00°0 48774 0T'8bT (00°£20'1) 000 (00°£20'1) aseapoy sshodws  ZT2
%000 (og-os1) 000 000 000 (000s1) 000 (0070SY) uonesuadwe) wawAodwaun 012
0TTZL
ax3 aluejeg SDURIQWNOU]  SAINPPUSdx]  SAIMIpUIdXT yabpng sjuawpuawy  junowy whHpng uopdidss@ WNoDY  JoqUNN JUNOITY
Wwhpng passqumoudun  Buipueisaing  8IBQ-03-JedA  33EQ-03-YIUOW papuswy yabipng
0,
0% |ooy>s asoding |esduan I¥T : pund
1 Jo  abed szoz Aew
Wd £0:T §Z02/21/9 :aw) fejeq puny Aq iqQ Aq Alewwing senupuadxy j0 JUIWIJEIS 291 :Aq pogess)

plomes) ejAey

1I9SN

uoneonp3 §o paeog AJunod) ausaln

pauyaq D91 asweN Ijejdwa]



%BOTHT  b6'PIL'6S 600 +6°€8£°102 S60FT'HT (00'610°2P 1} 000 (00°610°CHT) awaey 3|s  $OC
%IP'EET  bBUOTLE 000 PRL25'8YT 0£'952°01 (00°0£€°11T) 00'0 {(00°0£€’T1T) Aunoas |epos  T0Z
%184t S906E'T 00'0 59'06£9 S9°0L0°T (o0'000s) 0e'o {00°000'5) siaLpea) amusqns paypad-uoN 86T
%ER'69  (£bE0T) 00°0 £5°96E'T 00°'66€ (00'000°2) 00'0 {00°000'2) sioydRal ANNsans paiay  G6T
n8p'6L  (£8°€96'82) aco FARTarqd 91°'£¢6'01 (00°691' 151} 000 (00°69T'T¥1) sabem g saueles N0 68T
%10°'80T  S8'+80'ZL 000 $8'80'7L6 000 (00°000'006} (00°000°C08) 000 suswAed snuog 88T
%81¢6 (09221 600 0y'2zT'TH 65°EPb'9 (00°eobep) 00'0 (00°Lo'ED) siuersissy euoneonpy €91
%LL00T  TTL0E 000 Z1's8Z'op 25°566'2 (00°8£6'65) 000 (00°8¢6'6E) [auuosiad (DU 79T
%00°00T  SS'T6E'9 000 S5T6E'9 000 000 000 000 {9uuosI3d Joyndwa] euoipnisul - §ET
%SE90T  89'669'67 000 B9'06E L6V €5'1Z0'€9 (00°169'¢9¥) 00'0 (00°169'29v) [2UL0SI3d e1paj uoResnpy  LET
%bb 1L (£8°8€5'S9T) 00'0 ET°TLEP99 TH'80E' 1L (00'0T6'626) 00'000% (00°016'€£6) suepesgr 621
%005y (60°062'2) 000 16°6v27 66'6vC (00°000°s) 000 (00°000°S) webolg pppey s2aey  LT1
%6L'T6  (ISTOB'YI) 00°0 61°880°65T 65°29b'b1 (00°068°¢L1) 000 (00°068€2T) Jopalg/iosmadng - SOT
012%L
%009, (95°088'SLP) 8L'EST'T 96'68090S'T 89°66£°092 (oe'vst'ees’t)  (0E'ESE'BEE) (00" T08'v9'T) uoddng Juapms JAYI0  O£TZL lejoL
%00°0 (00°007'z¢E) 000 000 000 (00°00Z'28) (00°000°2€) (00°002) wawdinby YO 064
%S£°90T  00'TSE ST'ET1'T SBIEV'Y 0T'8E (00°002's) 000 (00"002'S) sobieyd soy1o 665
%IT'6 (o1°€91'€2) 000 PR'9EE'T 000 (00°005'52) (00°000°+2) {00"005°T) wswdojaneg yersfomes-ul TS
%6T'E9  (00°6+0'7) £9'%9 LE9EL'T 61421 (00'058°2) 000 (0070582} s|enEiely puy saiddng 1930 666
%90'€0T  9T'0ZE'¥ 000 97°02L'ShT 05°S6£°8T (00°00%'T41) (00°000'62) (00°cop'ZIT) S0IAIIS PaPenuo) BUIC  66E
%e0 el (S2698) 000 STOET 69'¥8 (00°000°T) {00°000°7) ao'e PAel GGE
%000 (00-000°02} 000 000 000 (00°000°02) 00°000°0T (00°000'0€) Bugss) puy uonenier 7€
%6L9%T  SL69T'T 000 S£699°€ 00°961 (00°005°2) 000 (00"005°7) uoneziIqels pUgAH - Judwady  LT¢
Y%6ev.  (1€9£R'p) 00'0 65°9%0vT 98'645°2 (06°288'81) {06°64£°E) (00°€€t'sT) arepa BAodws 212
%000 {00°005) 000 Q00 000 {00°00S) 000 (00°00S) uonesuadwio) JRWAgdwaun 0T
%Z6'9€ (6577957 000 00°005°1 00°0St (65'290°b) (65°295) (00°00S'€E) suensup jEuag  80¢
%9E'62T  85'6K5'9k 000 56'880°507 98'556°2€ (£T6e5'8ST) (LTep9'p2) (00°968'€£T) asueansur eapaly L0
%9916 (v'82) 000 8ETIE £9'1S (z8'0v€) (z8'29) (00'882) ouednsul 3 90¢
%ZE'9L  (Tveve'e?) 000 12¢8T'EL £5°89T°ET (££°620'96) (€E'295°¢T) (00'29v'8L) wawamy |s 0T
%07 (T06L5'22) 000 £5°£91'8S £6'981°01 (6€°Lv2'08) (6€7040'91) {00'£0£'¥9) Awindag epos  TOT
%0070 {00°000°2) 00'0 000 00'0 (00°00077) 000 (00'000'7) si3yles] Isqng payusd-uoN  B6T
%0070 (00°000'2) 000 000 co0 (00°000'2) 000 (c0'000'2) sIaydeal s)NiAsqns pauiey 56T
0ETZL
axgz aduejeg SIUBIGWINIU]  saunjipuadxy  sanpuadxy wbpng SJURWPUIWY  Junowy Jabpng uogdidsag JUN0JIY  JAQUINY JUNOIDY
196png pasaquindusun  Bulpueising 3eQ-03-183\  ILQ-03-YJUOK papuawy b6png
)
o 1004OS asodingd jelauaD I¥T : pung
$1 40 § 9bed SZ0T Ael
Wd €0:T SZ0T/Z1/9 PwiL/ajeq puny Aq [qo Aq Alewiwng $3un3puadxa Jo JudwWRels 291 :Aq pajeasd

piomes] ejAey

aasn

uonecnp3 Jo pJeog AJUNCD) UMD

pauyag 291 :ewep ajejdwa)



%OETL  (8E'T09) 00'0 298641 96641 (00°001°2) (00°001°2) 00°0 uonezyigels PUgAH - Juswailsy  £LTT
%9106 (££'8£9) 00°0 €129 08269 {00°005°9) 000 (00°006'9) suenpaw sshoidws  ZIT
%0070 (o0°051) 00°0 00°0 00°0 (oo'osT) 50°0 {00°0ST) uoesuadwo) wawhaduwsun - OTZ
%1606  (00'SL) 00'0 00°05¢ 00°00€ {00°529) 00°0 (00'sz8) duainsyl jeea  80Z
%S8'6L  (25°€H0'ZT) 000 8y'oTL'Ly bI'ZTH8'E (00r02£'65) 000 {00°0££'65) doueunsu] jewpan  L0C
%006L  (0Z7S2T) 000 08'v6 op'8 (oo 0Ty 000 {oo0z1) asuzinsup 1 902
%128, (10°915'8) 000 66'E8Y'TE £6'616'C (0o 000°0%) 00°0 {00°000°0%) suRIRY AAS  HOC
%9b'z6  (98°891°7) 000 ¥1°109°97 b6'8ES'T (00'02£'82) 000 (00°02£'82) Auroes fepos 10T
%EQ'TIE  (LE0OPT'SE) 000 £9°00¥°201 ECEST'TT (00 THS'ZET) 00'0 (00°145'2€T) sabem g saueles a0 681
%000 {00 z£00T) 000 000 600 (00'2£0'01) 00°000°0T (00°2£0'02) (Suepnss 197
%LT96  (S6'1£9'7) 000 §0°80T°¢9 S9'1ZEL (00°08'69) 000 (00°082'69) juuosiad Juawssessy  GET
%00've  {L6LSS'PT) 000 £0°ZHH T L9+09" (00°000"9S) (00°000"95) 00°C Buuosiad eapaw  TET
%bebL  (80°088'TS) 000 Z6'882°051 65'8E0°Z1 (00°691°202) 007005 '8t (00°699'052) |auuosiad |e1BojedAsyd  HZT
%0006  {00°00€E) 00°0 00°00£°2 00°00€ (00°000°€) 00’0 (60°000°€) wesbolg eppe ssa1e)  LTT
%516 (9£2b1'8) 00°0 YTLTY'88 +9'8€0°8 (00°0£5'96) (0c'00%) (00°0£1'96) Joauqa/iosiavedns SOT
0zTTLL
905526 (£6'8¥8°T8) 9Z°F0EDT LLTES'PRT'E 90°Z1S'StT (o0'989'278’c)  (00°'000°006) (00'989°'LL¥p°T) 01ZZL 1@0L
%000 (007000'1) 00'0 000 00’0 (06°000'T) 00°0 (00°000'1) juawdinbz RO 064
%eses  {epog9) 000 £5°€98 000 (00°005'1) (00°000°T) (00"008) sobieyy B0 665
%96'TZZ  00°860'9 00°0 00°860°11 00°860°11 (00°000'5) 000 (00°000°S) BWioEASQ Yers/amas-ul  HZS
%06'6T  (€9°600'8) 18'19% 958711 88'68% (00"000"0T) 000 (00°000°01) slenaiely puy saddng B0 661
%{S'6L  (00°EZ8'S) 000 0044922 000 (00005'82) 000 (0000582} eipan/oyoog Areagry  ZEP
%SSESE  9T'TEO'BE 29°99¢'6 $9'595°El 000 (00°000°ST) 000 (00°000°sT) SIIARS PIPLNUC) IO 66E
%BELOT  BIESL'T 00'0 BY'£05'ST L966L'E (00°0S2°€T) 00'0 (00r05£'€2) ARy SSE
%00°0 (007001) 000 000 000 (00"00T) 00°0 (00 007) Jdinb3-5301A135 Jreday puy dueuaue  9EE
%000 (06°000's) 000 000 000 (00'000°S) 00°0 (00°000'3) sjueynsuo) - BOE
%bZ88  (00008) £8°5LE LT429's 0b'EES (00°008°9) 000 (00°008'9) uagedunuiwol  Z0€
%ET'08 (L6'V6L) 00'0 £0°60T'€ 90°'€6 (00°000°t) {00°000°€) {00°000'1) UoNeZIqeIs PUGAH - Juswainay  LTZ
%BS'SET  L6°€9Z'6 00'0 £6°00ESE L ITH'T (00'¢€0'92) 000 (00°££0'92) a1eaipaly ;ehodwy  TTE
%000 (00"006) 000 000 00°0 (00°006) 000 {00°006) uonesuadwoy wawiodwaun 012
%L1'89  (Z0'B6O'T) 000 86'TSET 86'P9T°T (00 051'€) 000 (00°05+'E) Jueinsyr esg BOZ
%L46  (T1S'T9E'9} 600 61'SEE'8LT 0£'8£E°ST {00°£69'¥82) 00t (00°£69°v87) dueinsu g L02
%896 (bSLZ) 000 95" 06¢ 8119 {co'815) 00'0 (00°815) dueinsul N 902
[ Y4 44
ax3y [duejey saoueIqunouy  sAaAnjipuadxy  s3unypuadxy p6png sjuRwpulWyY Junowy 3a6png uondidsaq JUNCJDY  JAQUINN JUNODDY
Whpag pasequmuaun Bupuesing 31eQ-03-de3d) 1eQ-03-YIUOW papuswy w6png
so % jooyos asadind jesauss TrT :pung
7 Jo 9 abeg SZ0Z Aepn
Wd £0:T SZ02/Z1/R 1wl /azeq pund Aq [q0 Aq Atewnung saimypuadxy Jo juswalels 9 Aq pajeas)
paoyver) eldey Jasn uopedNp3 Jo pieog AJuno) sulug pauyaq D97 :ewep jejdway



%1Zs9  (TTeeT’s) 000 8LE9SET 000 {00'T08'07) 00°0 (00'T08'07) Awnoas enos 10T
%0€'19  {00°0S¥0T) 000 00°055'91 00°0 (0000022} 000 (00°000°£T) S394 SBQUBIY 39PWWO) puy preog 16T
%£9'69  (£2°80T'T6) 000 LL7168'80Z 00'009'C (00°'000°00¢) 000 (00°000°00€) Aeq Awasbuor 98T
%Ee8S  (69'THS'E) 00 TE956' 000 (00°00S"8) 000 (00°005'8) pieog o) Aieyenas  STT
OTETL
%TL°9ZT 00°TL9'8S 00°0LS’E 00° Y08’ v2T 000 (oo0'002°612) 00'0 (00'00£°612) aszTL {ejol
%9LTPT  BEELP TR 000 86°6L1'BET 000 (0000026} 000 (00°000'26) aemyos  TLb
%0298  (00°0EE"T) 00°045'E 007001°S 00’0 (o0 000°01) 00°0 (00°000°07) bulqed OLb
%EF'9TT  Z0'TZS'81 000 WITIET 000 (00 00£'zET) 000 (00°002'Z1T) Ajangsuue) Busl  DSE
0SZZL
Y%6R'6Z (6ETZY'LST) 000 T9°SSL'60T 0E'8.6°6 (00"2£1'£9€) (00'6£Z'2¥2) (00'968'YZ1) weibold uoiesnp3 JEUOIRIOA  DEZZL (€101
%000 (00'6L2'er2) 000 000 000 (00°6£2'2¥0) (o0'6L2°2kT) 00°0 awdinb3 Jao  06L
%818 (59'v19'p) 00°0 SETTH 000 (00°920's) 00'bLt (00°005°S) jpAelL  SSE
%€9'16  (98'LEY) 00°0 ¥1°062'1 A {00°80%'T) (00°€7) (00°56€°T) s1epay RAodua 1T
%00°0 {cobg) 00°0 00'0 00°0 (00"v€} 00°0 (00'vE) uepesuadwo) awAoidwaun  0TZ
%00°0 {o0°0S1) 000 00°0 00°0 (00°0sT) 000 (oo0sT) adveinsu] [ewaq 807
%p88  (00°0v0°T) 000 00'915°2 00102 {00°9558) 000 (00°955°8) asueinsu] [edpa £02
%0088  (08'1) 000 0TSt 0z't (oo'sT) (00'1) (0061} ueansui 3y 90
%0r'16  (6L7bES) 00°0 12°189's £9°418 (00°972"9) (00°001} (oo'911'9) wewamay a5 Y0T
%65'16  (€5°508) 000 L¥'915'S 81205 (00°£20'9) (00°09) {00°E96"S) Aunag enos 102
%0006 {00°00T) 000 00006 00°00T (00°000‘T) 000 (00°000'1} welbolq oppe 523023 LTT
%99°'T6  {92'2¢0'8) 00°0 yZ'LTY's8 ¥8'8E0'R (00°0£b°96) (00°00€) (00°0£1°96) Jopaaqliosiaadns - GOT
0ETTL
%0£'08 (OVELS'bIT) 06°TBE’6 0L°T6T'S6S €L°189'9S (00°ZTT'6%L) (oo-oo0’or) (o0 LYV’6EL) 0ZZZL el
%2695 (b0°2L0°'T) 05'298 95099 00'0 (oo'0os’D) 00°0 (00005 '2) sabieyp P10 665
%LLTL (07°56€) 000 08'+00'T 000 (00 00b°'T) 000 (00"cov'1) wowdojaaag yeisfaamms-ul 7S
%b6'78  (E29/8T) 56"y EE0LT'Y L6°06F'T (000007 1) 000 (00°000°TT) steualel puy saiddng 20 66b
%68 (18°0¥6'T) 99¢ZT'E £S'TER'ZT Zh'188 (c0000'8T) (ocooo‘ot) (00"000°8) pael  SSE
%0098  (00°0¥T) 00°0 00°098 000 (00°000°1T) 000 (00°000°T) Jdinb3-saoinss neday puy Bdueuaulely  9EE
%00°0 (00°0s5) o000 000 000 (00" 0ss} 000 (00°0SS) suawWAed viIgs/eses] DEE
%I18TL  (STOPT'T) 000 SL6ST'E STELS (00°00b'+) 000 (g0-o0t'y) sapuaby Jand 1ouio wim spequo)  OTE
%0008  (00°00€) [11:157 019 07’9 (00008°1) 000 (00°005'1) uogedunwwos  Z0E
ozzeL
dxg aouejeq sIdueIquINIUY  saunjipuadxy  sdunppuddxy 326png SJUBWpURWY  junowy Jabpng uondipsaq JUNCIDY  JAGUINN JUNOIIY
06png passqundusun  BuipueisIno 2eg-03-4eas  3eq-o03-Ljudu papuawy 39bpng
0P (ooyd§ ssoding |B1auaD IPT : pung
T 40 £ 3beg STOT Aep
Wd £0:1 S202/21/9 [suw) /a3eq pund Aq {qO Aq Alewung S2JNJIPUadX3 JO JUDWILYS 291 :Aq pajeasd

plojmel)) giaey

uoiedNpP3 Jo pJeog AJuno) auasln

pautjag Do :eweN e|dwag



WEI'BIT  bT'ELT'T 90°061°C ST°£80°9 S0°009 (00°000°2) 00°0 {00000°7) SIIIBS PaDRIUO] BYI0  66E
%90' 12T EETHE PE'E69 6'8rT'p 98°€59 (00°000'p) 000 {00000} PAel  SSE
%050 (9£'655°S) 000 $Z0vb'Z 06F1Y (00°000°8) 000 (00°000°8} sobuey je1sod  8YE
9%00°0 {00'00¢) 000 00'0 00'0 (00'00€) 00°0 {00°00€) Jdinb3-sa31u35 Jjeday puy sdueuae  9EE
%8106  (00'Se8) 000 00'599'2 00°0 (0o'005'8) 00°0 (000058} sdiysiaqualy puy ssna  OZE
%ESECT  08'288'S YETHP 9H0¥H'0€ 9% 1TL'T (00°000°S2Z) 000 (0000052} uoneounwwo)  L0€
%SS'H0T  08'BIE 9T'ObE'E ¥9°8L6°E 08°¥EE (00°000°2) 00°0 (00°000'2) busuaapy  Z0E
%wZv'ze  (29'21E) 00°0 8E'01R'E TEE {oogzt'y) 00'0 (00°e21'Y) Pl Jakodwy  TTT
%00°0 (0001} 000 00'0 000 (0o'ovT) 000 (00" opT) uonesuadwo) juawdoidwaun 0T
%00°00T  00°0 00°0 00009 60°00€ (00°009) 000 (00°009) 3pueinsul {ewsg  80C
%9L'TOT  S8°Z0L 00'0 S8'¥BY'9T 19°Z6v°2 {00°28v's2) 000 (o0"zBb'S2) Soueinsuf eapap  LOC
%0029 (¥1°6T) 00'0 98'8€ Uv (00°8%) 000 (00°85) ssuemnsur 3y 902
%ZEPE  (TOLST'R) 000 86°0£2'61 0bLEL'T (00-88E°02) 000 (00°88£'02) Wwawamey sles  bOT
w2yt (STIEE'T) 000 SL°Z62°91 60°LTH'T (00'629'21) 000 (00°629°2T) Aunoeg jepos 10T
%bee6  (£9°88T'T) 00’0 EEELS'EY 09'689'p (00°79L'vh) 000 (00294 vt} [Buuossad [eu3p 291
%00°0 {00°000°1) 000 000 00°0 (00°000'1) 000 (00°000°1) weibaiy Jappe] 1asey (1T
%8166  (¢8'5E8) 000 E1°6G2°101 1T°045'8 (007060'20T) 000 (00°060'201) (Shuesssy  £07
%ez'Z6  (967959°0T) 000 POPPILTT LST0T (o0'T0£'8€T) 000 (00'T0£"85T) 1931J0 PANBRSILILPYARDWO Awno)  TOT
ozeLL
%69'¥L (B8Z'95£'BOE) 6Z'80¥'L EV'BYL’E06 98'LLT0E {00°€Y6'61Z'T) 000 (00°ET6°6TZ T) OTEZZ 1=0)
%00'66  (Z£'08) (5°L50'T T1°798'S L't (00°000'8) 000 (00°000'8) sobiey) U0 665
%EvZ9  (56°0£0'%) 000 S0°'62b'8 0EL18 (00°005'21) 000 (00°005'zT) a1 - syuexiddy Jo uonebnsanul feuay  E€S
%bbb01  TLZZEET 000 TLTEETIE $2'809°L1 (00°000°00¢) 000 (00 000’00€) uoissiwwo) sEsny 01§
%LETOT  00°98S 000 00°9€€’ST 00°596 {00°0S2'v2) (00°000'8T) (00°0529) SaIIBS paenUOD B0 H6E
%ROELT  TT'HL6'E 2£'05E’S 0S'€£8'ST 00°0ST {00000 1) {00°000°2) (00°000'5T) Pael  SSE
%SLTIT DY T0L'Y 000 Ob'T0L bt 09'99€’S {00"000°0%) (00°000's1) (00°000'52) SRS e TEE
%89'SET  0D'H09°E 00°0 00°bOL'EY 000 {00°007°07) 000 (00-00T01) sdiysiaquaps puy sang  OZE
%0000T  00°0 000 00°000°€E 000 (00°000°€£) {00000'8) (00°000'S0) soomes ypny  SOE
%Lty (167298°'T) 000 BOL6T'E 000 (00°598'+} 000 (00°598°F) aledpap Jakoidwy T2
%Z9ty  (€5'€00'5T2) 000 £5'96b'S6T 0070 (00°005'01H) 00°000'Ep (00°005'€S¥) dueInsuy eapaW  £L0T
%0TbZ7  (05'5Z5'T) 00°0 05'b8b 000 (00°070°2) 000 (00'010'T) dueinsur y 902
%el's9  (9€'60¢€) 000 boLLS 000 (00°£88) 000 (00°¢88) wewRIny Aes  H0C
OTETL
ax3 sduejey sdduesqumul  sunlpuRdxy  sainppuadxa wbpng SUAWPUWY  JunoY 3a5png uondidsag JUNO2DY  JAQLUNN UNOIIY
wbpng pasequnouaun  Buipueising 3eq-03-~1ed4  eg-03-4Iuok papuawy 9bpng
30 %

jooyos asodingd |[RIDUID IPT : pun4

T Jo g abed §70Z Aew
Wd £0:1 520Z/Z1/9 2wl fayea puny Aq [q0 Aq Atewwing sainjipuadx3 Jo Juswns 9% :Aq pajessd
plopmer) elAey e ) | uenesnp3 Jo pieog AJUNo) 3ua pauyaq 097 :pwepN Nejdway



%9828 (BL'TS0°91S) 9°9€6°0T 9L 6TS'ETLE S0'08E'BSE rnehmem.ommi 00°'0 (00°605°0SZ"Y) 0I¥ZL 1©0L
%0087 (20°0bb'T) 000 86655 000 (000002} 000 (00°000°2) awdinbg vonensiwtpy  T0Z
%000 (00'000'1) 00°0 000 00°0 (00°000'1) 000 {00°000'7) sebiey) PYID 665
%eees  (00°009'T) 9£/00£'C $Z669°Y 000 (00°000°9) 000 (00°000'9) s|euajep puy saiddng BUI0 66
%606 (11°60T'E) 65'911°8 PEVLLEE ST'006°€ {00°000°SH) 000 (00"000'S¥) S0IAIBS PIRRIWCD BII0  66E
%00°0 (007005°2) 000 000 000 {00°005°27) 000 (00005°70) @Ay SSE
%000 (00'000'T) 000 000 00°0 (00°000'1) 000 (o0 000°1} 1dinb3-s201025 Jiedey puy Aaueujuie  9EE
%9b'6S  (L£8Z0'LT) ST'611 80°258'p2 61°£L6'T (00°000°2t) 000 (00'000'2p) uojeunwwo)  L0E
%00°00T  0ZT'ZBT'T 000 02°Z81'1 zzelt 000 000 00'0 uonezyIqels pUgAH - Juswamay  LTZ
%6268 (6£°9££'9) 00°0 19°186'9F TH'b06'E (00'8SE'EY) 00°0 (00'85¢'er) 24e2P3YY JoAojdw3  TTT
%000 (00°00S) 00°0 000 00°0 (00°005) 000 (po'005) uopesusdwo) JuswAodwaun 012
%EeZE  (00°00p'S) 000 00°00£'€ 00°0St {00"00£'8) 00'0 {00°00£'8} dueinsuf |guag 80C
%E€C'L8 (£Z°620°08) 000 €LS1S'9PS 06°961°0S (00°55'929) 00'000°5T {00°SP5'19) acueinsup edIp3W L0Z
%006  (08'S8) 000 0z'8LL 0Z'€0T (00'+98) 00'0 (00p98) aoueinsup 1 902
%y0'T6  (18°865°02) 000 61298802 STEES'ET (00 11+'622) 000 (00 TTb'62T) wawamey a1es  $0T
%00's8  (19°708'¢T) 000 6£°265'L51 00°Z29'ST {00's6£'58T) 000 (00'see’seT) Andag jewos  10€
%wer e (ZS7€60'ST) 000 85'906'rL 81'798'9 (00°000°06) 000 (0000006} sabem B sapefes w0 68T
%5906  (18'952'0L} 00°0 6T°E9E'TR9 ZU'I86'L6 (00075'15¢) 000 (00'0Z9°1S2) (S)lepas 191
%E9T8  (TLL9L/thT) 000 6T 6ET'E0L LELTT0L (00-£06°058) (00°000°) (06'£06'948} sedpung Juelsissy  6€1
%y9'Ey  (I8°18€'E) 000 61'819'C 16'062 (000009} 000 (00'000°9) weifod sappe s3se) LT
%ELT6  (SEHILTIT) 00'0 SOP6E'SHT'T ST'€92'Z1T (00'60£°£SE°T) (00°000'1T) (00°60£'9b€'T) sedound  $0T
oTvTL
%T196 (ZE09£'91) LS'ESL'9 TT'658°L6E 00°TZ8'SE (ovezs’0zY) 00°0 (o0'ez6'0TY) 0ZEZL |e0L
%00°C (00°009) 00°0 000 000 (00009} 000 (00°009) Juewdinby uonensuwpy 104
%00°0 (00'008) D00 000 000 {00°008) 000 (00°00%) sabieyy BYI0 665
%E6'Z8  {S0°6E6) JAYL:] BLELY'Y L5°Sh'T (00°005°S) 000 (00°005'S) sayddns oo SEY
0zeLL
ax3g ajuejegq soauRIquInoul  saunjipuadx3  sasnjipuadxy 196png sjuswWpuRWyY  jJunowy Jabpng uon3dirsag UNODY  JGUINN JUNOIDY
@bpng passquniusupy  Buipuesing 3eq-03-1e3)  INeg-03-LQUoK papuswy Jabpng
10 %

|00y2s asoding |elausn IPT : pung

1 30 6 3bed szoz Aew
Wd €0:T SZ0Z/Z1/9 Py /Iteq pung Aq [qO Aq Atewiling SaiN3Ipuadxy Jo Juaiualeys 291 sAQ pajeald
ployme) ejlAey 119sN uoneosnpg jo pJeog AJUNo) dUIBLD psuyag 191 swep ajejdway



%25v6  (LT'61T) 00°0 £8°082'€ 4Ly (00°000'%) 000 {00°000"%) Al SSE
%00°0Z2 000009 S6'€E1°T $0'998'6 00’0 (00°000'S) 000 {00°060'S) 1dinb3-s20135 sleday puy soueudutely  9EE
%00°00T  9Eb 000 9ty 00°0 00’0 000 000 UOHEZHIGRIS PUGAH - JUalwaay (T2
%99'6L  (L1920'S) 00°0 £8'6/9°6T 201192 (00'90£'b2) 000 (00°902+2) uepap s3koldwy  ZTC
%000 (00°0052) 000 00'0 00’0 (00°005'2) 000 {00°005°2) uogesuadwo) juawiodwaun 0T
%0087  (00°001'%) 00'0 00°006 00°0S% (00°000°S} 000 (00°000'S) dueinsu] (AL 80T
%8e'Z8  (¥TEC9'9L) 000 9L ¥TE'BSE L8LETOE {60°816'vEP) 000 (00°8v6"ED) souesnsu feapaw  L0¢
%065 (98°ZTH) 000 1°568 £0'86 {00 800°1) 000 (00'800°T) snuesnsup it 902
%ELT8  (TE5L6'1E) 000 99°851°ST 96'$0b'0Z {00vET'S8T) 000 (p0vET'SBI)} weuRnRy ;s HOT
%0258 {(FO'T6S'HT) 00°0 96°200°+8 PETHT'TT (00°65'86) 00°0 (00'v65°96) Aundag |enos 102
%ITVOT  80°929°S 00°0 80°£8Z'0k1 TES0E°LT (00°T19'bET) 000 (00°T19'%ET) sabep g souejes IO 68T
%1008  (90°TZ9'€¥E) 000 ¥6'895'S5Z'1 9£°£05'89T (00°061'695'T) 000 (00°061°695°1) [3uuosiad felpoisn) 991
019TL
%ST'¥6  (0L'6Z0VE) [aa23 98°£66°9SS 69°TOE'SS (00°Zv6'165) 00'0 (o0'zw6'16S) 0TSTL (W01
%Lp97  (10°902'T) 000 667€6L 000 {00°000'€) 000 (00°000'€) usiudinby uenensuwpy 104
%IS2PT  L5°T1T 000 Jiga?a 000 (00°005) 00°0 {00°008) sebieln PYI0 665
%000 (00°008°1) 00°0 000 000 {00°005°T) 00'0 (00°00S'T) sieu=siel puy saiddns 2yi0 66
%00'00T  Z1'Z2H'1E 00°0 eI 00'0 00D 000 00°0 aemyos  T/&
%ILLZT 6THSS i2d 4\ SL6EPT &4 (00°000°7) 000 (00°000'2) saqddns aayo  Se¥
%ZU8L  (LD'ETET) 00°008 £6'988°C T {00"0009) 00°¢ (00°0009) saljddns 6uissaocsg eleq T
%ITT {6E'S5921E) 00°0 19'pEL oL'E (00°c05'2€) 000 (00°005°2€) S3DIAISG PaPENUO] B0 66€
%L9'8 (88°601') 000 ZI'06E 99'¥9€ (00°005 %) 000 (00°005't) presL  SSE
%00°0 (00°000°T) 00°0 000 00°0 (00"000'1) 000 (00°000°T) 1dinb3-590113 sleday puy sueuBluRl  FEE
%Ze'8T  (00°STE'T) 000 00°S6C 000 (00°019'T) 000 (00°079'1) sdiys1aquspy puy seng  02E
%AE'T6  (L6T9P) 000 £0°506'% 81018 (00'BOE"S) 000 (00"89€’S) 2eapa sakoidwy 7T
%00°0 (00'0pT) 00e 000 000 (00 0bT) 000 (00'0pT) uonesuasdwo Juawhojdusun 0T
%9021 09'TST 000 09'20€'1 09252 (00°050'T) 000 {00°050'T) dueinsur |uag 802
%II66  (2§°SSL) 000 Bb'4L1b8 81'5+0'6 {00°0£6'¢8) 00'0 {00"0€6'¥8) Soueinsuf jesipe L0
%0S'0TT  09°0T 000 09° 111 00°8T {oo°101) 00°0 (00'10T) ssueinsui yn - 90T
%eET6  (18'6£8°F) 00°0 61 1Sb'0b SESELY (00'162"¥) 000 (00 162'vb) wawaiey s Y02
%8eT6  (62°¢46°T) 000 1£°6£6'0C SS181°C {00°156'22) 000 (00°15622) Aundas jepos 10T
%zz96  (9€°908°TT) 000 #9°ZH€'00E 08'8€9'2E (00641 '27¢) 000 (00'6v1°21€) jPuuosiad Pasn 29T
%ILEE  (8F°062°F) 000 T5°T90'v9 69°£00'8 (00-25£'89) 000 (00°75€"89) Jopaung/iosiedng  SOT
0TSTL
ax3a aduejeg sodueiqunduy  saumtpuadxy  saunypuadxy 336png sjuaWpuswy Junowy abpng uondiasag JUN0XY  JaquINN JUN03dY
°6png pasequnoudufy  BulpueIsINg 3jeg-03-4eaA  I1Eg-0}-PUOKW pIapulwy 196png
10 % jooyos asoding jei13Ul3d T :pund
¥1 J0 01 abeqy ST0T AeW
Wd €0:T SZ02/21/9 iawll/ajeq pund Aq Iq0 AqQ Alewiwing sasnypuadxy jo Juawajels 291 :Aq pajean)

piaymer) glAey Iasn

uoneanpg §o pJeod A3unc) U39

pauyag D9 :ewep jejdwa)



otLTL

%TT'v6  {(0p'1ES'8L) 8LEGETL 0T'9LD'Z0Z'T 01'66£'68 (sz1o0'8se’t) (8T gre'eE0Z) (00°€L9'PST'T) jueld JO FuURUAUIBW  OTITL [e0L
%00°00T {82'2) 0080221 00811161 000 (8z'87E'802) (8z'82€"€00) 000 wawdinbg a0 064
%YT’SOT  00°0ST PLTE6'E 98°800'T 98'800°1 (00°052'y) 000 (00°05L'Y) juswdinbg soueusjuie  L1Z
%geeS  (Ev0IE'ED) 1601’8 99'v8581 6LPbL'T (00-000°0S) 000 (00" 000°0%) sabiey) 2o 66S
%68 (98'SEV'T) £€'L9€°9 T8'969'ET £V2LS (00°005'22) 000 (00'005°22) s|eusiely puy saiddns By10 66k
%00°0TZ  00°005'9T OF EVS'T 09°956'62 S8°T90'T (00°000°5T) 00°0 (00°000'ST) sped ABulyiel puy Juawdinba - 8Tb
%LS60E  00°552°TL £0°901'6 L6'8H1°96 ZE'E19'p {00°000°VE) 000 (00°000'%£) SDIADS PAIRNUO] BLIQ  66E
%00°0 (60°005) 00D 000 000 (00°005) 00°0 (00°00S) PresL  SSE
%986 (68/89) $ETOL'BT LL019°PE bH'SS {00°000°05) 000 (00°000'05) 1dinb3-s31aS Jleday puy Sdueuaiey  9EE
9%582TT 9T H69'SE £9°ZSR'ET €5 TH8'T2Z €5°LT1'6 {00°000'002) 000 (00°000'002) 1ipling-s32)AJas Jieday puy IdUBLAUIRK  SEE
%0000z  00°000°S V06T 88'609'2 EVLVE {00°000°S) 000 (00 000'S) aJInas Apuney  67€
%98'zy  (00°008) 88'871 P44 722 16'9¢ (00°00+'T) 000 (00°00%'T) uonedlumbwod  L0E
%928 (HESs) 000 95'€40'9 4 M 172 (00'268'9) ()] (00°268'9) uedpalW RAoduy  ZTE
%000 (00°08€) 000 000 000 (00°08€) 00'0 {00"08€) uonesuadwo) JwawAoidwaun  0TC
%0057 (00°0SE'T) 00'0 000sY 000 (00 008'1) 00'0 {00"008'T) dueinsul [usg 80T
%e6'ss  (ZT'v80'9T) 000 8889228 26L18'L (00°se’801) 000 {00°£5£80T) souesnsu [@ipaly L0
%I19.  (08°1F) 000 0Z'€ET 00'vZ (00'S£T) 000 {00°521) duemsur 1 90T
%8ebe  (09°EES'IT) 00°0 Ob' 0662t 8T°LOT'9 (00¥25'%9) 000 {00$25'V9) wawamsy .S $OT
%86'€L  (8LvE6'S) 000 THob'se ST'9ZI'E {0D'6EE'VE) 000 (00°6£€'vE) Aunag jeos 10T
%b0'8.  (2L'106'S6) 000 87€T8'0bE S8°959°8% (D0'szL'9Eh) 00°0 (00°S2L'9EW) {auuossag dueuARE /9T
%981 (96°b5SPT) 000 PO'SLTLE 09'S92°€ {0070£2'1S} 000 (00'0£L'1S) PuLosIad a3y T91
%69°¢L  {89°658'FT) 000 TEOKL'TS 000 (00°009'99) 000 (00°00999) Jopngliosiaadng  SOT
(114 144
%ES8'68 (8 L0L°01¥) £9'VBTEL 66"869'E19'E 09°S6E°THE (00°T69°£EG'Y) 000 (00°169°C£0"Y) 0T9ZL (€0l
%g1°00T 0542 00°0 05'2£20°ST 00°0 {00°000'ST) 00'0 (00°000'sT) Juowdinby uogersdg weld 024
%0005 (00°00S) SE61T S8'08€ 01'8€ (00°000'1) 000 (00°000°T) sableyy BYO 665
%6b°90T  ST'beE 66°62Z 9TH60'S 9T'9BE'T (00°000'S} 00'¢ (00000°S) Sjeusjew puy saiddns B0 66Y
%8P TIT  £8'bLE'BT 00°0 L8YLE'8LT v9'8EE'TT {00°000°09T) 60'0 (00" 000°09T) Bvas puy em FSb
BETITL  L9WH0'TT 000 £9°vP0'2ST S6LI6'6 (00°000"SET) 000 {00°000°SET) se9 njeN  pER
%6e'es  (T1'vIL'€L) 00’0 68°68Z'1H0°T BTHET (00°000°5T1°T) 00°0 (00°000'STT'T) Apupsd STy
%EY'PET T2 'SLYBE 0T'$48'T 19°T09°TST LO'SLL'6E (00" 000'¥TT) 000 (00°000'¥1T) so(ddns =porsny 0T
%bLELT  SO8Y90T PELIE'S 10228 00°Z19°E (00°000'82) 00°0 (00°000'82) SeIIBS PIPRRUO] SRYI0  66E
01922
ax3 aduejeg sduRquniLy  saanjpuadxy  saunupuadxy J26png SIUIWPUIWY  Junowy Ja6png uondsag JUNoodY  JAGQUINN JUNOIDY
}0png pasaqunouaupn Suipueisino 2je(Q-0}-JE’d\ 33ed-01-IUOW papuawy jyobpng
so % jooy>s asoding [R1audD IPT pungd
$1 J0 11 2bed §Z0Z Aep
Wd £0:7 §202/Z1/9 Jwi /ajeqg pund Aq [0 Aq Alewwins S9INPPURAX3 JO JUSWEIS 91 :Aq pajealnd
pioymes) ejdey 198N uoijednp3 Jo pieog AJUnoy SUIVID pauya@ Do :dwep ajejdwal



%806 (1£719) 000 62°£90'9 0Z'H+8 (007089'9) 00°0 (00°0899) wowamay 23es 0T
%I10'6s  (66'SE8'T) 000 19°7%9'2 18°29¢€ (00'8/¢'y) 00°0 (00'824'y) Aunaag [epos 102
%itee  (96'Zv1'07) 00°0 $0°080°28 0b'9pe'L {00ece'ze) 000 (00'€22°2L) sabep B saueles YO 68T
018ZL
%Lrv6  (EL TV LTT) 8L'760'661 64"98Y'08Y'E 9T'TLG'PEY (oo'vzT'e06's)  (00°960°9€7) (00°STT'TLLE) uoqepodsuedl  DTLTL IEi0L
%6096 (00°TOF'b) 00°960'827 00665 000 {00°960°£ET) (00'960'821) (00°000"6) wawdinbg uopeyodsuely  6CL
%bTTLT  CTETTTT TTLESL 00°Z85€S £L°v00'7 (00°000°0S) 000 {00°000°05) sobieyy 1230 665
swez'l.  (T9'ELE'E) 9LULEY'E £9'280°01 668 (06°008°2T) 000 (00-00s'21) sjelaiey puy sayddns oHI0 661
%EYGHT  19°EST'66 LD TY 88'16v'/S2 8L116'21 (00°622'66T) ago (00°6££66T) sued spysA  ESh
%00°00T  00°0 ¥S'E68'8 9%°901'9E 9£°0L5'6 {00°000'st) 000 (00°000°S¥) soqnL puy il 05k
%EYOET  8SEIS'S ETObLT SKe9L’1T 0LTIL'Y (00°000'81) 00°0 (00'00081) suecugn £Eb
%867, (SL92'0T) 00°0 STTELVS 0S°E¥T°9 (00°000°54) 000 (00°000's¢) auoses  STb
Y%b'STT 61768 9E'161°Z £8L5T'p £€'201 {00'005'S) 000 {00°005°S) soyddng abeses ¥
%8109  (656v'2ST) 000 1H705°0€C b0"880°6Z (00°000°€8¢€) (00°900'8) (00°000°5L€) pnpEsaig b
%00°009  00'005°T 000 00°000'¢ 000 (00°00S) 000 (00°008) S3NAIBS PIPENUO) BYIQ  66E
%gETOT  TE6ST 00°02€2 16685 S£LTT (00°05£'9) 00°0 (00°05£'9) [orerL  SSE
%000 (00°00€E) 000 000 000 (00°00€) 000 (00°00€) sy 1S€
%E0'0s  (00°SHTL) 000 00°SST'L 00'+89 (00°005't'T) 00 (00°00S"¥1) $321A195 |EIUSQ puy 1eJpAW  ObE
%886,  (297609'T) pE'9EE’T PO'¥S0°S 06'69 {00°000°8) 000 (00°000'8) IPIYIA-SDINRS Heday puy dueuslurely  8EE
%00°06T  00°000°C OF'SEQ’T 09'p9€'S £0°18S {00°000°s) 000 (00°000's) 231uas Apune  6Z€
%9s'9.  (£0°98S) 0E'BSY £9°55H°1 0T'bS (00'005°7) 000 (00°005D) uonesunwiwed  £0E
%8926  (pb ESY} 000 95°E81 (T 2L606°E (00°cE1°82) 000 (002€1'82) ase)pay Lhodwy  ZTZ
900°0 (00°00Z'¢) 000 00'0 €00 (00°002'e) 000 (00°00Z'€) uonesuadwo) wawAoidusun  0TC
%990y  (0EEBT'Y) 000 0£/998C 08'9€ (poroso'z} 00'0 (o070s0°) aouaunsur jeusq 80T
%86've  (b8'859'92) 00°0 9T'LL6'E08 08°ZI0'tY (00°9£9'0€5) 000 (00'9€90€S) saueansu] [edpa  L0C
%9E'BS  (6b°¢H9) 00'0 15°¢06 S6'1ST (00°s55'1) 00°0 (00°sSS'T) duensurdyn 90T
%Lp06  (91°665'12) 000 #8'970°50C 09°0S£°67 (00'919'922) 00°0 (oo'919'922) wawamy Aes 0T
%zz'16  (szzre'on) 000 v£061°£0T ST/SE'ST {00°€05211) 000 (00°€0S2TT) Ayunoas jenos 702
%Z6'18  ((8'ET8'9S) 000 ET°0Lp'25T 909 T {00 ¥8Z'1E) 00 (00'+8T'v1E) sabem 3 soueles BYI0 681
%186  (17°6£9'62) 00°0 6£'T02'SZE"T TT0ES V61 (00°188°¥SE'T) 00°0 (00°188'v5€°T) ssasasng 9bT
%O0S'E0T  LE46¥'6 000 £€796£'082 PSHT'IE (00°667°1£2) 000 (00°662'1£2} (Shweypow  ZHT
%eb'ee  (09°S08'ET) 00°0 0762869 762869 (00°5£9'€8) 000 (00°s£9°€8) Jopangliosasdns SOT
OTLZL
ax3 dueleg spouelqUINOU3  saunyipuadxy  sasnypuadxy 126png SJUBWpUIWY  Junowy 336png uondnsag JUNEJIIY  JBQWINN IUNCIOY
wbpng passqunousun Bujpuesingo 2jeg-03-1e3A IJeg-03-YIUoK papuawy yobpng
30 %

looyos @sodind jesauas T¥T : pund

1 40 21 3beg 70T Aep
Wd E0:T 5202/21/9 Pwig/aeq pung Aq [qO Aq Alewiung saImyipusdxd Jo Juawsiels 291 :Aq pejedn)

piopmern) eidey :19sn

uoi3eInpy jo pJeog AJUno) auddun

pauyaq 197 PweN de|dwag



%9807 LY SOT'SE 6L'852'L 89'v81°09 98'618"F (00°"8EE2E) 00°Z0Sy (00°0v8"9€) sebieyd LU0 665
%09'z8  (01°96T) 000 90'1£6 $E'80€ (o1221'D) (o1°528) (00°z59) wawdopasg yexs/amas-ul - ¥Z5
Y%bF EPT  TLETZ'ST £5'189°0€ BI'ZEC'6T PET0L'T (00"00£°bE) 000 (00'00£'+€) slelaely puy sayddng B0 661
%0Z%e  (9GLIETT) 00°€68°6 91'6¥9'CT 65°690°¢ (z276S8'cY) (£0's¥9°0T) {S9p1Z'EE) sayddns jeuononasul - 62
%00°00T  00°000°C LT'S00T £L'%66 000 000 00°0 000 soiddns pooy  ZCb
%bt'se  (ObsbL'Y) 000 ' 066’8 SE'6EL (b8'8£2°ET) (vg'080°1) (00°959°2T) erey  SSE
%00°00T 000 SL°€69'LT ST'90€ ST°90¢ {00°0008T) 000 (00°000'8%) sweynsuol  80E
%00°00T €8°'161 000 £8°161 0€'91 000 00°0 000 uonezqeIs pUgAH - JuRway  L1¢
‘090 00'086'ZT 00°0 8Y°8TH'ET L2145 {8v°8EY) (8b'8et) 00’0 aueIpap RAoIdw3  TTE
%00°00T  00°80L 000 00°80L 00°0ST 00°0 000 000 asueinsuy [usg  80¢
%95eT  (€0bob'SzL) 000 0§'T02'v0T 14'169°8 (£5°509°628) TETESOF (s8'2€1°048) duemsut |epaly  LOT
%00°001  88'¢S 000 8878 26°S 000 00'0 000 axensur N 902
1zr'E £0°802'1L 000 66'0EL'bL S6°765'8 (96'225'€) {96°229'¢) 000 wewamy ;s YT
‘8S0°E L9°SLY'SS 000 S5°0SELS 298149 {82vs8'T) (89°pL8'1) 00'0 Aunass lewos 102
%{8°0ST  €6'650°LTE 00°0 9E'6LEDVE 95°115'60T (ev'61€'€29) (£6'966'92) (05°225£'96S) sabep m sauejes Y0 68T
%00°00T  £9°7S8'8 00'0 £9°258'8 96°ShE 000 000 000 Puuosad e3usD 79T
00EEL
%$5'69 (S6'L19'SE) 00°0 SO'ZTIE'TE £9°9T90T {00°0£6'9TT)} 000 (00 0£6°'91T) 0T8ZL leloL
%€0'65 (8682} 000 20°919 5948 (0o2v0’1) 000 (00°LK0'T) auepaly wAoIdw3  CTC
%00'0 (00's2) 00°0 000 00'0 (00'S2) 000 (00°s2) uonesuadwo) wawiodwaun 012
%0005  (00°0ST) 00’0 00°0ST 000 {00°00€) 000 (00'00€) ajueinsu jeweg 80T
%S 19 (9TTLE'TT) 000 v STL'61 10°%£0°T {00°860°2E) 00'0 {00°860°2€) aouelnsu] [eopaw L0
%96 (S9°0) 000 SE'8C ok {(00°'67) 000 {0062} uemsur 1 90¢
018ZL
ax3 asuejeq sadueiquunoug  saanjipuadxy sainjipuadx3y 26png sjudwpully junowy 136png uondizsag Junoddy  JSqUInN JUNOIZY

@bpng psiaqunousun  Guipuesang ajeq-0)-1ea)  I}eg-01-yuok popuauy 1=bpng

JO %
[ooyns asoding |Ru3UaD) IPT  : pung
p1 0 £ abed SZ0Z Ae

Wd €0:T 5202/21/9 BwiL/azed pung Aq [0 Aq Alewwns SSaN{puadxy JO JUBWNLIS 291 tAq pajeald

piopme)) ejidey SN

uonesnp3 Jo pieog Ajuno) audaoH

psuyaqg Ho sweN ejdwa ]



o9es'2L  (SL°BLS'S6E9T) OT'9P8'L80°Z OV 6ES’ELY'YS TT'656'978'S (szv96'9s6'zL) (STv9T'L86'8)  (00°00£’696°E9) 1343 }pung JoJ (R30L
%es s (SLBIS'S6E'OT) OV'9V8'L80°Z OV GES'CLY'YS TT'656'9Z8'S (sz'¥96'056'TL) (sz'+oz’c86'8)  (00°00£°696'€9) jmoL
%ES'Ls  (SL'8LS'S6£°9T) OT'9¥E'LBOT 0¥'6ES'ELV'PS  TT'656'9T8'S (ST'#96'956°TL) (sz'vor’z86'8)  (00°00L’696°E9) €0y
asT'sS  (EBVEV'EL0T)  SETIEPSL 18°28¥'59S SHIYSLST {66'8L2'e6E'T)  (66'8£Z°88E'T)  (00°000°S) 0019 1201
%000 {00°cEE’EEE) 000 00’0 000 {o0-eee’eee) (00°£EEECE) 000 pue] SIZ
%0Tbs  (£8°T0T'SEL) 78°905°6/9 PELEC06T 0T'SETIST (66°5p6'409'T) (66’SH6'¥09°T) 000 suawaacidwy Guppng  Z0Z
%06'86  (00°000'S) £5b58'vL 1y SHUSLE ST'L0P9 {00°000's5Y) (00'000'05Y) (00°000's) spapy €
00T9L
%T6'LL  (T6'TVH'O¥E) L5°66E'E YE6S0'¢L6T'T Y¥T'60STET (egoo6'ovs’t)  (€8°LSL'TT) (00"EPT'615°T) O0VEL 1101
%00°0 (00°000°€) 00°0 000 00'0 (00°000°€) (00°000°€) 000 sleusjely puy sayddns 12410 66t
%01'9s  (0£°Z90'TT) L65°66£°S 95'8££'0T 0v'(86'S (£8'002'52) (£8'002°52) 000 sayddns jeuondnaisul - 62F
%b8LL  (0FPIE'TS) 000 0b'588'€81 90°'TS0°9T (00'052'9£2) (00'zLe've) (00°8£8'191) s9PUabY J9qnd PO UM sPreque)  OTE
%Ip0s  (€€°THO'T) 00°0 £9'850'T £9°4TT (00°001'2) (00"006) (00’002'1) uonezyiqels pugAH - Jawaunay  LT¢
%60'TL  (89°5/6'C) 000 TEHLLE 85'€zT1'1 (00°0SL'ET) 00051 (00°00Z'¥T) SuedipRy s3hodwy  TTZ
%00'00T 000 00°0 000 000 000 000v8 (00°0v8) uonesuadwe) juewiodusun 0T
%E0'62  {00°002'7) 000 00006 00051 (00°001°E) 00°00€ (00°00t'€) Qouerrsu] [eu3g 80T
%E9be  (SHbes's) 00'0 S5'SL629T 60"9VE' YT {00°005°2LT) 0000222 (00°00£'v02) 2dueinsut @IpsW L0T
%ze8  {ET4E) 000 (8292 85'82 (00'00¢) 00°'sZ (00°52¢) uensul 3 90T
%LSv.  (60°0BY'LT) 00°0 16'692°15 15'626'S (00'05¢'89) 0005491 (00°005'58) wauwRmay ;s 0T
%8 YL (OP'ELYOT) 000 09'9L5'TY $9'504'y {00'052'85) 00°0S£°2 (00°009°09) Aunasg [epos  T0C
%z8'1,  (Of°660°F) 000 0Z'006'2 06'0£6 {00000'17) (00°000'9) {00°000°S) S13yDe3) NSNS payte)-uoN 86T
WOE'HOE  19°£0T'S 00°0 192092 STESET (00°005'2) 000052 (00°000'S) SIaydeal 3WVASGNS paYaD  S6T
%0L'€8  {06°826'ST) 000 01'120'Z8 EL80'TT (00°c00"86) 00'000°11 (00°000'601) sjuesissy [euogeanpy  £9T
%L6bl  (8L°066'H0T) 000 7T°605°219 85°950'89 (00°000°218) 0005282 (00°052'5%8) seypesL 911
%1608  ((9029'%) 000 £€°6L5'61 6L'165'T (00002'v2) (00°056'T) (00°052'72) Jopaug/iosmedng  SOT
[+ 1] 254
%01'98 (+6'£18°TTT} YE'TES'99 TLVLT'ETE'T L0°6¥S'9YT {00'szs’z09't) ©00 {00'5ZS'T0Y9'T) 00£€L =101
00EEL
ax3 aduejeg sajueiquunouy  saanjipuadxy  SSINYPPUIAXT yobpng sjudwpuswy junowy 3@6png uondizs3aQ JUNOJI3Y  JDQUINN JUN0DY
196png paltaqumoudun  Bulpueysang 218Q-0)-4Ba\ I)eq-0i-yjuow papuauy yebpng
%o
= 1004ds asoding |EIRua%) IPT  :pund
bT JO T abeqd §Z0Z Ae
Wd £0'T §Z0Z/21/9 :ouig fajeq puny Aq [qO AqQ Aletuwing S2InNJIPUIAX3 JO JUBWSIEIS 291 :Aq paeal)
plogmes) ejAey BE uoeonp3 jo pleog AJuno) U3 psuyag D9 euwen edway



spoload [213pa 100435

YT isimoL puny

00°0
(£5'£96'SSE Y1) SIJULIRg PUNJ PUR ‘S32IN0SIY JO SMOJUT P3G ‘SSNKIGe 1301
(62'529'65T) saunby  jejolL
(00°£bD’0Z8) uoREINP3 104 pagRulsY 136png SSSPE
pTIET'06 uoQeanp3 Jod paRSYy SSSHE
LPHP'0E 183, 0l - SIURIWNDUT 0ZTHE
{92'60E°09) JEDA JUBAND - SIdDURNWINILT OTIVE
(87'88T 90T rT) sqen1 |woL
(6£'€08'1€2'9) {10000D) senuaray 00582
(95°96+'608'¢) (lo3u03) suonet.dosddy 00182
000 PIWIRS T6ETZ
000 AUURULY SHeA ¥BETZ
00°0 SuoRPNPaq uaIun AP DBETZ
000 Aupgestq iqesn 0L£1Z
000 Hewsmiy 99€1Z
00'0 unoxy sbuines yueaH S9ETT
000 SS3UT (B304 3Aqesn PIEIZ
00'0 WOT/IN sigesn 79812
00°0 311 [oA Aqensn 19¢12
000 SIAIY PUY SUBLLYSILED 09€12
000 | sJauued 355U SSETT
000 10uR) 2qesn ESETZ
000 SUI 3] UUBIY S0RU0H 26ETT
000 [Q3aq uoureduwio) TSE1Z
00'0 sduag duiod 0SETZ
00’0 Aepa panun 6bETT
00'0 1U3PDIY Igesn 9pETT
000 25y - Bupuads xayy - eleq 1ajas SPETZ
000 Su] S13Ydea) jeuoieN WETZ
000 a1 Hqesn WETT
000 Su[ Jayoea) 0] 45 IbETZ
000 GRS PLIGAH Juawanay 2EETT
000 153p 12319 ATOP TEETZ
000 SUORNQIQLOT JUILBINRY 113344
000 uoRINPIE 2.21P3N ddA0IdWS 143 ¢4
oot x84 Aundas |enog 1743 ¢4
000 PIEGUN PUY PIRYLAIMA XL 3Weou] 01ETZ
(£6'¢86'¥9} ajgeAey SUN0Y 00v1Z
LS'EFE'SIE' YT $93JN0SIY JO SMOLING PALIRJa0 Pue SHISSY  |E0)
LS'EI6'SIE'DPT fassy  [eoL
£5°251 U3 SIA 0L 404 BALRS3Y 0L PBYD dx3 00961
95 L¥L YT (joQuo2) Spund JAIO OL S1agsuel DISHT
p1"1E2'95+"9 (jlonuaD) 183) JURLINY - STUNIPUSMX] 00S+T
9T'60EDY (102003) SDURIqUIADLT pR1EPINbIUN 00Zpt
95'€bS'621'8 sanUBADY pIteUis] 00T+T
00°0 SIUSWHLIBADE) JOIO WO ang 113281
{b6'L61"62) 23151 YUM UseD opIIT
9p'LLt jueg uf yses 0ETIT
souejeg Guipuz UORGUOSIQ JUN00DY JQUIINIUNOIDY
spaloud 1esspad |00W0S THT :pung
} 4o | eBEg STOT At
Wd 1T:1 5202/21/9 @wir/aeq PITHRLILING J294S BdUR|RE pazieweng 1Aq pagealy
plopmen) ejAey IIEN uofieanpy jo purog AJUNC) I ¥BYS Fueeg paulag 3o RweN ejdway



09'+69'T9

(60°c88°c2) %SL UL 90'bET'E0T (0g'12€'s22) 9£°55H'8L€ 9/°09£'91€ 014 1amoyuasiy 68TLY 00T
81'465'6S

000 %9667 ET2L59T (zzoob'0L} SE'LLE'YET LUEBE'SLT uoReaNnp3 |einy 8b1Lb 005
66°6TH'bS

000 %09°2 ¥9'9T9'79 (PO'S¥9'T) 89'19Z'€9 69°1£8'8 uogisinboy abenbue ysibu3 14 ¥ 10€
£0°0£2°28

(ov'8pe’'T1) %ZT'6S $5'00S 2k (£9°212'19) LOETTHOT 00°e84'1S Jo0YIsaLd UoREeINp] (RIS SP1Ly cI6
S5'EbS 29T

(e£'915°682) %8ELL LTI v (8z°SST7'€79'1) S5°T89'260'2 00'6£1'5€8'T 0/ Ssjuel9 - uoneInp3 |ePadsg 1LY 006
00°025'T

000 %00°0 00°028’T 000 00'025°T 000 o] sjuesd - uonesnpy [enads 32942 $68
TL566'€2

00°0 %4119 ETNL'0T (9b°£65°2%) 64°S0E’€ES L0°0TE'6Z NP3 8307 OL SueIS T UL iy (1198
19°249'v0P

(08'828°207) %1669 91°878'599 {60°778'965'D) LZop9'7IT' 99'266'208'T onp3 |B307 0L Sjueld T B[l \iavid 00t
00°000'€

(av'90€'21) %09°TL 6€°'SHT'LY (19'98‘8TT) 00°000'991 00°000°€91 onp3 (2307 0L Suels T SpIL 1Ly 010
L6'09€"p

000 %EETL vI'vRB‘EH (25'86T°60T) 99'780°€ST 69°12L'861 Jlseg - NP3 |RUOREIOA TETLY 008
000

000 126png oN 00’0 000 000 0070 SYPaID unypuadxy 08THY 016
000

00°0 196png oN 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 SUPRID B4NHPUCX] 08Tt 002
000

000 bpng oN 00’0 Q00 000 00'0 supa.) aimpuadxy 08THF 001
00'0

000 je6png oN 000 000 000 00'0 Spun,a3y SnNo3Ue}dst 0L1vb 6
00°0

00'0 396png oN 000 000 000 00'0 SpUNJ3Y SNOUR||ISIW 0LTb 010

INUIAIY JILIND pazijeay pazijeasun pazijeay AlA pajeWNS] |20l SjuaWIpuUIWY uondudsaq junoday 19

% /353 fewsblio
spslold [219P34 00YdS YT puny

Z Jo 1 2beg szaz Aew paymRQ

Wd S0:T §202/21/9 2wy /a3eq@ P31 SINUDIADY JO JUINLIIRG WIWNES INUINEY :Aq pajeaId)

plojmery) glARy BT} uonReINpg Jo pieag AJUNDY UMY pauysqg D9 :awepN syejdiual



0zZ'L8T'199°T

{ot'£82'00S) %80°9L TY'9SE656’T (ee"8¥P’EET’'9) $7'S08°T61'8 Y0°819'TES’9 TYT  tpungJod [gjoL
0T LBT'T99°T
(o1'€82'005) %80°9Z IY'9SE'6S6'T (e8'8V1'££7'9) $T'SOB'T6T'8 v0'8T9'TES’D 1ej0L
2L665'61
000 %9E°TS 26686 (o8 c1€'0T) L669'6T 000 =S ybnoayL |_Iapad BYRO 065L¥ A%
9L'ELS'Y
000 %6b 66 92'€C {00'059'p) 9L'ELS'Y 00'0 PV ueld andsay ueduswy YOvLb 00L
£0°762'80L
00°0 %66°£8 STTT9vZE (89°189'8££°7) E0E6Z'E0LT 00°966'v66'T PV Ue|d aNISAY UEdLIBWY obLt 286
9NnuaARY WBLINT pazijeay panjeaiun pozijead LA pajewnsy |e3oL Sjuswpudwy uondiLsag Junod2dyY 15
% /353 (eulblo
sPa{o4q |e13pay 100425 ZPT 1 pung
¢ 10 T abeg SZ0Z Aew pajielsq
IWd S0:T SZ0Z/ZT/9 sawiLL/a3eq Pa(ieaad SINUDARY JO JuUaLLIAE)S WBWIEIS dnUapey Aq poIeas)
plojme.]) elAey 3= uoEINp3 Jo pseog AJuno) UMY pauyaqg Do Pdwep aejdwaf



%g0'c8  (08'SB) 00’0 0z’ 1z 0099 (00°¢0s) (00°8¢) (00°69%) aouesnsu gy 902
%EbeL  (01°0£0°02) 000 06'91L'89 61°189'6 (00'¢t¢'88) (00z08'01) (00°s¥6'2L) wewamay aes  H0T
%ilge  (200161°21) 000 86°8£€°8k £2'508'9 (00°0£5'59) 000 (00'0£5'59) Aunass jepos 102
%bSTE  (55°182'6) 000 S6'SLE'Y 05'99 (os'2ss'eT) (00°005°T) (0s'250°2T) Si9Peal 23MASANS payniEd-uoN  BAI
%I15Te  (£9°SEZ'D) 000 Lrose't ST'EL (06'59%'S) 000 (06°59%'S) siaypesl :mnsqns payned  S6T
%0pbe  {0ST£9°Zh) 00°0 0S°ST0vTT 0E'+H9'ST (00°¢89'991) (00°000'21) (00°289'6b1) sibojolped psads  TLT
%868  (567081°95) 000 ST'186'96b 92'159°9L (o1°291°€585) (SSET6'ELT) (§5°8pZ'605) sjueysissy (euoneonpy €91
%6983  (ZZ'68€°Z8) 00°0 8L 1H2'081 Th'780°07 (00'1£1°€92) 000 (00'1£1'£92) seypes 91T
weiboid uonednp3 (edds  00TTL
Y0tz (82'2£0'T8¥) I#'8559 29'056'SPTT £5°652°96Z (1g'98s’ec2’c) (€£0°'v69°268) (8£'769'0¥8°T) weufiosd uoipnysur Jenbay  gOTTZ (WOL
%9926 (68°'£80'6) 00’0 TLLYRLE {19618 (09°19¢'¢8E) (09°192°8b€) (00'000'6€) wawdinb3 uondnasuy Bnbay  ZTL
wiebe  (Z6SIT'T) 000 SL'896'TT 000 (£9vL0'%1) (£9'+20'€) (00°000'1T) sjeuajely puy s3yddng JayiI0 66
%IL66  (LE6E0T) 16'69C [4:13: 431 SLLTT'9T (00'B¥1°5SE) (00°8¥1'5917) (00°000'061) sslemyos 1LV
%BE'P6  (18°E8L'€ET) 05°882'9 T£688°26€ S6°0£9'9% (€0'296'22Y) (zep15'90€) (1Levpott) s3yddng jeuononasul - 6
%00°00T 00'0 000 6L'SDE'ES £ezrL'or (6£°S0E'ES} (2¢'566'b2) (¢o01£°87) SIS PaPRIUC) JAYI0  66E
%000 {(00°000'+) 00°0 000 000 (00°000") 000 (06°000'%) PaYUID-UON - SHPL NS Jod spiuD  OLE
%00°0 (00"000'9) 000 000 000 (00"000°9) 00'0 (00°000'9) payILa] - $19yIe3) qns 104 spiu)  69€
%S08S  (96°98°C) 000 £1'58801 ¥6'bEb'Z (ET°052'81) (€1°05v'2) (00" 00£"9T) asedipapy Jakojdury  ZTC
%00°00T  00°C 000 006041 00°0 (00'00£'T) 00'0 (00°00£T) uonesuadwo) JuswAoidwaun 01
%ersy  (00'H61°T) 00°0 00°900°T 00901 (00"002'2} 00°002 (oo"00v'z) souemsu] ewag 802
%08'EL  (0£7166'8) 00°0 0£°800'8ET 69°€5L'TT (00°000°¢81) 000 (00°000'28T) soueinsuy 2w L0T
%we9es  (60°05) 000 15481 S2'61 (00°5€2) 000 (00°sE2) azueinsup 31 90¢C
%EP'E9  (96°T0H'0F) 000 £1'82L°2S 00°€92'TT (60°0£T°€8) {60°0ET°0T) (00"000°€2) wewariy NAs  POZ
%95'T3  (SE'$80°82) 000 ZT'SR6'bY 08°152°CT (05°690°€4) (05°695°5) (0000529} Aunoss lepos 10T
%00°00T ST'S09 000 S1'509 0T°E6 000 000 1.0] 12Ydea) ANSNS payned-uoN 86T
%00'00Y  ££'60T 00'0 ££'601 00°0 000 000 00°0 s13yoeal MAsANg paypad 56T
%5018 (00°b16°9T) 000 00°'9E€'2L 05°£0£'6E {00'052'68) (00'05Z'68) 000 sabem g sauepes 210 68T
%be'e6  (E1°69T'%) 000 £8'0EL'0S PZRLTL {00'000°5S) (00°000°k1) {(00°000'TH) sueisissy |euonyeanpy  £91
%6569  (S8'666'262) 000 S1'000°289 T€98'62T (00°000/086) 00°000°2L {00°000'250°T) sepeal  9TT
wesbosd uospnnsuy Jenbay  gOTTZ
ax3 duejeg sasuelqunduz  saumipuadxy  saumipuadxy 1hpng SjuMLpUBWY  Junocwy J2bpng uondiDsag JUNG2DY  JSQUINN JUN0IDY
wipng passqumousun Bulpuessing  93eQ-03-1BdA  1eg-03-UIUoW papudwy yebpng )
JO %

$399{0.1d |eiapag |oOYdS TYT :pund

G401 2bed $Z0Z Aep
Wd 60:T SZ0T/Z1/9 JBwLLfa3eq pund Aq [qQ Aq Alewiung sainjpuadxy jo JUawsajels 291 :Aq pajeas)

pioymen ejie)

uonjeINP3 Jo pieog AJuno) U39

psuyaq Jo Pswen ejduny



%00°00T 000 000 00°0ST 000 (00°0ST) 00’0 (00°0sT) auemnsuf uag 802
%1926  (09'9/5C) 000 0Z'00E'CE 06'¥9L'T (08'9/8'vE) (08'92€°6T) (00°005°02) aoueinsup [ealpsil  LOZ
wze've  (08'T) 000 09'tE 0Tt (ob'se) (o027} (00°s7) aouemsur 3y 90T
%8E'E6  (£v°9E6) 000 1TLIZ'ET IEEETT (b9'E5T'bT) (boes2'8) (00'004'S) wawamay A|s 0T
%wIb'68  (b'62€'T) 000 9p'€TT’TT V296 (0z'es5'zT) [(r>124] {o0"001'S) Auross fepog  10¢
%00°007 000 00°0 00'005°2Z 00052'11 (00"005°22) 000 (00°005'22) sabem 3 saueles 230 681
%Es'T6  {£6£80'ST) 000 £0°ZT0'E9T L9YE6E"Y (00°001°84T) (00°009°611) (00°005'85) |uuosRd adueping  £C1
uoddng JuspmiS JBYI0 0ETTL
%00"00T 00°0 00'0 TTTER'90T 00°'0D (TT1E8°90T) (zZz-1E8'90T) 000 sS0pURS YYedH  OTTTL I1230L
%00°00T 000 000 $6°081°1 000 (+67081'T) (+6°081°T) 000 azpay Réoldws  TTT
9%00'00T 000 000 $9'¥I201 000 (rov12'0T) +9'p12'0M) 00'0 svesnsur jeoipe £0T
%00°001 000 00°0 00°91 000 (00'8T) (oosT} 000 aoueinsu 21 90T
%00°00T  00°0 000 98'£26'e 00'0 (og'526'8) (92'576'8) 20'0 wawamy s 0L
%00'00T  00°0 00°0 $5'640'S 000 (v5'660°6) (¥5°60°S) 00°C Aunoag lepos 10T
%00'00T 000 0c'0 v o1 000 ($Z+rb'18) (VT obb'18) 000 {uuossag [eapan  TET
SIIAIIS YYEIH OTTIZL
%Lp96 {(60°06ED) 00'0VE‘VE 25'B6L'S8 00'0 (19°875'¥2T) (z6'90£°0T) (69°TZZ'YTT) weiboigd UOREONPT [RUONRIOA  00ETZ 12301
%00'00T  00°0 00°0 TS'ELE'8T 00'0 (z5'E26'81) T1e0'6 (bl v66'LT) juawdinb3 uoponisuy jeuonesop  0EL
%09z'¢8  (¢6'09E'%) 00008’y 00°6£0°ST 00'0 (£6°5£2°p€) {6°5€€"Y) (00'006°62) sjeusiel puy salddng Jswyio  66¢
%9666  (Z1'62} 00°0b5°62 00°05L'TH 00'0 (Tre1e’is) (¢1°266'5T) (56°92€'95) aemyos  TLib
weabold uopeInpy [euonedopn  Q0ETL
%ET'6L (66°ET9’9EE) 95'866'9 TYTLT'69TT oY PTS'L9T (¢eyeLT1o’t)  (T9ELE‘00T) (SETIVTIV'T) wesboud uoRednpy (ePAds  OOZTL 1=304
%SH(T  (89'T1L'6) 000991 6E'E6E 6€°E6€ (e0°s9L'11) £6'pSE (00-0z1'ZT} wawdinb3 voneanps (epsds  SCL
%0s5's8  (99'10T°€) 95°8EE’S ST'EVE'2T 0Z'L8€ (ob-e8€'12) (00°06£'TT) (ov'ce6'6) sjeuse puy saliddng 20 661
%I0'E (00°212°01) 000 00'ESE 00'0 (00"0s0'11) (00°000°6) (00°050°2) salddng reuopponasuy  6ZF
%00°0 (00 0s7) 00°'0 000 060 {co052) 000 (00°057) SIDNBS PApRIUDD B0 66E
%6996  (19°485) 00°0 6£°590'21 98’181 (00°059°£1) (00°000'%) (00'059°€T) 1dinb3-saaiases sledsy puy el 9EE
%0b'bS  (Z0°PES'SH) 000 86°0SH'VS 8E°096°TT {00°580°001) 00'S16°66 {(00'000002) sopuaby ajeaud yim spenusy  TIE
%00'00T  0£°0 000 ag'o 000 000 00'0 00°0 uoneZHQeS PUGAH - JuawaIRY  LTC
%ILEL  (E8'TZO'P) 00°0 LT'SDETT b3'16S'T (00"gze'ST) 00°0 (00°8ZL'ST) asedpa Jahoidws  ZTZ
%91°Z (9€°802°1) 000 ¥9'9Z 00°0 (oorseT'n) 000 (00°5€Z'1) uonesuadwo) wewioidwaun Q12
%8¢t {00°01S'E) 000 00°05€'1 00°00€E (oo 098's) 00°0 {co'098') dueinsuf jejuag  BOT
%506 (9£'808'52) 00'0 ¥9'285'9bC »00¥9'1Z (00°16E'2£2) (00°000°€) (00°16£'692) Soueinsu] @apa - L0C
weiboid vogesnpy jePads  0OZTL
dx3 aduejeg sasuRIqQUINDUZ  SaJnjipuadxy saamipuadxy 3abpng SJudIpudWY  Junowy 12bpng uondiDsSaQg JUNAGIdY  SIGUNN JUNOIIY
wbpng pasaqumousun Gujpueising  FeQ-03-ILIA  eq-03-IUOKW papuawy 1e6png
JO Y%

spaloid jelapad |ooyds T¥T  pund

G jo z 9beg szoz Aey
Wd 60:T §202/21/9 Pl /ayeq pund Aq [QO Aq AleWiLINS SaJNYPUIEXT JO JUSWNES 91 :Aq paiesdd
piopel) ejAey 1J95() uoRedINpE3 jo pieog AJUNoD SUIVD pauyaq D9 aweN ajejdwayg



%906 (€€7058') 00°0 99°0ST’ET BS'T6H'T (66°000'81) (66'82) (00°zzs'L1} Aunoss lepos  T0Z
%Ip'0.  (80°6K2'ST) 00°0 £0"£01°09 8v'969°9 (11°28€'58) rvee'n) (00'8208) sabem g soueles 1yI0 68T
%1628  (08'LbR'Y) 000 0Z7'152'sE 0p'90b' (00°660°0F) oo'e (00°660°0b) (S)umpioas 197
%60'6.  (££°69b'vE) 000 LT PLEDEY £0'98Y'PT (00°v+B8"p9T) 000 (00°p8'+9T) 1Buvosiag lopa  TET
weiboid uonesnp3 [eads  OTTTL
%119 (9€°818'00E) LT'E99'E 9T ELT'TRY 9ET6T'0S (69°+59's8¢) (TE06T'L¥T) {£5°¥9€'8ES) wesboig uoRPINASUT JBNGaY  OTTTL 190L
%000 (00'005'2) 000 000 000 (00°005°2) (00°00%) (00°0002) wewdinb3z say10 064
%00°0 (00"008'1) 00'0 000 00°0 (00'008'1) (00°008'1) 000 uswdinby uogesado weld 074
%S9 (LL'3vbbPT) 00'0 0£'529'6 00°009'6 (2p'pL0%ST) (eg'268°9%T) (r9'9£1'2) sobiey) soyi0  66S
%eTTL  (6Tzeo'se) 187€9 68'/6E'89 $6'969'C (50°850°¢6) (88'+£0'62) (£1°€8649) Wiawdojnsd Yeis/amss-ur - ves
%E09E  (£6729EET) 0+'S20’E 29'66b'y Z£79Z (66'¢88'02) (ez¢9z's) (9£°029'TT) sleusjely puy sayddng oyi0 66k
%zs'87  (8e'g1T'e) 000 29'eEqe’T 88y (00°005°%) (00°008) {00°000"%) [CICITR S
%ITEL  (62285'T) 000 19°91E"Y £5°8%p (ovv06'S) (ot'£9¢) (00°2£T1'S) a1eapay hoidwy  ZIT
%000 {00°062) 00'0 000 000 (00" 062) 00°0 (00062} uonesuadwo) watbAoidusun 012
%00, (00°0ST) 000 00°05% 00°0ST (00009) 000 (00'009) soueinsu [euaq 80T
%b9'68  {8r'€09°S) 000 75'96b'8% 61°£99'E {00°001'+S) 00'0 {00'001'S) Soueinsuy [@IPAW  L0T
%0£'s8  (Se°2) 000 S9°Zy 8T’y {00°08) 000 {00°0S) aouednsur . 90T
%b9'89  (8Z'H8L6) 00°0 0£'65£°07 E8ETL'T (85°Ev2'0E} (85°480°S} (00°651'S2) wowamay A|s PO
%Z6TL  (657079'9) 000 18'528'21 19°2E'1 oy 9rk'v) (0v'861°E) (00°8¥2'12) Aundas (eos 10T
%90°58  {09'95¢'21) 000 b 8’86 0070008 (00°00Z°911) (00°00Z"0S) (00700099} sabes g sauefes 2al0 68T
%iseL  (eTeos'h) 000 LLLETBIY 8THL0'CT (00°000°€97) 60°0 (00°000°€97) sayoeo) jeuonnnsul LT
%zr'18  (09'586%9) 000 0t '+T0°0E 09'TSL'E (00-0002€) 000 (00°000'¢€) (Syueppas 191
%E008  (£0°085'bT) 000 L6'6TH'8S 08°99¢'e (00°000°€2) 000 (00°000€2) Jopaug/iosmedns - SOT
wesboid uoipnnsui enbay  0TTTL
%65'¥8 (1T 0ST'ES) ZT6TLL €E'£00°¥8T 90'81£'SZ {9£°9£8"vbE) (92°3TH'19T) (00°594°€8T) yoddns JUSpMIS JOYI0  OETZZ I|M0L
%896 (2T62h) 000 ££°026°21 9EL8S’E (S6°6VE'ET) 50°059 {00°000°pT) sabuieyy 230 665
%00°00T 000 000 LHIETt 000 (VIgaixay] £5°581 (007005°21) wawdojanag yeisfeanes-ul - HTS
%BT'SE  (Eb£26'1E) TeILL 0Z'200°CT 0T'619'T (sg'859'1S) (s8'89'6) (00°000°Z%) sjeualen puy saliddns Bl0 66V
%er6r  (61'998) 000 18°E€C T9'EET (00°c08) (00°c08} 000 SIIAIBS PIYeNUC) U0 BEE
%00°00T  C0°0 000 SLPLE'T 000 (S¢pee'n) ST'STT (00r008°T) jrey  SSE
%0668  (£8'%62) 000 8'%29'2 124 144 (02°616°7) (0£'812'T) (00'002'7) asedpal RAodws  CTC
%00°00T 00°0 000 00001 000 (00'00T) 000 {00°001) uopesusdwo) wawkodwauny  01¢
Moddns jusapms 210  OETZL
axa Jduejeg saoueJqunoul  saunjpuadxy  seunpuadxy =bpng SjusWpuaWy junowy 3abpng uondiasag JUNODIY  JAqUUINN JURCIIY
0wbpng passquindudupn  GulpusIng 9)2Q-03-1Bd  Jeq-0I-tRUOK papuswy 3abpng
40 %

sy3afold |eiapad [ooYdS Y1 : pung

S Jo ¢ abegd 50T Aen
Wd 60:T SZ0Z/Z1/9 owi] /ajeq puny Aq [qO Aq Alewiwng S3uMipuadig Jo Wauele}s 291 :Aq pajeasd
plopmes)) ejAey uo3e3np3 Jo pieog AUNcd 3uIY pauyag D97 :PweN ajejdudy,



%rT'e8 (6T'T6V'LZE'T)  9T'60E0Y 69°LS6'¥8Y'9 vLETE'BO9 (vzosc'tes’s) (orz8v'199'1) (POTLS'TIT'S) |0
%pT'E8 (6Z'T6v'LTE'T)  9Z'6DE'09 69°LS6'yBY'D tL°€ZE'809 (yz9sc'ees’s)  (az'e8r'to9’t)  (¥0°1LS'TIZ'9) 1301
%90°6Z (00°000°9€) 000 95 LPL’YT 0070 {95 £¥£'0S) (9s'cyT’0T) (00"00S’0€£) g siaysues]  00T66 1EIOL
%90'62  (00°000'9%) 000 95°LbL'bT 00°0 (95°2¥20S) (9s°2v202) (00"00s'0g) o) palpu]  ¥0S
InQ sivjsuell  QOT66
%0L 66 (ST ¥IS'Y) 00’0 YL LEO'TTS'T ()] (69'109'9ZS'T)  TI'EOV'68 (00°500'919°1) Aenno jmide) aEnGay  0OT9L 1MIOL
%00°00T 000 000 9£°09£°980'T 00'0 (9£°09E'380°T) (9g°88¢’8eT) (00°z£0'856) juawdinby uonerdg weld 024
%9686  {SI'¥95'%) 00°0 BELL9'SEY 000 (g5 THT0vP) 16169212 (00°££6'¢59) uogannsuo) Buiping  90L
Aepgng jeude) Jenbay 00I9L
%00'0  (00°000°S) 00'0 00'0 00°0 (00°000°s) 00°005C (o0"005'L) uopepodsuel]  QTLZL Ie0L
%00°0 (0o"000°s) 00°0 000 00'0 (00°000'S) 000 (00°000'5) sabieyD $BPO 665
%00°00T  00°0 00'0 000 000 00'0 00°005'Z (00°005°7) SIBUMO ADIYIA YuM Spequod  STE
uoeyodsuel] QTLZZ
%00°00T 00°0 00'0 88°¢TIS’T 00°0 (88'¥15'T) TT'SBYT (00°'000°V) wesBoig UOREINPT |RUONEDOA  DETZL €101
%00°00T  00°0 000 TR 000 (8p°pEV'T) 75°595°T {60'000°E) uswdopasq yeys/omis-ul S
%00°00T 000 00°0 ob'08 000 {or08) 09616 (00'000°1) Aol SGE
weJibo.1d uoiyedINp3 |RUOIILDOA OETTL
%L 18 (12'9£8°50T) 08'620°Y vIVILELY ££°629'89 (s9'0£9°08S) (00"0zZ¥'91T) (s9°012’vSP) weibosg uonednpy (epAds  OTZTL (€01
%ZE69  (S0'SLS) 000 S6'v7S'T 00°0vZ (00'00Z'0) (00°0001) (007007'1) ssbieyd sopo 665
%s8Hy  {19°F2H'S) 00°0 $0°800°0% 00°870'1 (S9-zep'st) (00°00€°07) (s9°ze1's) swdoEAsq yeisfeamss-ul  +TS
%6TS6  (66°€80'T) 08'620°T 12°988°0C TT0b6'61 (00°000'€T} (00005°22) (00°00S) sjeuie)y puy saiddns B0 661
%98, (00°0Z8) 000 00°08T°T 00°0£L {00°005°1) (00'005) (00°000'1) SOOISS PAPIC) BYID  66E
%ee T8 (1709E'E) 000 6L°6£9'F1 9£°SE8' {00'000'8T) (00°000°01) {00'000°8) ARl QSE
%00°0 {00°001) 00’0 000 000 (00'001} 0070 (00°00T) sabiey) |Rysad  8HE
%00'0 (oorooT) 00'0 000 00°0 {oo'00t1) 00°0 (o0 00T) 1dinb3-s9a1es Jiedey puy adueudiue  9EE
%90'06  (S0°06'21} 000 56°6£0°411 0§°856'2 (00'000'0€T) (00°000'0¢) (007000°09) s3ppuaby ajend yum speua)  CTE
%I0eL  (68'9€T'T) 00'0 85°SL0°E I8BLE (eyTre'y) (£¥°81) (00b61'b) asenpaly shojdwy 7T
%00°0 (002£T) 000 000 000 (00°2£T) 000 (002€T) uonesuadwo) wawAaidwaun  0T¢
%ez9es  (00°STT) 000 00°009 00'0 (00'st8) 00’0 (00°18) oueinsy |z 80T
%6168  (ZTTH8'S) 000 8L°L61'8Y £0'L0b'y (00°050°4S) 000 {00°0v0'4S) 2duesmsu eaipaw  £L0Z
%05'88  (026) 00°0 08°0L 08¢ {00'08) 000 (00°08) uensur oy 90T
%weccL  (S5'SET'S) 000 8R'185°41 w0t (b232'20) (Ev'84L) (00°696'12) wswaigy A5 ¥0¢
wesboid uoneonpy jedds  pzZZL
ax3 ssuejeq saoueiqundug  saanjipuadxy  sadnypuadxy Pbpag sjuswpudwy junowy 3abpng uondipsag JUN0JDY  J3QUINY JUNOIDY
26png  pasoqundusun  Gulpueising IPeq-o}-iea 91eg-0)-jAUuoK papuswy ye6png
JO %

5399{0.d (e5apad [00YdS YT i puny

S Jo  abed szoz Aep
Wd 60:T S20zZ/21/9 owyy/areq pung Aq [qo Ag Alewting saunypuadx3] §o Juswanels 297 :Aq pajeasr)
piogmes)y ejdey UISN usnesnp3 Jo pieog AJUN0D 3UIBID pauyag D97 :aweN Ijedwdy



%yT'E8 (6T TI6V'LZE'T) 9T60E'DS 69°LS6'VBY’'9 ¥L'ETE'909 (presc'zes’'s) (0z¢8t199’1) (Y0O'1LSTITY) E4 pund Jod |01
ax3 aouejeg sasuRsquunaug  saunjipuadxy  saunyipuadxy y6png sjUBWPUSWY  jJunowy 326png uoQddSag JUNCIDY  JIQIUNN JUN0ddY

pbpng papqumusun Gupuesang  3QRQ-03-1234  33EQ-0)-LJUOK papusawy Jefipng

JO %
spofaid jeiapag [0oyds YT pung
5 Jo & abed STO0T AeW

Wd 60:T SZ0Z/21/9 1wl faed pund Aq [qo Aq Aleunung sainjipuadxy JO JudLNRS 291 tAq pajeas)
pauyaq D91 :eweN lepdud L

plogmes] ejdey BT uoiEDnpg Jo pieog AJUNo) JUIID



00'0 epEED leqUe)  E¥T 1mje30) puny

(or'osz’sTT'TY) 92uejeg PUN PUF ‘SIUNOSIY Jo SMORUT PAUAS] ‘SIRIIIGELT (B0L
(oz'T0E'ETOT) sopnby =m0y
00°000°00€ 195 JSU[-UON JO LoneRdQ 104 PIPILS] 33bpng < - -DLSYE-ELT
(v DBE'Z62°E} 135 JSUJ-UON JO UOhNsdQ 104 PRPIISSY = = -0/SPE-EVY
00'¢68'¢61 B\ J0ld - SIIURIUWINILT - - -0ZTPEERT
(9£'818°€T) 483, JUBLIND - SDNBKUINOUT - = -OTTHEERT
(97°896’S0E’6) sSpunqern w0l
(9T 165"€EES'Y) {10QuoD) SaNUAASY - - -DDSSZ-EVT
(00°60Z°2LL'Y) {j00u0D) suoneydosddy - - -0018Z-EYT
000 jqusg uoluedwo) - = -TSETZ-EYT
000 3y aqesn - - -THEIT-EVD
00°0 SUT JByoea) 0) 19 = - -TPETZ-EbT
0o SUONNQLILCY JBWIGRY - - -DEETZ-EMT
00°0 USHINPRQ 3.ePajy 33A0idw] - - -STETZT-EP1
000 xe| Apmoes (enos = = -02E1T-EHT
(00891} dqeieq QUK - - -00TTZ-EbT
9¥0LZ'6TTZY SIUNDSIY 40 EMDIND PILDS] PUE NISSY  JN0L
9P 0LT'6ZT'TY a8y (0L
85'65E'bTE Y (1017U0D) JEAA WSLND - SHIMIPUBUXI - - -00SPT-EbT
9LTR'ET (lonuos) SsauRIqUINIUT PAREpINbIun - = -00ZbT-€pT
00'602°2Lb'y SaNuATY PAIBWAST - - -0OIbT-EbT
00’0 SBLULLIBACD IR0 WL ang - = -DEFTI-PT
00'0 3jqeAZ03Y SWNCINY - = OTHIT-ERT
£1°£89°L0E’E 33STUL YIM YseD = - -ObITI-EXT
66'661°1 pueg uf ysed « = -OETLI-EPT
dumeg uoRdLDERG JUN0dY ASqQUInN WnoXyY
€3)e) [RQUA) €91 pund
140 1 3bed ST0Z Aew pUNy Qns g pund
Wd 1€:) 5Z02/ztfe  aunpjaeg Punj-gns pue puny Ag 322ys dua|eg Aq 138YS 3dUgeg :Aq paiRasD

plopmen) ey HE UonEINP3I jo pueog AJuUno) ausug pauyad 7o) eweN eygdwsl



(S6'85S°TE0'T) %LE TOT (9Z°Z8£'19) (9T°T16S°EESP) 00°602'TLY'Y 000 00°60Z°TLY'Y E€VT :pung Jod [e30L
Boo %000 000 OO0 000 000 000 Eg
000 320png ON 000 000 000 000 000 SETSIEI T EIE ) 0086w
TEZ 1o EC0t)  Y%ESZet (Ot BIb tpl) (OEGLEac0v) OO TLIFPEGCE 000 U0 TIFEBL £ INTWNEIA0D vH303d 1101 ODOZYF
OC6bF ¥e) 560 £81 (EC €58 2D) (ECEP16) 00 098 8% 000 000988k JUI0 - ¥asn Vil
{01°880°2b2) %06'8ET (££'V06T£2) (££'026'0L6) 00°970°669 000 00°910°669 1sepjeag A4927
00’0 %000 00°72E'10¢ 00°0 00°ZeE'10E 000 00°2Z£°10€ SoQIPOWWIOD ¥ASN r48 024
(LE+28'TSL) %Y TET (0E'282'824) (0£'566'2£62) 00° €122 000 00°E€TZHH2'T {ouni-puoRIas 144917
B00 081 06 TZ050° 1 6L 220 1E) OO0 088 ¢t 000 D0 088 CE ~—3955INNIL 30 31vVIS V101 DO0OF
000 %81 96 120521 (6C ECT TE] 00088 ¢t 000 00088 ¢t FIIAIES Pood (005 Deaov
TZe loT6) 9096 OEBLT G5 GOLZIL) (GEGOESIL) 00000 T 000 00 000 ¥ ~STINIATY VOO0 53H10 Tv10L 000VD
000 190pTd ON 000 000 000 000 000 SPUNy=Y 5 OLTee
(T e61'6) %96'0£8T T (SS'60€°£1T) {S5°60€'81T) 00°000°T 00'0 00°000°1 pause3 3sa59U] OTTHE
oo YIPOE  ¢Poo8s 06  (QUGLEBDEJ O0BIGVPL T o000 OUBIG VPL T S3JIAYIS INT9UND J0d S2DdvHD 1v10L O00EP
000 %%E0 ok B0 119502 (26158 561) 00£9Z 00% 000 00°£9¢ 00% SajeS aMe) ey C7GEY
000 %18 S50 ¥t (sb'808°2T) 00°'62€'£51 000 00°625'LS51 1SBe3.g WOlJ W] £25¢€p
000 %S 6L ETE'LT (8£°£12°89) 00°THS's8 000 0014558 SHNPY-SUWARY Loun] 4413 4
000 %8HbT 60'bET'62F (16'059°T) 00°'582'10S 000 00°58£°105 USJp(IY)-SIUBWARH 4oum Teset
INUIAY JUBLIND pazjjeasun pozieay AlA pajewnsy [e10L SuRWpUBWY as3 [euibuo
e1191948) |enus) €T : puny
140 1 abed STOT Aep pung qns Aq
JUDLDIRIS ANUDADY
Wd €1:T S20Z/21/9 :awil /ejeg punj-qns Aq S3NUIAIY JO JUAWNAS 297 :Aq pageas)
PIOMEID ARy B uonednpy Jo pJeog AJuno) eussly pauyaqg J91 :3WeN Nejdwa)



%IT't6  (99°0€0'vZY) 9L'918'ET 8S'6SE'VTEY L£9°PL0'86Y (o0'saz’teL’y) 000 (00°60Z'TLLY) (321 pung Jog |20}
wITT6 (99°0£09Z¥)  9LBIS'EL S56SEPZEY | £9¥L0'86F  (00°60Z°TLLY) 000 (00'60Z'zLL'Y) =0
%ITT6 (99°0EQ0°bZY) 9L 'SIR'ET 85°6SE'VIEY £9°VL0’86Y (00°60Z°TLL’Y) 00O (00°60Z°TLL'Y) {301
%IT'T6 (99°0E0'PT¥) 9L°8IR'EZ B85'6SE'PTE'Y £9°vLQ'B6Y (0060Z‘TLL'Y) 000 (00°60Z°TLL'Y) VMRS pood  00TEL (B20L
%6£18  (96°€8E'8G) T8LT6'S [£4(3 14244 £Z2°69S (0o°125'82S) 000 (00°1£5'8ZS) jJustudinbg aamias pooy  OTZ
%€es'98  (S0°808) 00°0E8 S6°19¢'p §5°29 (00°000'9) 000 (00°000'9) sabieyd PYI0  66S
%00'00T  £F'1 00'0 1 000 000 000 000 uossiwwoe) s;sisnyL 0TS
%b6'16  (10'2€0'T) 16'S20°€ 80°0pL'8 000 (00'86£'21) 000 (00'g6L'TT) sfeudey puy saiddns g0 66k
%000 (00°zzE'10€} 000 000 00°0 {00°ZZE'T0E) 000 (po'zze'108) Sapowwo) - epsn - 69k
%L TIT  00°0SE ST'9¢Y 18°€£8'C 000 (00°000'€) 000 (00°000°8) s9|ddng axyo  SEV
%05'66  (£0°906'BT) 00'0 26'865"16L°E L¥'B1S'88H (00°S05'018°E) 000 (00°505°018°E) SIIIISS PAYIRILOD BP0 66E
%6881  (pI'118) 00'0 98'88T 62°65 (00"000'1) 000 (00 000°T) pAelL SSE
%00°0 (00°000'5) 000 000 000 (00°000's) 00°0 (00"000s) Suwoy puy Asuenels ‘Sunuud - 6bE
%00'0 (00°000°€) 00°0 000 000 (00°000’E) 000 (00°000°€) sabey) |esag  8PE
Y%EY'EPT  00°00Z'ST $8'BSSET 9T TH9°0F 11°82€"C {00°000'5€) Bo0 (00"000°'s€) 1diNb3-5391uss eday puy dueudlue 9EE
%se'sz  (8T2S8'Y) 000 I ANAZ 3 00°0 (00"005'9) 000 (00°005°9) uopesunwwio)  L0E
%1978  (6£'94) 00'0 1Z°EPS 10'89 (00°0z9) 00'0 (00°029) aseapan hodwy 212
%00°0 (0o'0g) 000 00'0 00°0 (000g) 000 (0008) uonesuadwo) juawAoidwaun  0TC
%00°001 000 000 00051 00°0ST (00°0ST) 000 (00'05T) durinsu] [eusg 80T
%0z'96  (00°0SE) 000 00'058'8 00°SSL (00'002'6) 00°0 (00°00z’6) ajuelnsuf [eapeW 0T
%00'96  (090) 000 byl [ 4 (00'sT) 000 (00's7) ueinsur 1 90T
%Z6'68  (ZE'E6Y) 000 89'66E'F 96°6¥5 (00'£68'p) 000 (00°€68't) wawaigy e H0T
%91'68  (1£°782) 000 69°ZZE'T 187067 (£0'509'2) 000 (00'509°2} Aundag epos 10T
%26'68  (09'€ETV) 000 0b'99L'¢E 0802y (00"000'2h) 000 (00°000°2%) jBuU0siad jeduRp 29T

00TEL
axgy Jvueijeq saduBIqWdUg  sadmyipuadxy  saxnypuadxa whpnag sjuswpudwy Junowy P6png uonydPsa@ JUNOIDY  JSGINN JUNDIDY
whpng paqunoweun  Guppumsing  3jeQ-0}-4e9)  2ILQ-01-LRUOKH papudY
3O Yo

eLIjaje) jedjus) €T I pundg

140 T 3bieq SZOZ AeW -
Wd 0€:T ST0Z/21/9 Pwig/ajeq pung Aq [qO Aq Alewtnwing $3impuadx3 Jo Juawalels 91 ‘Aq pojeasd
plopmes) ejAey RSN uoReoNpI §o pieog AJUNo) IUSAID psuyag 397 ewey 3ejdway



spofoud lmydes uoneanpy  LLT  iSIRIOL puny

000
(Z6'9€6'6LL'EE) VuUL|EY PUN4 PUt ‘SIUN0SIY JO SMOYU] PALAIQ ‘SSRNIqe] 1oL
(£2°895'828°2T) seqinba pRoL
12°650'SbLET poubmsseun - - -0006E-LLY
(00" 115°580°T) S9500IN¢ JBG 104 PIPLISHY = = -0BSPE-LLT
(08" 1Z+'vS6'ET) 313 - spafoud |ende) Jod pIpLasHY - 31 -S8SPE-LLT
(b2 v61'88€°0T) JRIA 10U - SIOULIGUINILT < - -OTIVE-LLT
(00" 0055w 1) 183 1UBLIND - SeoUeIqUINILg - - QIIEELLT
{65 89€‘TS6'ST) SenlIge|T el0L
(00°€bS'sE) saxe) Apadaig wanbuisg passjag - - -GhEET-LLT
{00°86'0£2'T) saxe) Auadosd weung paispq . - -OVBET-LLT
{65°t22'10€e} (tonuog) sanuaasy - - -p0SBZ-LL1
{00"059°2BE") (10.0ua3) suageudo.ddy SR 1]4:72774
00'0 afqeded QUNOY =~ -0011Z-4L1
T6'9EG'GLL'EE $I2UNOEIY JO SMOLING PRUIJDQ PUE DISSY  [R101
T6'9E6'6LL'EE nassy |eo0L
£6'706'2€0°¢ U3 S4A J0U 104 3asasaY ) PEYD dig < - DO9PT-LLT
09°081'SHE (1oW0D} JeaA JuBLN - SSINYpUSOX3 - = -0OSPT-ZLT
00°00S"SHT (jo4unD} S20URIGWNIUY PRTRPINDIUN - -QOZHT-LLT
00°059°78¢'2 SaNUSAIY pIlewRs3 - -00TPE-LL1
(00°202°SE) ey ApadoLg jqe5)|0IW) 104 3IUBMO|RY - - BISTI-ZT
00'05+'20€"1 91qeAPdaY Saxney AJadald - -00STI-{LT
0o 3JqRAIIFY SJUNEINY = = -0TIT-ALT
SE096'109°¢1 28)STUL YHM YSED - - ObITIeuLT
uejeq uondusag Junoxay 43qWINN Juncacy
spafosd jepde) uojesnp £LT i puny
T jo 7 96eg 520z Aew pun4 gng g pung
Wd ¥0:Z SZ0Z/TT/9  sBwuL/aea Pung-gns pue puny Ag J9Ys Idujeg Aq 199yS dueeg :AqQ PRI
plogme elhey iesn uogeanp3 4o paeog Ajuna) ausasn paLsaQ 597 eweN weKwa)



€9°TLT'8T) %%EL'86 Iv Ly 98 (6s'ZzT'T0E L) 00°059'£8BE L 00°000°000°9 00'059°28E% =301

Tvisl (T0 56556
- “PEL L
(P1°L9L°1T) %0£°699 (+0"058°€6) (PO'098'ETT) 00°000'0¢ 000 00'000°0C palle] 1sa43jur 019844
TeP¥Iv¥S) Y6998 TV ZIO LY (B85 Ce9581'Y) OUUS9Z5E L ooy OUOSTZ9EY ~SIXVL IVOOT IVI0L  OUOOP
000 GotE ¢Sl (19695 1) (09695 F) 00000 000 00000 5DX7 yueg (&g
000 %¢S 00T (059) (05°9SC°T) 00052°1 000 000ST'T 19UJQ saxel Jo naIT ul Jusulied £9T00
(6079€1) %6761 (16'¥¢6) (T6'¥26°'T) 00'000°T 000 00°000'T AJ|OM |ed07] soXe] Jo N3l Ul JusliAey 2910
(TeL€) %92'L11 (1+°09) {Tb'0TH) 00'0SE 000 00'05€ VAL $9XE1 JO N3I] Ul SusilAed 19104
(68°101) Jjoopng ON (Z9'8EL°TT) (2S°SEETT) 00'0 00°0 000 Saxel an-}id 0ST0
(6£°665) %ST 18T (16°580'9) {16'989°CT) 00°005°2 000 00°00S°L Ajjeuad B 3sa4suL [0 410, -2
(I1'61£'T) %%ST°56T (b2'099°9) (bZ'099°ET) 00000°Z 0070 00°000°£ 331D YnduD 0ETOP
00'0 %098 0Ll (ogzy) 00°0S 000 00°0S Addnjueg uonds|jo) 3SR SCT0b
000 Yol L€LT (99'/65°91) (S9°L60°6€) 00'005°2C 00°C 007005°'2C 1e9), I0L4-5U0i||0)) S,38)5ML | Qc10v
(0£°0CT'Y) %00'€8 Lb'08T'See (£5°6b2°660°'T) 00'000°S2¢°1 000 00°000°SZE'T Xe] Ajsdold juanng oT10v
SNUAY JUILNY pazijeay pazijeaiun paziieay gL pajewnysy €30l  SJUSWpUBLIY 1s3 [eutbuQ
s 231014 fe3ide)) uonednp] 174 i pund
T 40 T abed STOT Aep punyg gns Aq
JUSLLIIILIS INUDADY
Wd €€:T S20Z/TT/9 LWy /aeq PuUN4-gns Aq SSNUAASY JO JUBWIL)S 291 Aq pageai)

Plojses3 ejAR)) a5 UOIJEINPT JO PIROY AJUNOD FUIBID pauyaQ 397 eWeN jejdwa)



%¥9'9 {0r'696'968'9)  00°00S'SPT 09°08T’SHE ¥8'v59’'8 {(o0'0s9’28¢e’2)  (00°000'000’9)  (00'0S9'Z8E’T) LT ipund Jod (&0}
%t9'9  (OV'696°068°9)  00'00S'SPT 09°08T'SPE ¥8'p59°8 (00°059°28€’2)  (00°000'000°9)  (00°0S9°£BE’T) [®0L
%%9'0  (0V'696'968'9)  00°00S'SPT 09°08T’SPE 8’59’8 (oo0s9'28e'L)  (00°000'000'9)  (00°0S9°48E’T) |=moL
o%p9'9  (0V°696'068'9)  00°00S'SHT 09°08TL'SYE P8'YS9’8S {oo'ns9‘z8e’Z)  (00°000°000°9)  (00°0S9°28E‘T) 00ET6 w10l
%000 (00°000°055) 000 00’0 000 {00°000°095) 00°0 (00"c00’09S) uawdinb3 uonepodsuer] 677
%00°00T  00°0/8'%2 000 00°0£8'v2 000 000 000 0070 wswdinbg ssveunuel LT
%64 b (6bv92'522°9} 00°002'29 15'589°8¥Z 00°+26't (00°0S1°165°9) {00°000'000°9) (00 0ST'165) swiswanroidwy Suippng  £0Z
%6289  {16'bLS'TT} 000 60'S26'FT 8°0€T (00°0059€} 000 (00°005'9¢€)} uossiwwo) saAsnil - QIS
%0579 (00°000°64) 00°00£’8L 00°002'St 00°005'€ (00°000'002) 000 (00°000°002) spaupry  HOE

spaford [eyde) uoneanpl  DOST6
ax3a souejeg saduURIqUMOU  sadnypuadxy  ssunyipuadxg 196png SQUIWpUdWY  junowy 3=6png uonldiISa JUNOVY  JSqUINN RINOIIY

Pbpng  paudquindusun  Guipueysing ajeq-o3-Jesl 3eqg-o3-yauonw papusuly wbpng

30 %
spolo.d |epde) uoneonpz £LLT :pung
T 4o 1 3bed 520T Aewt

Wd 20:Z S202/21/9 duwLL/a3eq pund Aq [qO Aq AlRlwng S34nipuadxy Jo juawies o001 iAq pajeai)
pIoiMeL) BlABY 198N uoREonp3 Jo pleog Ajuno) auaaun pauyaqg 397 :swep 23ejdwsy



u) pauiny Hodal Aey Jajje palds||od SJUNOWE =441d AVIA

0 0 €T v0v 042€ 0 T0¢SET 08¢ L{A44 8SCE {143 08EY 0SLL 09€ZT 099871 0950C 099¢ 16°9TC €85 6L S9'1ZveE 89°88LT | SIVIOL
SNOTIVD SNOL SNOL Sg1 Sg1 Sa1 Sa1 SNOL # S1vVO SA1 S8 Sl S8 S8 587 SNOL # # SNOL SNOL
T¥6v0T 0667 3410 AVW
098'8 8T El44 00S'€T 08S 90'T¢C 0s 69 A £9°TYT 43
S8 6€L
08T'T ¥9°S 1144 087'C 090°0T 0877 072 9Y°'S 81 Ix4 8'SYT €69 [X4
0Z0'% 080T 097 44" ST vE LO°LET LEL 14
079y 443 867 077’6 6E'S 114 87 L9°LET 9'Ts SC
ov9's 0Z¥'? 79°9 i Ly 657CET 98°9L 1Z4
076’6 6'T 891 00€'ZT 089 66°LT vE 6% 8561 ¥9'TST 134
8ET £L0T
08T'T 006'S 08E'6 00E'T 0Ty TO'ET 8T 9¢ 8T'6ET 88'69 0C
006'€ 09€'ZT 148 144 213 TL°ToT SE'T9 6T
08Tt ovr'TT 1434 91 e L°L9T L'y 8T
089'8 10°C SLT 099°T L09 T€ L€ £6VET 8°LL LT
068 70°E ST oct 096'¢T 000T 60T 144 09 TL98T €0°98T o1
S8°T (34
09L°C 08y T 08701 086 (24 idc 1€ 6C°TYT 14 €7
€0°¢6T ov6's 6T TLT 66°CT LT ST LvCTT 9LCL [4
097'C 80'% 1€ 09001 159 ST £E OV'0ET 8TvS 1T
0zY's EV'T 0T £0C 000€ oT's 8€ 134 79°T1C 85°99 0T
006'0T 00T 'vT 09€'T 65761 67 Jag 78°807 68871 6
LEO 67
00T'T 080'0T 00€'T 9 114 6C v6'STT Y1'EL 9
060'T 0Tv'T 08¢ 007'C 09T’ OvS'T vO'TT 14 T€ CE'SPT LE'TS S
T°T1Z 009'C OVE'8 S0°0T 67 6€ TS'GET 90°8% 14
09T'6 007'€ 079°C 67 e 98°181 1078 €
09871 6T 69T Ove'0T 08€‘T S6'TC €€ (34 6/°50C LELYT i
S10)0A
i IERIA S s RIEERSIIC JTI pajutey i YOLV | LHOIIM | INAOD| 1TI0 SSvyd NOILVLS STIANNS
“ALLNV o a sugq \.mt:D /SfuE) /st oummcwo LHOI'T 1avy THILL THLL aasn LIvd | WATY | 'dNO 000 | JILSVId MALIOD ONWId | 'sngd |savo1 o NOL
i ! 1 ! TISNVIL I1va
aisn pajess /NIL

J1SVM alNOS ALNNOD IN3IIYO




£0'68C LL'9S GE'EY GT'8€ vL'TS 96°L6 1V10L1 ANVYD
16'8 16'8 SANId 1SIM
LS'TY €L°8T ¥8°2¢ INIIYO 1SIM
9T 9T°L ¥8'8 NMOLYINIVM
66'TT 8€'9 19'S JAISANNNS
19°€T 18°'S 8L SIINVT “1S
Sty rAN €€'6 O3NOoY
6T°L 6T°L MNVE3IH0
vS°€T L6'Y CE'T <T'L a1YNOQW
vS b 6 LE'S S6'6 M33YD ISHOH
11°9¢ €S'ET 8571 AY¥VN3H 1VH
ST'6 ST'6 INOLSAIYD
96°6C vezT 29'LT sngaa
GS'6 656 YOHONY SSOHD
619 619 SONIYdS VI
LIET rAN:) SS'L NOLAIIIVE
v9° v 20°€T 29'6T NO.14dVv
V10l AVAIYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM AvVasini AVANOW YIINDD
9202/9/9 seoe/s/9 Szoe/v/9 szoe/e/9 szoz/e/9 GZ/T/9 40 XIIM

AVAd ¥43d SNOL HO1IOVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAAD




99°S8¢ ZT'19 vS6v 90'C€ TO'EY €6'66 1V101 ANVYD
90'€T 129 G8'9 SANId 1SIM
v ov vy°0¢ 0z IN3IYD 1SIM
LT 918 90'6 NMOLYINTYM
98'TT LE'L 6ty AAISANNNS
88°/ 88°L SANVT"LS
CT'ET G9'S L't ok [T [o}!]
L L MNVEIHO
€0'TT L2's 9,'S di1vNOa>N
LT £9'9 S G0'0T M33YD ISHOH
86'€C 8€'TT 9'2T A¥VN3H 1VH
6¢'ST €9'9 99'8 INOLSAIYD
78'8¢ 66'TT €8'9T ) N LELY
VT LS9 v8°L YOHONY SSOH)
LE'S LE'S SONIYCS V31D
¢S'ET 78S L'L NOLATTIVE
¥6°0t 1€°2C €9'8T NO.14v
viol AVAldd| AVASYNHL| AvASAINQ@IM Avasini AVANOW Y3IINID
Se0z/eT/9  |szoz/Tt/9 S20Z/11/9 Sz02/01/9 S20e/6/9 S2/6/9 40 )3IM

AVa ¥43d SNOL HO1DVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANTTID




95'2LT €IS 6S'IV 29'vE 10°€S ¥0°Z6 1Y10L ANVYD
GE'S GE'8 SANId 1SIM
LT6E 1v°8T 98°0¢ ANIIYO 1SIM
0°9T 6€'9 S9'6 NMOLYINTYM
LT'TT 829 68't JAISANNNS
16'VT 8.'9 €1'8 SINVT LS
v8'€1 86't 98°'8 oE [T [o}!]
oL oL MNVE3IH0
88'0T vE'S ¥S'S a1vNOG W
9Z'TC ¥9'9 80°S vS'6 MN3FYD ISYOH
eLET 9S°TT 91°ZT QYVN3H TVH
20°0T 20°0T INOLSAIYD
20°62 LS'TT StLT sngia
90°6 90'6 YOHINY SSOWD
v8'S ¥8's SONIYdS ¥V
€TYT 87'9 S6°L NOLATTIVE
15°L€ €0°02 8v'LT NOl4V
V"6 ]1 AVAlYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM Avasini AVANOW ERLNED)]
qzoz/oz/9  |szoz/61/9 <e0z/81/9 szoe/L1/9 ST0z/91/9 SZ/91/9 40 ¥3Im

AVA ¥3d SNOL HO1IVdINOD

HLSVA AdI'TOS ALNNOD ANATID




€082 9€'9S 16°9% TS'SE ¢E'8E 6T°€0T 1Y101 ANVYD
IT'ET 9T°'S S6'L S3INId L1SIM
97'9€ 1S°LT GL'8T IAN3IYD 1SIM
19'ST 66°S 29'6 NMOLYIITYM
6E'TT 9 6T'S JAISANNNS
6S°'L 6S'L T
1T €0°S 81°6 O3noY
1€'9 1€9 MNVE3IH0
1T°CT 9T'S S0'L a1YNOGd W
61°CC 659 65’V 10'TT MNIFYD ISHOH
eV LT 9'11 AY¥VYN3H TVH
YT €9°'S 65°8 ANOLSATYD
9°6¢ 12T YATA sngia
LTYT v€'9 €6°L YOHINY SSOHD
10°9 10'9 SONIYdS HVI1D
vLET 16'S €8'L NOLlAIIVE
v'6€ 98'61 ¥S°6T NOl4v
V101 AVAIY4| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM Avasint AVANOW YIINTDD
Sz0z/Le/9  |szoz/9z/9 sz0z/se/9 szoz/ve/9 qcoz/€z/9 6Z/€2/9 40 M3IM

AVAd ¥3d SNOL HO1DVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANTHYD)




¥0°06 0 ¥0°06 1Y1OL1 ANVYD
0 SANId 1SIM
61°0C 61°02 INIIYD 1SIM
¥0°0T ¥0'0T NMOLYINTYM
0 JAISANNNS
0 SINVT '1S
L0'8 L0'8 o3noy
0 MNVE3IHO
89'G 89°S alvNOQdIN
I€6 1€'6 M33YD ISHOH
Wit A7 AY¥VN3H 1VH
0 ANOLSAIYD
0 sngia
0 YOHINV SSOHD
0 SONIYIS V31D
A A NOLATTIVE
6'9T 6'91 NOl4v
1v1l0l AVAIYd| AVASYNHL| AVASINGIM Avasini AVANOW Y3IINDD
szoz/og/9 62/0€/9 40 X3IM

AVad ¥3d SNOL HO1DVdINOD

ALSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANTHYD




€9°LTCT V101 ANVYD
ev'ey SaNId LSIM
ELLLT AN3I3IYD 1SIM
T6'VL NMOLYINTVM
14417 3dISANNNS
66’V SANVT "LS
69°€9 O3aNOY
v6'LC ANVE3H0
ve'es JTVNOQIN
¢0’66 A334D ISYOH
55°60T QYVvN3H 1VH
89'8Y ANOLSAIYD
9T'LTT AsSng3aa
6C’LY HOHDNY SSOYD
Tv'€c SONIYdS 4v3I1D
65°€9 NOl1A3TIVE
6€°LLT NO.ldVv

SC0CZ IANNT Y04 STV1OL YOLOVdINOD

HILSVAM dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAYO




{@3sn 41} SQ¥YD XIM HO4 NMOHS ATNO LNNOY LSOO :3LON«

1°LE2 4444 0 966.L.L 0zs SIvVI1iOoL
13N4 dOHS €08 '8
SHONEL NOILYLS ¥34SNYHL 69'LL 1'8ese

440 110d cL'8l 9/¢c¢ €919 €8091L 08¢l 0881 HLYOMNIA gecoe €S
S14Vd /XINNY vl 51474 14974 06¢-4 @404 ¥ecoc w
JONVYNILNIVW /OINYHOIW S8 4’18 06elst §/50S1 0S¢-4 QyOd 610¢C 144
JONVYNILNIVIN /OINVYHOIW €9l 8L 06ciclh lz19ch 0§¢-4 qd0d 2102 ov
JONVYNILNIVIN /OINVHOIN 1422 g8 G6/891 110891 062-4 qdO4 8102 6¢
¥OL103dId LNV1SISSY 98y 8°09 L¥891 L9€91 062-4 QdO4d [#@4074 8¢
d0O103d!d INVY1SISSY [ X4 4% Ll 184474 c66ey 0S6¢-4 404 2coce LE
IONVNILNIVIW 43EN3D Qs 6ELYL €807 062-4 404 ¢coc 9
440 T10d 2181 (4544 L VA°14 01€96 8.0¥6 794D MOVIN zc0e SE
440 770d t47484 16 Z2'ebl 25988 09598 3¥94O MOVIN [#440r4 e
VL3N /ON3a olc 9182 75582 06¢-4 @404 (4404 €€
¥3avol LNOYHd S.'6l gLel v 86% 18¥0C1L LZLBLL 7931 MOV {414 (4%
AONYL I1ddveO TvVLIIN /ON3TA 89 € €ty 9L 1262t v0ScL TYNOILYNYILNI Leoe L€
d3avo1 LNOYS 0 226851 1£685 ) €LONHIN HOVIN €Loz o¢
d3avo1 LNOY4 0 6YreE8E 6vrE8E S889HIN MOVIN 102 6¢C
JONVYNILNIVIN /DINVHOIN 0 eoLeze eolece 05e-4 404 200C 8C
Y13 /ON3d Le's (A 4% 5N YA £9v001 06686 05€-4 d404 0coe yx4
VL3N /ON3A 19¢ €101 L'ecl €G6S14 [0]745{0VA 06e-4 d404 0coc 124
MONYL 31ddVHD TVLIN /OINTA (¥4 90t L0l ov98 2862 HINMLHOITYS Gecoe 4
S311ddNS ¥31N3D 9€ 7160€ 8/80¢ SSIHAXTI AATHO 6661 44
440 710y 8801 202 [4°3 £0061 626zl 0881 HLAOMNIA Ggcoe 6l
440 7110Y 28’8 0041 £'€0€ ovivi ovoclt OATOA ¥coe 8l
440 7104 [474°] S9 BEVELL /18GC/L €18NO MOV 102 yA?
440 710d [o]%¢] g9'0¢El 616941 69€9/L £L8NO HOVIN 14344 9l
440 7104 0 096861 096861 €18NO MOV 7102 Sl
MONYL 31ddvdD Iv13IW /O0W3A 8L v8.LlL x4 vS9.¢ 0.88¢ TYNOILYNYILNI 202 €l
3ONVNILNIVIN §31N3D zc8 £v6 €£9¢€0¢C 3444 ¥ X ¥ 05¢-4 800¢ clL
FT1OAD3IY /43AVOT LNOYS y24 69L€ €9l9 9eL9y 2962v 793 L MOVIN |4V L
MONYL 30IAd3S 90¢ v ie 6425 [¥AZ] L-AQIN MDVYIN g€ecoe oL
430 T10d 4 00568 6.v68 ELLND MOVIN 900¢ 6
H3AVvO0T1 LNOYd 8L 7891 G661l 82¢s6l PrGe6l 931 MOVIN 8102 8
Ad3IAITIA Y3INIVINOD €8¢ 2’29 €198 ogzs TVYNOILYNYILNI 600¢C L
JONVYNILNIVIW /DINVHOIW 9501 688 02808¢ v9.6.2 05e-4 404 1661 9
3ONVNILNIVIA /DINVYHOIN 89°L ove g 8¢ esveLl gLiesL) 06¢-3 404 €10¢ €
d3dvOo1 LNOYd 1602 [4°13 129 1 S50002 688961 MOVIN 6102 I

JOL03yHIa 8v9 8.9 1862 £€88¢2 06¢-4 Y04 [44er4 00

(sjeb) | pojeaes) (s1eb) (s|eb obea) abeaj
350 43a sonm | #5021 | asaippiany mmm\_w.”u_ mc_uﬂ_,_ mc_._:__m_w_m IV ¥vaA | #MondL

ANNC ST, ¥V3IA TVISH
140d3d 39VITIIN /SYD ILSYM AI10S ALNNOD IN3IFYD




GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE GOVERNMENT
AUDIT COMMITTEE MINUTES

Date: May 15, 2025
Location: Courthouse Annex Conference Room
Time: 2:00 P.M.

Call to Order
The Greene County Audit Committee meeting was called to order on May 15, 2025 at 2:00 p.m.

Commtittee Members Present:

J. Thomas Love, Acting Chairman
David M. Ellis, Acting Secretary
Dr. Michelle Freeman

Mr. Benjamin 1. Gall

Other Attendees:

Kevin Morrison, Greene County Mayor

Danny Lowery, Director of Greene County Accounts and Budgets
Roger Woolsey, County Attorney

Dr. Chris Malone, Director of Schools

Kayla Crawford, Finance Director

Division of Local Government Audit:

Marie Tidwell, Audit Manager
Two members of the County audit team

Review and Adoption of Minutes

Mr. Ellis read the minutes from the May 18, 2024 Audit Committee meeting. Mr. Love made a
motion which was seconded by Gall that there being no additions or corrections, the minutes be
approved. Affirmative vote was unanimous.

Purpose and Duties of the Audit Committee

The acting chairman described the purpose, duties, and responsibilities of the Audit Committee as
outlined by the resolution to establish an audit committee which was adopted by the Greene County
Commission on November 18, 2013.

Review of Audit Committee Actions During Calendar Year 2024

The acting chairman provided an explanation of how the Audit Committee discharged its calendar
year 2024 duties by reviewing the contents of the Report of the Audit Committee, dated May 18,
2024, as submitted to the Greene County Commission.




New Business

Mr. Ellis made a motion to re-elect all positions by affirmation. Dr. Freeman seconded and the
motion was approved unanimously.

The committee reviewed the Annual Financial Report—Greene County, Tennessee for the year
ended June 30, 2024. There was one financial statement finding but no federal compliance
findings. All prior findings but this one had been corrected or completed. The auditors issued a
clean or unqualified opinion on June 20, 2024. A summary of the report is attached to these
minutes. Finding 2024-001 was a repeat finding with three parts that remained unresolved, and
was determined to be caused by software issues that have plagued the finance director for several
years. Sufficient software support has not been attainable from the supplier. The finance director
and others discussed the possibility of involving the county budget director, Danny Lowery, for
an overview and remediation solution as he has experience with the software being used by the
county school system. The audit committee also acknowledged that its members would be willing
to lend any relevant expertise to help correct the deficiency.

Other Agenda Items
The acting chairman indicated the Audit Committee will provide a written report to the Greene
County Commission on how the committee discharged its calendar year 2025 duties.

Adjournment
With no further business to discuss, the audit committee was adjourned at: 3:15 p.m.

Minutes submitted by:

Ll EZK/

David M. Ellis CPA, Secretary




Greene County Budget and Finance Committee/ Budget Workshop
Meeting-Minutes June 4th, 2025
Greene County Ag Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Kevin Morrison- Budget & Finance Chairman Robin Quillen — Commissioner
Tim Smithson — Commissioner Paul Burkey- Commissioner Brad Peters — Commissioner

ALSO:

Danny Lowery — Director of Finance Roger Woolsey- County Attorney
Wesley Holt — Sheriff Jim Greene-Solid Waste

David Beverly — Chief Deputy Kevin Swatsell - Road Superintendent

TJ Manis- Director Greene County/Greeneville EMS Kathy Crawford- Commissioner
Erin Elmore — HR Director

OTHERS:
Spencer Morrell- Greeneville Sun Bobby Rader -Radio Greeneville
Kayla Crawford- Greene County Jeff Taylor — Greene County Partnership Director

Chris Malone- Greene County Schools Director

CALL TO ORDER:
Mayor Kevin Morrison called the Budget and Finance committee meeting to order on Wednesday, June
4th, 2025 at 8:30 AM in the Greene County Ag Annex Conference Room. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Motion to approve the Budget & Finance minutes for the May 7th, 2025 meeting, was made by
Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motlon was approved with no
opposition.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS:
For their review, the Committee received budget requests that had already been previously approved by
Mayor Morrison.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS NEEDING APPROVAL BY THE BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE

Greene County Solid Waste Director requested that the amount of $350 from Medicare (212}, $340 be
transferred from Other Fringe Benefits (299), $143 transferred from communication (307), $800 from
Office supplies (435) and $2550 from Data Processing Equipment (709). All the above totaling $4,183
setting aside funding to furnish new office. Motion to approve the budget request was made by
Commissioner Quillen and seconded by Commissioner Peters. All were in favor.

Greene County Solid Waste Director requested that $1,000 from Overtime (187) be transferred in Part-
Time Personnel line (169). Funds needed for part-time pay. Commissioner Quillen motioned to approve
and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. All were in favor.

Greene County Solid Waste Director requested that $1,000 from Overtime (187) be transferred in Part-
Time Personnel line (169). Funds needed for part-time pay. Commissioner Quillen motioned to approve
and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. All were in favor.

RESOLUTIONS:

A. A resolution to amend the 2024-2025 fiscal year Greene County Schools General
Purpose School fund budget for changes in revenue & expenditures. Motion was
made to approve resolution A by Commissioner Burkey and was seconded by
Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee/ Budget Workshop
Meeting-Minutes June 4th, 2025
Greene County Ag Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee

B. A resolution to amend the 2024-2025 fiscal year Greene County Schools General
Purpose School fund budget for changes in revenue & expenditures. Motion to
approve resolution B was made by Commissioner Quillen and seconded by
Commissioner Burkey. All agreed.

C. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating a total of $13,678
to the Sheriff’s department for the FYE June 30, 2025. Motion to approve resolution
C by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Smithson. Motion
carried.

D. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to amend the 2024-2025 fiscal
year budget to increase appropriations in muitiple funds for Temporary Personnel
costs associated with the Youth Employment program administered by the First
Tennessee Development District for the June 30,2025. Motion to approve
resolution D by Commissioner Peters and seconded by Commissioner Quillen.
Motion carried.

E. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating funds from the
Opioid Abatement Court, Recovery Court, and Law Enforcement assisted
Diversion (LEAD) program for amounts received during the FYE June 30, 2025.
Motion to approve resolution E was made by Commissioner Quillen and seconded
by Commissioner Peters. All agreed.

F. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating funds and
amending the FYE June 30, 2025 budget for Fund # 116 Solid Waste. Motion to
approve resolution F was made by Commissioner Smithson and seconded by
Commissioner Quillen. All Agreed.

G. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body fixing the tax levy in Greene
County, Tennessee for the year beginning July 1, 2026. Motion was made to
approve resolution G by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by
Commissioner Peters. Motion carried.

H. A resolution making appropriations to non-profit organizations of Greene County,
Tennessee for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2026.
Fund 101 Non-Profits include $10,000 to Food Ministries and the removal of the
Anti-Drug Coalition allocation. Fund 189, take current request from 2025, decide in
December if change. Draw up to Jeff, Dealings between Arts & Recreation. How
much to hold back and use. Allocations report back for January meeting. Camper
on site, Tom on location. Paul working on checking Hotel & Motel future, planning
Jeff. Quality distribution, subject stay same with $75,000 to Tennis, 7500 to Blue
Springs this year, one time to History Museum. Subject to mid-year review.
Commission Peters made a motion to leave as is and it was seconded by
Commissioner Smithson. School budget presented. Balanced maintenance of
effort, State funding Bonus, no ideal .250 qualify for Governor’s Budget.

I. A resolution making appropriations for the various funds, departments,
institutions, offices and agencies of Greene County, Tennessee, for the fiscal year
beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2026. Motion was made to approve
resolution L by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Peters.
Motion carried. Budget Director Lowery requested that 3 million be placed in
expenditures as an in and out if funding money is received.



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee/ Budget Workshop
Meeting-Minutes June 4th, 2025
Greene County Ag Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee

J. A resolution to transfer ownership interest in facilities and properties on Hal
Henard Road. Transfer tennis courts and softball, interrupt swap 11 areas. Tennis
Association, no ownership swap $75,000 Capital Projects, to furnish tens Courts
cracks match an exit gift. Must match, to take $75,000 trade properties, do not
funding liberty still exits. Negotiations trade or if want $75,000 put money in all 3
forces. Contribute is honoring fixing the Tennis $75,000. Relinquishing in Shooting
Range, we have invalid. Sole option $75,000 match. After restation agreement
allocated to debt. Must match, take only match. Give the Mayor authority changes
and reword by Roger. Motion was made to approve resolution J by Commissioner
Peters and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried. Motion was
made to approve resolution A by Commissioner Peters and was seconded by
Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

NEXT MEETINGS:

Budget Cleanup Day for last minute budget amendment requiring Budget & Finance Committee
approvals scheduled for Thursday June 26".

The next regular scheduled Budget & Finance Committee meeting will be on Wednesday, July 3rd,
8:30 A.M. Held in the Greene County Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee.

AJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Peterson made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Burkey seconded the
motion. All agreed. Adjourn at 10:09 A.M.



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee/ Budget Cleanup
Meeting-Minutes June 26th, 2025
Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee

PRESENT:

Mayor Kevin Morrison- Budget & Finance Chairman Robin Quillen — Commissioner
Tim Smithson — Commissioner Brad Peters — Commissioner
ALSO:

Danny Lowery — Director of Finance Roger Woolsey- County Attorney
David Beverly — Chief Deputy Gary Rector - Highway

Kathy Crawford- Commissioner
Erin Elmore — HR Director

OTHERS:
Bobby Rader -Radio Greeneville

CALL TO ORDER:

Mayor Kevin Morrison called the Budget and Finance End of Year Cleanup committee meeting to order
on Thursday, June 26th, 2025 at 8:30 AM in the Greene County Annex Conference Room. A quorum was
present.

June 26", a budget cleanup day was held to cover all salary line items needing approval by the
Budget & Finance Committee. Commissioner Brad Peters made a motion to accept and approve
all salary budget amendments presented and was seconded by Commissioner Robin Quillen. All
agreed.

Gary Rector, Highway assistant, addressed the committee about purchasing a distributor truck. A
quote has been received of $280,000. Asphalt money spends.

NEXT MEETING:
The next regular scheduled Budget & Finance Committee meeting will be on Wednesday, July
2rd, 8:30 A.M. Held in the Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee.

AJOURNMENT:

Commissioner made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Quillen seconded the motion. All
agreed. Adjourn at 8:55 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,
Regina Nuckols
Budget & Finance Secretary



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
May 28, 2025
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Members Present:

Kevin Morrison — Mayor Danny Lowery-Budget Director Erin Elmore- HR

Chris Malone - School Dir.  Brad Peters-Comm. Kathy Crawford-Comm.
William Dabbs-Comm. Roger Woolsey- County Atty. Wesley Holt — Sheriff
Kevin Swatsell — Road. Supt.

Also, Present:

Kim Peterson-TSC John McInturff-MM&B Tammy Cutshall- Atty Assist.
Leslie Jones — Clinic Letisha Ricker - EMA
Call to Order:

Mayor Morrison called meeting to order in the conference room at the Greene County Annex.
Quorum was present.

Minutes:
Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and was seconded by Commissioner Crawford to
approve the minutes from April 23, 2025. Motion was approved with no opposition.

Reports:

Clinic - Leslie Jones gave the clinic reports for April 2025. There were 211 patients, 81 less than
last year. A lot more in December and January and then in April a little less. The clinic performed
53 biometric physicals. There were 8 no shows, 6 were provider visits (3-employees and 3-
spouses) and department heads were notified about the no show employees. Leslie stated there
were 14 employees/spouses that did not complete their biometric physicals, of those 14, 8 were
repeats from last year and 2 of the repeats dropped health insurance for the new fiscal year.
Attorney Woolsey asked Leslie if the clinic was doing the DOT physicals and how that was going?
Leslie stated that they were going good and Attorney asked Kevin if he was having any issues and
Kevin stated not that he knows of. Leslie stated that the girls at Kevin’s office call before the
employee expires and Leslie gets them in for their physicals. Kevin stated the only problem he is
having is with his CDL drivers and getting their drug screens back. Kevin stated it has been taking
up to 10-12 days to get back. Kevin stated he has started waiting a week and if he doesn’t hear
anything back in that week, he puts the drivers back in the truck. Erin stated she would call and
check on that. Attorney Woolsey then asked Leslie if the facility that we send our drug screens to,
do they preserve the sample? Leslie does not know. Attorney Woolsey doesn’t know why we can’t
start doing the drug screens and preserving the samples for a second test. Leslie said she could
find out. Kevin told the committee about one of his drivers that got rear-ended by a distracted
driver about 3 weeks ago. Kim Peterson said she emailed Ballad Health and told them they would
have to get these reports to Kevin. Erin asked Kim if she had heard back and Kim stated yes and
that Ballad stated that Kevin was not on the list for distribution but Erin stated that is not correct.
Erin stated she had it set up for her and Kevin to get the reports. Leslie stated that the federal drug
screen is a split sample, where one is tested and one is set aside for additional testing if needed.
Leslie wasn’t sure about the non-federal drug screens but she would check with Quest. Attorney



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
May 28, 2025
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Woolsey went on to say that we are doing these drug screens for our benefit. Kevin asked the
committee if something happened in the middle of the night with nothing open what to do at that
point? Sheriff Holt said he sends his employees to the ER. Erin stated as long as it is within 24
hours it can be done when the occ med office opens unless he feels like the employee is intoxicated,
in which case, the employee would need to go immediately. Attorney Woolsey told Kevin unless
he thought it was alcohol related, he could just wait until the next morning to get employee tested.
John stated there is no requirement for a CDL holder to have a post-accident drug test. John went
on to say that since there is no requirement, he doesn’t see why the drug screen could not be done
at the clinic. Attorney Woolsey suggested for a post-accident drug screen that the clinic take
enough samples to conduct more than one test if needed. Leslie confirmed that it is urine sample
for drug screens and not blood. Leslie stated they could always send it to Quest because there is
always a chain of custody with any samples. Attorney Woolsey suggested letting Kevin discuss
options and decide what to do next meeting. Sheriff Holt stated that if it was a serious accident
with injuries he feels better if we did not do our own drug screen. Leslie said it would be Quest
that would then send on to another testing site. Erin and Leslie stated that we are just a collection
site, we do not do any actual testing of samples. John then stated, so the question is, who is
collecting the sample? John then suggested to Kevin to just keep doing the drug screens how
you're already doing them. Erin asked Kevin for a list of employees that he is still waiting for
results on. Attorney Woolsey then told Kevin if the employee was not at fault then he would not
worry about keeping him off the road.

Financial - Danny Lowery emailed the financial reports for April 2025 to the Insurance
Committee on May 22, 2025. Danny stated nothing magnificent either way. Danny stated
employee health insurance is starting to stabilize. Two more re-insurance checks received on
Tuesday for Stop-Loss. Sheriff Holt asked Danny since Open Enrollment is over and we lost 2 on
health, did it stabilize and did we gain any? I advised the Sheriff that I was still working on Open
Enrollment adds/changes/drops but, yes, there were around 6-7 added to health and dental and
vision had some adds also. Dental had a few drops and I advised I haven’t completed drops for
Vision at this time. Attorney Woolsey asked me if the 2 that dropped health insurance indicate
why they dropped and I said no, I had no idea. I also stated that the 2 that dropped had Option 1
which is at no cost to them unless they were non-compliant and one of the two that dropped were
in fact non-compliant and was paying $25.00 per pay period. Erin Elmore asked how old they
were and I did not know their ages. Danny stated we dropped from a peak of 858 in March to 843
in June but that is still 20 more than June of last year.

A motion to approve the financial reports was made by Sheriff Holt. Motion was seconded by
Commissioner Dabbs. Reports were approved with no opposition.



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
May 28, 2025
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Discussion:

Other Business.

Mayor Morrison shared with the committee about a report he received from the Department of
Homeland Security - FEMA in reference to Birds Bridge. The Mayor stated the report informs us
that the applicant “Greene County” is receiving a non-federal grant funding which reduces the
amount that FEMA would pay for the contract work, in other words, the non-federal grant is our
state aid bridge money, which according to the paperwork is 3.347 million and the FEMA portion
that they are paying out of that rather than reimbursing for the typical 75% is $91,700.00. Kevin
asked who that report came from and Kevin said Sharon (with CRC) and Kevin then said “Tim
told us we were golden”. Letisha Ricker with EMA said that information came from Sharon with
CRC who is above Tim. Kevin then stated he will work on that. The Mayor will get a copy of the
report to Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent. Kevin stated he had been told we were good but
wouldn’t pay for anything above or beyond pre-flood condition, which he was aware of. Kevin
stated state money is for bridge improvements. Kevin again stated that he would work on it and
get back to the Mayor. Kevin stated the money they used was not a grant. The Mayor says what
they do is look at this like an insurance policy, much like Kinser Park. The Mayor went on to say
they are not going to reimburse us if we designate money that we have to make these repairs or
have insurance. Letisha Ricker stated it’s not that they see it as a grant, but they see this extra pool
of money that was slated for projects like this and they consider that double dipping even though
it was presented to them to be used as like a savings account and used for other projects and
Letisha continued to say that TEMA looks at it like you already had money slated for projects like
this and don’t need reimbursement. Letisha said Sharon and Johnathan will be coming out
tomorrow if there are any questions that need to be addressed. The Mayor stated that the state
aid bridge money that Kevin has was designated specifically for this project but it wasn’t
necessarily designated for this project until then. Kevin stated that he checked on that and was
given the green light by Tim Hatcher.

Motion to adjourn and go into closed session was made by Commissioner Dabbs. Motion was
seconded by Danny Lowery, Budget Director. There was no opposition.

Claims:
Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and seconded by Sheriff Holt to approve TSC-
0002558. Claim was approved with no opposition.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and seconded by Commissioner Crawford to approve
TSC-0002510. Claim was approved with no opposition.

Discussion after claims:

Commissioner Brad Peters introduced Kim Raia, Environmental Consultant with CTAS. She did
a presentation concerning the drone footage for inventory for all county owned property. Kim
explained the process; 1. Get the drone up in the air and do a panorama of the facility; 2. Do a grid
(automated flight) to go into the GIS system. Kim stated they are about 85% complete with the
project. Kim has 365 identified items with links to the panorama drone footage and John asked



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
May 28, 2025
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Kim to send him that and she stated she would. This information is on an excel spreadsheet that
can be sent by email to anyone. Brad went on to say that there is a value to this service. Kim went
on to show examples of the drone footage to the committee. The committee then further discussed
the benefits of having this information and thanked Kim for all her work on this project.

Motion to adjourn was made by Attorney Roger Woolsey and seconded by Commissioner
Crawford. There was no opposition.

Respectfully Submitted,
Beth McNeese



Greene County Purchasing Committee
May 19, 2025, 5:30 p.m.
Official Minutes

Members Present: Tim White, Jeff Bible, Pam Carpenter, Teddy Lawing, Tim Smithson, Nick
Gunter,

Others Present: Krystal Justis, Roger Woolsey, Bobby Rader, Spencer Morrell.

Acting chairman Tim Smithson called the meeting to order to conduct county business.
Commissioner Tim White arrived after the meeting had been called to order.

Approval Of Prior Minutes: Upon motion by Pam Carpenter and a second by Nick Gunter
and an affirmative vote of the committee, the prior minutes were approved.

Approval of Bid 101-1269 Janitorial FY 2025/2026: After discussion and a motion by Pam
Carpenter and a second by Tim Smithson, and an affirmative vote of the committee, the
bid was awarded to Professional Cleaning Solutions, Chuckey, TN, who had submitted the
lowest bid of $5,180.00 a month and yearly $62,160.00.

With no further business and a motion by Teddy Lawing and second by Pam Carpenter,
the meeting was adjourned without objection.

Teddy Lawing

Secretary
7t District Commissioner



RANGE OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
May 6, 20245

Members Present:
Tim Ward, Tommy Whitehead, Dave Peurifoy, Kevin Morrison, Tanner Collins, Roger Woolsey,
James McAfee, Kevin Morrison and Tim Davis. Quorum was present.

Others Present:
Clifford Lawing, Randy Weems, Jeff Morgan, Kenn Carpenter, Frank Waddell, Margaret Freshour
and Krystal Justis

Motion made by Tim Davis and seconded by Dave Peurifoy to approve minutes from the March
4, 2025 meeting. Motion carried with no opposition.

Installation of the roof has passed statute of limitations (3 years), we do still have warranty on
material, Roger should have more information on that next month.

Dave Peurifoy presented drawings on training ranges with a covered roof to be used for
education and training. Possibly using them also as youth education and training. Christian
Dalton with 4H will be at the next meeting. Training and education can include surrounding
areas, 4H camp field day to the range is an example of one. Grant portal opens back up in July
and the goal is to apply for funding.

The 50 acres is still on track as it is land locked and will be brought before County Commission.
Tim Ward will talk with Rick Tipton about county schools using the range for their shooting
program.

Motion was made by Dave Peurifoy and was seconded by James McAfee to increase prices to
the following: Sporting Clays $40.00 plus $5.00 side by side fee, Skeet and Trap to $ 8.00 and the
Five Stand to $8.00 effective May 6, 2025. Motion carried with no opposition.

Kevin Morrison is talking with First Horizon about putting in an ATM at the range and Takoma. If
the ATM does not happen, we will look into square.

Dave Peurifoy wants the committee to look into a portable fuel tank 50 gallon with a hand or
battery pump. Committee will talk with Sheriff Wesley Holt to see if there is anything available
on military surplus.

The committee talked about extended the range hours and advertising on radio, newspaper,
social media and flyers in schools.

Motion was made by Tim Davis and was seconded by James McAfee to adjourn.

Next meeting will be June 10, 2025 at 8:30 AM.



Minutes of the Greene County Regional Planning Commission

A meeting of the Greene County, TN Regional Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, May
13, 2025, at 1:00 p.m.

Members Present/Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Gwen Lilley, Vice-Chairman Kevin-MerrisensCounty-Mayor

Gary Rector, Secretary Roger Woolsey, County Attorney

Lyle Parton, Alternate Secretary Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Edwin Remine Tim Tweed, Building Official

Phillip Ottinger Eyn-AshburnPlanning Department
Jason Cobble Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent
BeekyRideout

Nick Gunter

Larry Justis

Also participating: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.

Sam Riley. Recognition was made of Chairman Sam Riley’s recent passing, following his long
service to the Planning Commission.

Election of Officers. Gwen Lilley, vice chairman asked for nominations for Chairman. A motion
was made Lyle Parton, seconded by Phillip Ottinger, to elect Gwen Lilley as chairman. The
motion carried unanimously.

Chairman Lilley asked for nominations for vice-chairman. A motion was made by Lyle Parton,
seconded by Edwin Remine, to elect Nick Gunter as vice-chairman. The motion carried
unanimously.

The Chairman asked for nominations for secretary. A motion was made by Phillip Ottinger,
seconded by Edwin Remine, to elect Gary Rector as secretary. The motion carried unanimously.

Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the
March 11, 2025 meeting. A motion was made by Nick Gunter, seconded by Gary Rector, to
approve the minutes as written. The motion carried unanimously.

Division of a Portion of the Timothy Spann and Jay Thayer Property. The Planning
Commission reviewed and considered approving the final plat for the Division of a Portion of the




Timothy Spann and Jay Thayer Property, for four lots totaling 6.33 acres located between Billy
Bible Road, Pike Road, and J.R. Kenney Road in the 11™ civil district. Staff stated the plat met
all requirements, except for a signature by the Tennessee Department of Environment and
Conservation (TDEC), and recommended approval, subject to addition of the signature. A motion
was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Gary Rector, to approve the final plat subject to the
addition of a signature by TDEC. The motion carried unanimously.

Administrative minor subdivisions. The Planning Commission was informed the following
subdivisions had been approved since the last meeting.

e Scott Floyd Property for one lot totaling 0.69 acres, located adjacent to Bright Hope
Road in the 5% civil district.

e Michael A. Knapp Property for one lot totaling 0.75 acres, located adjacent to Old
Stage Road in the 15" civil district.

e Larry Bailey Property for one lot totaling 3.67 acres, located adjacent to Old
Kentucky Road South in the 9* civil district.

e Survey of a Portion of the Jimmy McIntosh Property for one lot totaling 1.50 acres,
located off Shelton Mission Road in the 22™ civil district.

e Survey of a Portion of Tract B of Bruce Lemons et ux Property for on a lot totaling
0.73 acres, located adjacent to Baileyton Road in the 12" civil district.

e Bonnie M. Guy Property for two lots totaling 1.75 acres, located adjacent to Barkley
Road in the 17" civil district.

e Survey of a Portion of the Hugh Allen Brown & Beatrice Ramsey Brown trust
Property for one lot totaling 2.06 acres, located adjacent to Belgin Lane in the 2™
civil district.

e Division of the Brown & Janet Stegall Property for two lots totaling 5.83 acres,
located adjacent to Poplar Springs Road in the 5% civil district.

e Survey of a Portion of the Darrell Wilcox et ux & Paul Wilcox et al Property for
two lots totaling 4.46 acres, located adjacent to Jackson Lane West in the 17% civil
district.

e Replat of Lots 8R and 9R of the CMH Homes subdivision for two lots totaling 5.71
acres, located Pritchard Road in the 15™ civil district.

e Division of Lot 4 of the J. Willis Crumiey Farm for two lots totaling 2.90 acres,
located adjacent to Newport Highway in the 25% civil district.

e Combination plat of Lots 1 & 2 of Deerchase Subdivision Section 1 for one lot
totaling 0.92 acres, located adjacent to Stone Dam Road in the 14" civil district.

e Division of a Portion of Lot 1R The Lucille Adams Subdivision, for one lot totaling
0.50 acres, located adjacent to Old Mine Road in the 12! civil district.

e Replat of a Portion of the Peggy Vaughn Property for two lots totaling 11.15 acres,

located adjacent to Hidden Meadow Lane and Stone Dam Road in the 14™ civil
district.



® Survey of a Portion of the Timothy & Cindy Stamey Property for one lot totaling
0.816 acres, located adjacent to Bibles Chapel Road in the 19" civil district.

e Ruth Morrison Property for two lots totaling 9.256 acres, located adjacent to Lick
Hollow Road in the 9 civil district.

e Combination Plat of Lots 4 & 5 of the Dewitt Property Subdivision for one lot
totaling 2.72 acres, located adjacent to Old Asheville Highway in the 10™ civil
district.

e Combination of Lots 32 & 33 Guthrie’s Gap, Section 1 for one lot totaling 1.01
acres, located adjacent to Guthrie’s Greene Road in the 6% civil district.

e Survey of a Portion of Lot SR Holder Acres Replat for one lot totaling 0.72 acres,
located adjacent to Holder Road in the 13 civil district.

e Survey of a Portion of Lot 6R-R of the Ham Taylor Land for two lots totaling 1.08
acres, located adjacent to McDonald Road in the 4" civil district.

A motion was made by Gary Reclor, seconded by Lyle Parton, to accept the list. The motion
carried unanimously.

Monthly activity report for Building/Zoning/Planning Office. Tim Tweed discussed the
monthly department activity report. A motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by Phillip
Ottinger, to accept the report. The motion carried unanimously.

Other Business.

Revised campground regulations. Amy Tweed distributed copies of proposed revisions to the
Zoning Resolution concerning campground regulations. Roger Woolsey stated the proposal had
been shaved down a ton over what the Planning Commission had previously approved, as it was
overwhelming to the county commission. Lyle Parton stated the Planning Commission had
worked on it for a year, but might have put too much stuff in it. Roger Woolsey stated he thought
it tried to encompass every conceivable act, and that the revision didn’t talk a lot about tent
camping and boondocking. It proposed to have campgrounds in the A-1, General Agriculture
District. He stated there had been pushback on engineering studies because people want
campgrounds in more rural settings because that’s where the beauty is.

Roger Woolsey said that state law had changed, and that property assessors were now required to
assess campers that are permanently situated, “permanently” being more than 30 days. Under the
new law if you want a camper in place for more than 30 days, the property owner has to pay
property taxes. The law requires that the camper be secured the same way a mobile home is, be
inspected, and to have a porch. He stated he had received several calls of people wanting to be
able to have campers on their individual propertics. Mr. Woolsey stated that, under the new state
law an owner has to pay to secure the camper, and that there are mechanisms that permit you to



secure them without a lot of trouble. Tim Tweed stated that the requirements were different in the
flood zone, where campers had to be road ready so they can be moved quickly.

Roger Woolsey stated the revision was a first attempt, and was just something for the Planning
Commission to study and question. One of the things the proposal addressed was putting campers
on private property, because he and Tim get a lot of phone calls about why you can’t put a camper
on a 100 acre property.

Amy Tweed stated that she will email Roger’s proposal, as well as what Lyn had written, the
proposal already recommended by the Planning Commission, to be considered at the June meeting.
Roger Woolsey stated that the only rush on this is that the County Commission needs to take

action, because if they don’t the County is going to have lawsuits.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by Edwin Remine,
to adjourn. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m.

Approved as written:

Secretary:

Chairman/Vice Chairman; \%M




Minutes of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals

A meeting of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals was held on Tuesday, May 27, 2025, at 8:30
am at the Greene County Courthouse Annex, Conference Room.

Members Present/Members Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Kathy Crawford, Chairman Tim Tweed, Building Commissioner
Beth-Deuthat; Viee-Chairman Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Holly Brooks, Secretary Debeorah-Cotins—Building Pept:
Jason A. Smith, Member Kevin-Moeorrison-Cotrty-Mavor
Robert Wilhoit, Member Roger Woolsey, County Attorney
Bill Dabbs, Associate Member

Pavid-Crim—Assoctito-Member

Also Present:  Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.
Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the April 29,

2025 meeting. A motion was made by Robert Wilhoit, seconded by Bill Dabbs, to approve the minutes as
written. The motion carried unanimously.

Swearing in of witnesses. Chairman Crawford swore in Korey Carter, Thomas Carter, and Building
Commissioner Tim Tweed.

975 Viking Mountain Road. The Board reviewed and considered a request to decrease the front yard
setback for a new home to be located at 975 Viking Mountain Road (tax parcel 174-012.02) from thirty
(30) feet to twenty-five (25) feet. Thomas Carter stated the home previously on the property was completely
destroyed in a fire, and the location of the septic system limited where the home could be located. Tim
Tweed stated that if 75% of a legal nonconforming structure was damaged, any new structure was required

to either meet setback regulations or have a variance granted by the Board. After discussion a motion was
made by Robert Wilhoit, seconded by Bill Dabbs, to grant a variance of five (5) feet to permit the home to
be located twenty-five (25) feet from the front lot line, as granting the variance would not be a detriment to
the area, and not granting the variance would create a hardship for the property owners. The motion carried
unanimously.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Robert Wilhoit, seconded by Bill Dabbs, to adjourn
the meeting. The meeting adjourned at 8:40 a.m.

/ .
P } P ‘; .l'. Vi

Approved as written (date) ' AL

Secretary E{[) p ﬂ( g Q;\;( ( I\\k k\}

Chairman/Vice Chairman




3iva

_ST o -7 - h\.‘
33SS3INNIL ‘INIFID 40 tzgﬁ.—h 40 MH310

/3UNLYNOI

NS.8025.19

k wa\un}\ J\N\Mﬁ\

Wi2-6£9-¢2v

2685-8€9-€2¥

9CLEEVLLE NL ITIAINIIUD
¥d NOLSTOH v0¥

160SSY2.E NL ITTAINITHO
183937109 N 802
€.87Z109.¢ NL ALID NOSNHOr
QJ SWVITIIM 31aA3 szzz
YL9SEYPLLE NL ITNAINITIO
1S 10d43d 3 9t

9Y8€SY.L.E N1 ITTIAINIID
1S ¥37LNI N ¥02

LECBEVLLE NL FTTIASNIIYD
QY SINVI LNIVS 0422
8095€¥.2.¢ N1 ITHAINIIYUD
1S 3937109 N #01

950.-596-91S
9v09-0cZ-€2v
¢v.19-606-0.S
SE£TL-STS-ETy
6686-08¢-828
£660-vPi-0£S

£€861-29¢-¢2V

2261S¥..€ N1 ITHAINIIYUO
dd qyvaaoo ose
8019659.¢ N1 HONOJOFSINOr
ay 3IMO71 s31 821
SC1£959.¢ N1 HONVYSE Tvd
AMH NO1YOH o€€ll
621€818.E NL WISHSOW

N7 ¥3AILTY 581
Zv6eyy.LLe N1 3TAINIIHO
<r6Z X049 Od

LEZ8EYLLE NL STUAINIIHDO
ay SNV LNIVS 0L.22
9S9SEV.L.E N1 ATNAINITYO
Q¥ qyOdX04 s801

MNSVIA INILSIIHO L
NOLdIL I ASTMIHS "9
YIONIdS ATINI VNNVINE S
TIHOS ¥3AO0NH 'V

YIATMOd VHANVS '€

Zv1a VIOV ¢

110499V 1104vO 'L

Al3ENS INOHJ SS3INISNg

$8340av ss3aNisng

INOHd JNOH

$S340av INWOH

JNVN

‘XQ0€ ONINYIAOD HHL J0 ONILEEN S20Z ‘T¢ X'INC THI ONIFNA OITINd XIVION
d0 HOIJAO0 HHL OL JILOITH HIHM HNIMOTIOL FHI IVHI HAIVIS J0 XHIVITIDES HHL
OL ZJII¥ED XdEYdH I HASSENNIL ‘IENTTIO J0 XINNOD HHI JO0 M¥ITD ¥ SY
OITdNd SHIYYION A0 NOILOATH J0 HAIVOIATIIIHD



A RESOLUTION TO REZONE CERTAIN TERRITORY OWNED BY
RAQUEL INGRAM FROM R-2 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

DISTRICT TO B-2 GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, WITHIN THE
UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Greene County Commission has adopted a zoning resolution
establishing zoning districts within the unincorporated territory of Greene County, Tennessee
and regulations for the use of property therein; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Commission realizes that any zoning plan must be
changed from time to time to provide for the continued efficient and economic development
of the county; and

WHEREAS, an application for rezoning has been submitted by CMH Homes, acting
as agent for Raquel Ingram, to rezone the property from R-2 Medium Density Residential
District to B-2, General Business District; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Regional Planning Commission did review a request
on June 10, 2025, that the property be rezoned and recommended that the Greene County
Commission approve the request to rezone the property; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting in regular session on the 21 day of July, 2025, with a quorum being present and a
majority of the entire membership of the county legislative body voting in the affirmative to
amend the Greene County Zoning Map to show the following property to be zoned B-2,
General Business District.

Being the same property identified as Greene County tax map 087, parcel 061.00,
as shown on the attached map.

This change shall take effect after its passage, the welfare of the County requiring
it.

Sponsor Greene County Regional

Planning Commission 06-10-2025
Date

Date of Public Hearing

by the Greene County Commission: 07-21-2025
Date

Decision by the Greene
County Commission:

Approved or Denied



Signed in Open Meeting:

County Mayor

Attest:

County Court Clerk

Approved as to Form: Q e A Q- Q

County ‘ﬁttorney



To:

From:

Date:

Subject:

Tax map ID:
Owner:
Applicant:
Existing zone:

Requested zone:

Existing use:
Proposed use:

Town limits:

Area zoning;:

Greene County:

Area land use;

Transportation:

Site plan:

MEMORANDUM

The Greene County Reginal Planning Commission

Lyn Ashburn, Research/Special Projects

June 5, 2025

Request to rezone property located adjacent to Taylor Lane

087-061.00

Raquel Ingram

Peter Medlyn

R-2, Medium Density Residential District

B-2, General Business District

Vacant (wooded)

Expansion area for the CMH Homes (Clayton Mobile Homes) Inc.

development, which fronts East Andrew Johnson Highway (tax parcel 087-
058.00), and abuts the property being requested for rezoning.

‘The Greene County zoning map, as well as a conceptual site plan submitted by
the applicant, shows that part of this property has been annexed by Greeneville.
The Greeneville zoning map shows the entirety of the property to be located
outside of Greeneville, as does Greene County property assessor information,
With agreement of the property owner, the Building Commissioner can
determine that the zoning map is incorrect, and the property is located outside
of Greeneville.

Greeneville zoning: the parcels in the area (south and east), as well as those
adjoining the property, are zoned M-2, High Impact Use District. This includes
the property where the existing CMH Homes facility is located.

The lot adjoining the property to the north is zoned R-2, Medium Density
Residential District, as is the area located to the north and east of the site.

The area located outside of Greeneville, which primarily fronts on Kingsport
Highway and Taylor Lane, contains a mixture of smaller residential and vacant
lots. The area inside Greeneville, which fronts on the four-lane and Industrial
Road, is commercial and industrial.

Taylor Lane is located in a right-of-way which extends from Kingsport
Highway to E. Andrew Johnson Highway. The road itself does not extend the
full length, and has a narrow (15 feet or less) pavement width and ROW width
(30) feet. It is not adequate to handle traffic from a commercial development.

The concept site plan shows the center portion of the property, which is
presently wooded, being used as a graveled “modular home staging area”. A
“25” peripheral setback not to be disturbed”, is identified along the property
boundary, with the exception of a 50°-wide driveway accessing the existing
CMH Homes site, No access is proposed from Taylor Lane.

The submitted site plan meets the requirements listed in Section 512. Site Plan
Requirements, with the exception of the buffer width adjoining the northerly
property line. Section 606.3 D of the Greene County Zoning Resolution
requires property zoned B-2 to maintain a minimum buffer width of thirty (30)
feet adjacent to residential districts. The site plan shows twenty-five (25) feet




Regional Plan:

adjacent to all property lines, though a buffer is not required adjacent to.the
Greeneville town line. If the Planning Commission recommends the rezoning,
changing the note on buffer width would be a simple fix.

The Greene County Land Use and Transportation Policy Plan provi(_les
objectives and policies used to determine the appropriateness of rezoning
requests. '

Residential policies: there are four policies which apply to this situation. (The
policies are numbered as shown in the Plan; policy numbers 1, 4, 6, and 7 did
not apply specifically to this situation, and so were not included.)

2. The County should allow for a broad range of housing types including
single-family structures, two family structures, multi-family developments,
and mobile homes located on individual lots and in mobile home parks.
There are few areas in the County which are zoned for smaller residential lots,
particularly in what appears to be a well-established neighborhood, so using the
property for residential development is desirable.

3. Residential developments of varying types and densities should be
encouraged in locations which are compatible with surrounding residential
densities. Developing the property for medium density residential is in keeping
with how the area has developed.

5. The County should encourage and concentrate high intensity types of
development in the urban growth areas, and along major traffic corridors,
with access to retail businesses, cultural activities, schools, and parks. The
property is located adjacent to the Greeneville town line and close to businesses
and activities.

8. The County should encourage the rehabilitation of existing residential
areas. The neighborhood doesn’t need to be rehabilitated, but the construction
of new residential units on the property would improve the long-term health of
the area.

Commercial Policies. There are six commercial policies which apply to this
situation.

1. In cooperation with the municipalities, Chamber of Commerce, and the
Greeneville-Greene County Partnership, the County should strive to
recruit and retain business and service enterprises that fulfill local market
demands. Rezoning the property will enable the expansion of a long-term,
established business.

2. Commercial development should be approved onmly in those areas
where adequate infrastructure is available to support such development,
The proposal will not require infrastructure.



Other: ,

Recommendation:

3. Commercial development should be designed so as to minimize
potential negative impacts to the existing transportation system. There wi}|
be no impact to the existing transportation system.

4. Clustering of commercial developments should be encouraged,-wi_th
controlled entrance and exit points, The property adjoins existing
commnercial development, and the entrance/exit point is through commercial

property.

5. Commercial uses which are high intensity traffic generators should be
located on major collector or arterial roads. Access will be from E. Andrew

Johnson Highway.

8. Commercial developments should be designed so as to minimize
negative impacts to residential developments via planted buffers and/or
berms in order to enhance the aesthetics and property values of such
developments. Existing trees are proposed to be maintained to provide a buffer
between the proposed use and the residential area along Taylor Lane.

The most important reasons for recommending denial of a rezoning request is

the potential impact of noise, lighting, and traffic on the adjoining property and
the area as a whole, These impacts would primarily be lighting, noise, and
traffic. Lighting could be an impact if a future user decides to light the area,
but the presence of 4 30-foot-wide mature buffer should negate that impact.
Noise would be restricted to hours of operation, which would not extend beyond
daylight hours. The third concern, traffic, is negated by restricting access
through the existing CMH Homes development.

Staff recommends approval of the request, based on the following rationale:

1. The request is in keeping with several policies of the Land
Use/Transportation Policy Plan.

2. The potential impact to the surrounding residential area can be sufficiently
addressed by maintaining the required landscape buffer of mature trees.



t\j‘HN!

WITEL A HIAL W

1




Greene County - Parcel: 087 061.00

Date: July 3, 2025

County: GREENE

Owner: INGRAM RAQUEL
Address: TAYLOR LN
Parcel ID: 087 061.00
Deeded Acreage: 0
Calculated Acreage: 4
Vexcel Imagery Date: 2023

0 0.03 0.06 0.12 mi

e

0 0.08 0.1 0.2 km

Stale of Tennessee, Comptroller of the TYreasury, Division of Proparty
Assessmeats (DPA), Esri Community Maps Contributors, Stele of Norlh
Carolina DOT, © OpenSirestMap, Microsofl, Esd, TomTom, Gammin,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US
Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS ~

The property lines are compited from informalion maintained by your local
county Assezzor’s office bul are not condusive evidence of property
ownership in any court of law,




Greene County - Parcel: 087 061.00

o

— ‘\
fzza |

% s

. 77 /f
b 1 .‘-\\ ;--'MGU .‘f.‘_‘ ./{
r \ e/
. \  36.00 % s - 72.00
s N A=/ "
NSAEAN 7
N\ ™ \/é" N /
‘.\ '_.- b » r'.,” : " \ - Q.
N / ™ N /‘fﬁg/h\ \\ Foal Y \..’g =
N\ . 37.02 \ (TN ' R
b . N \ i ',a'r\_ :’\/ "
N
R4
73.00 y
s
}}-
7
s

A\ 9.00
NN 11.03 ~ ” _

12.00 \ .‘\ o 10.01

\ 4" 10.00 \

AN T\
Date: July 3, 2025 1:4,514 )

0 0.03 0,06 0.12 mi
1 1 i 1 : i 1 1

County: GREENE e .
Owner: INGRAM RAQUEL 0 0.05 0.1 2 km
Address: TAYLOR LN State of Tennesses, Comptroller of the Treasury, Division of Property

Parcel ID: 087 061.00
Deeded Acreage: 0
Calculated Acreaane: 4

Assessments (DPA), Fsri Community Maps Contributors, State of North
Carclina DOT, © OpenSwestMap, Microsoft, Esr, TomTom, Garmin,
SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US
Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS

- e e




RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF $112,641 IN OPIOID
SETTLEMENT FUNDS RESTRICTED FOR THE USE AS SET FORTH BY THE OPIQID
ABATEMENT COUNCIL
FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2026

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body has previously allocated opioid settlement funding to
various organizations to carry out the directives set forth by the Tennessee Opioid Abatement
Council; and

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the FYE June 30, 2025, there were remaining funds to be expended for
the Greene County Drug Court and Law Enforcement LEADS program; and

WHEREAS, itis in the best interest of Greene County to approve the appropriation of those remaining funds
back to those organizations to fulfil the requirements set forth by the Tennessee Opioid
Abatement Council; and

THEREFORE, let the General Fund budget be amended to the following:

39000 Unassigned Fund Balance $ 112,641
Total Decrease to Unassigned Fund Balance $ 112,641
INCREASE APPROPRIATIONS
58500 CONTRIBUTIONS TO OTHER AGENCIES
316 850 Greene County Drug Court $ 55226
316 851 Law Enforcement 57,415
Total Increase to Appropriations $ 112641

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in regular

session this 215t day of July, 2025, a quorum being present and a majority voting in the affirmative,
that the budget be amended as above.

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
County Clerk Codnty Attorney

B.



A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDING TO THE
GREENE COUNTY PARTNERSHIP FROM FUND #189 FOR UP TO $100,000
TO PREVENT THE LOSS OF ARP FUNDING FOR FYE JUNE 30, 2026

WHEREAS, the GCP serves as a key partner in the promotion of tourism, industry, and
community engagement throughout Greene County and is uniquely positioned to deliver
value-added programming aligned with the County’s economic, recreational, and cultural
goals; and

WHEREAS, Greene County has identified potential additional available funding from Fund
#189 - Other Projects, comprised of hotel/motel tax proceeds designated for Arts,

Entertainment and Recreation activities in accordance with the original purpose of Fund
#189; and

WHEREAS, the County Commission desires to allocate these funds to the Greene County
Partnership to fund its program in order to prevent the loss of an additional one hundred
thousand ($100,000) allocated from the State of Tennessee in ARP due to the loss of
support from the Town of Greeneville; and

WHEREAS, Greene County will expend the full originally appropriated amount to the
Greene County Partnership from Fund #189, and said appropriation shall be supplemented
by the additional funding allocated from Fund #189 as described below:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN
SESSION THIS 21ST DAY OF JULY, 2025, THAT:

SECTION 1.

Greene County is hereby authorized to allocate supplemental funding in the amount up to
an additional one hundred thousand ($100,000) from Fund #189 - Other Projects to the
Greene County Partnership, subject to availability of hotel /motel tax revenues in that fund
and in accordance with the following:

- 50% of the supplemental funds shall be used for Recreation-focused initiatives;

- 50% shall be used for Arts and Entertainment-based initiatives;

- All activities shall serve the public interest and promote tourism, community engagement,
or local quality of life in Greene County.

SECTION 2.

The Greene County Partnership shall develop and implement programs or special projects
using these funds, including but not limited to: event promotion, public engagement
campaigns, community partnerships, and support for cultural or recreational tourism
attractions.

SECTION 3.

The Greene County Partnership shall submit quarterly reports to the County Mayor and
Budget and Finance Committee beginning no later than October 15, 2025, and continuing

C.



A-RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDING TO THE
GREENE COUNTY PARTNERSHIP FROM FUND #189 FOR UP TO $100,000
TO PREVENT THE LOSS OF ARP FUNDING FOR FYE JUNE 30, 2026

through the end of Fiscal Year 2026, detailing:

- The status and outcomes of projects funded through Fund #189;

- Any additional deliverables agreed upon between the County and GCP;

- Measurable statistics relevant to economic development and tourism trends, such as event
attendance, marketing reach, vendor participation, or public engagement;

- A financial summary showing expenditures and balance of funds allocated from Fund
#189.

SECTION 4.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
passage and shall be spread upon the minutes of the Board of County Commissioners, the
public welfare requiring it.

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor

DQQ"\JV \ )D'u—/o_\

County Clerk ) County Attorney



RESOLUTION TO ADOPT REGULATIONS RELATED TO THE SALE OF
| ALL PARCELS PURCHASED BY THE COUNTY AT A DELINQUENT TAX
SALE PURSUANT TO T.C.A. 67-5-2501

“ WHEREAS, pursuant to 7.C.A. 67-5-2501(a), the Clerk & Master for Greene |
' County is required to offer for sale all parcels of property for which delinquent taxes are !

owed:; and i
WHEREAS, further, pursuant to 7.C. 4. 67-5-2501(b), unless otherwise directed i
by the Greene County Legislative Body, the Clerk & Master is directed to place as a |
‘ minimum bid for each individual parcel offered for sale at the delinquent tax sale for the

amount of delinquent taxes, interests and other costs and fees owing on each parcel; and
‘ WHEREAS, the County Mayor is required to arrange for the disposition of

every tract of such land acquired by the county at delinquent tax sales by offering those
‘ properties for sale pursuant to 7.C. 4. 67-5-2507; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body may adopt regulations related

‘ to the sale of those parcels purchased by the county at the delinquent tax sales; and
WHEREAS, in order to assist in the solicitation of offers and the sale of these
parcels purchased by the county at the delinquent tax sales it would appear to be in the

Greene County Attorney best interest of the citizens of the county for the Greene County Legislative Body to
Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street . . o .
Greeneville, TN 37745 adopt certain regulations to assist in the disposal and transfer of those parcels of
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781 ,

property purchased by the county at the delinquent tax sale; and

WHEREAS, after much consideration it would appear that the regulations
attached as Exhibit “A” to this resolution should be adopted and approved by the

Greene County Legislative Body to expeditiously and advantageously facilitate the sale

| D



Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

and transfer of these parcels of property by the Counly Mayor and the Property Sales
Committee.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative
Body meeting in regular session on the 21% day of July, 2025, a quorum being present
and a majority voting in the affirmative, to approve the regulations attached as Exhibit
“A”, to assist and authorize the County Mayor and the Property Sales Committee to
offer for sale, transfer, and dispose of all parcels owned by the county that were
purchased at the delinquent property tax sales.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution take effect immediately

upon its passage.

Lyle Parton
Sponsor County Mayor

Preme Ol

County Clerk CountMttomey O




Greene County Attorney ‘

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N. Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781 |

EXHIBIT “A”

REGULATIONS CONCERNING THE SALE OF PARCELS PURCHASED BY

THE COUNTY AT THE DELINQUENT TAX SALES

In order to facilitate the sale of parcels purchased by Greene County at the delinquent
tax sales the following regulations shall apply to the solicitation of offers and for the
sale and transfer of all parcels purchased by the county at the delinquent tax sales for
Greene County.

1.

10.

The process and procedure for solicitation of offers to purchase and for the sale
and transfer of parcels of real estate purchased by Greene County shall be
designed to promote a fair, efficient, competitive and transparent method of
disposing of these parcels to obtain the highest bid for each parcel.

The County Mayor will solicit offers to purchase each parcel of property
purchased by the county at the delinquent tax sales by publishing a notice of
available properties available for purchase in a newspaper of general and local
circulation, the Greeneville Sun, one (1) time each week for two (2) consecutive
weeks.

That additionally, for each parcel of property that is offered for sale, signage
shall be placed upon that property designating that the parcel is being offered for
sale with the pertinent information of how each person may obtain information
on how to place an offer or bid on each parcel.

Properties shall be sold for cash or the equivalent and in full payment before
transfer of title.

. The County Mayor will prepare notices for publication and signage that provide

specific details of how potential purchasers may place an offer or bid on each
tract. Specific details identifying the process to place sealed bids for each parcel,
deadlines to submit sealed bids, and the way the sealed bids will be opened will
be adopted by the Property Sales Committee for Greene County to promote
fairness and transparency.

All offers to purchase must be made by sealed bid.

All sealed bids must be received at the office of the County Mayor by the
deadline set, published and noted by the County Mayor. No late bids will be
opened or considered.

The County Mayor will publish the date when all sealed bids will be opened. To
promote full transparency, the public and potential purchasers are invited to
attend the opening of the sealed bids.

The County Mayor shall use his/her best effort to facilitate the sale of each
parcel for an amount equal to or greater than the amount paid for the parcel by
the county plus all interest, costs, and fees to date.

The County Mayor is authorized and directed to sell and transfer individual
tracts to successful bidders provided the bid amount for each individual tract



Greene County Attorney

Roger A. Woolsey
204 N, Cutler Street
Greeneville, TN 37745
Phone: 423-798-1779
Fax: 423-798-1781

11.

12.

13.

fully reimburses the county for the amount the county has invested or expended
for that parcel.

However, individual tracts may be sold for amounts less than the full amount
owing on that tract if such sale appears to be in the best interest of the citizens of
the county and is approved by the County Mayor and the Property Sales
Committee.

The delinquent tax attorney at the direction of the County Mayor shall prepare
deeds to facilitate the transfer of the property as outlined above by the County
Mayor upon payment of the bid amount.

Proceeds derived from the conveyance of property purchased by the county at
delinquent tax sales pursuant to T.C.A. 67-5-2501 must be applied and disbursed
pursuant to 7.C.A4. 67-5-2507(a)(5)



A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY
ZONING RESOLUTION CONCERNING CAMPGROUNDS
AND RELATED USES WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED

TERRITORY OF GREENE COUNTY, TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body has adopted a zoning resolution
establishing zoning districts within the unincorporated territory of Greene County, Tennessee and
regulations for the use of property therein; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Legislative Body realizes that any zoning plan must be
changed from time to time to provide for the continued efficient and economic development of the
County; and

WHEREAS, the natural beauty of Greene County makes camping a desirable activity for
County residents and visitors to the area; and

WHEREAS, Greene County seeks to provide a variety of camping options to meet the
needs of residents and visitors; and

WHEREAS, campgrounds and related uses must be regulated to maximize the benefits
while protecting County residents and the natural environment of the County.

WHEREAS, pursuant to state law, the Assessor of Property is required to tax Recreational
Vehicles/Campers utilized as permanent or seasonal occupancy by the same family unit for more
than thirty days consistent with current state law: and

WHEREAS, a proposal has been submitted to and studied by the Greene County Regional
Planning Commission on the 13" of May, 2025, which recommended that the Greene County
Legislative Body amend the zoning resolution; and

WHEREAS, Public Notice requirements pursuant to T.C.A. §13-7-105(b)(1) have been
met;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Greene County Legislative Body
meeting on June 16, 2025, in regular session, a quorum being present and a majority voting in the

aftirmative, to amend of Greene County Zoning Resolution as follows:

Revise Article I Definitions of Terms Used in Ordinance to add the following definitions:

E.




Buffer zone: a landscaped area located around the perimeter of a property intended
to decrease the potential nuisance of certain high-impact land uses, such as solar
energy systems, campground, and RV parks. Other than landscaping, buffer zones
shall only contain the necessary signage (such as entry, directional, and business
signs), opaque fencing. The width of a buffer zone shall be as required elsewhere
in these regulations.

Campground: a plot of ground upon which two (2) or more designated campsites
are located, established or maintained for occupancy by camping units for use as
temporary living quarters for recreation, education or vacation purposes.

Campground. special event: temporary accommodation provided close to an
event or on the grounds, for use by attendees, but not the general traveling public.
Accommodation shall be provided for no more than a four (4) day period for any

special event, limited to a maximum of 4 events per calendar year, each event
separated by sixty (60) days.

Camping Dispersed: camping that does not take place in a traditional campground
or RV Resort where designated campsites are not used. The entirety or portion of
may be set aside for “dispersed camping area”, which campers may reach by hiking,
bicycling, horseback or vehicle.

251B. Recreational vehicle (also referred to as RV). A vehicle which is either self-

propelled or towed by a consumer-owned tow vehicle, and designed to provide
temporary or permanent living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use that
complies with all applicable federal vehicle regulations and does not require a
special-movement permit to legally use the highways; and includes motor homes,
travel trailer, fifth wheel travel trailers, and folding camping trailers.

RV Resort: a development that is exclusive by design and structure and contains
paved roads, concrete parking pads and more space between campsites than
required in standard RV parks. Electric, water and septic hookups are required for
each campsite. Amenities can include pools, spas, fitness centers, clubhouses,
convenience stores, eateries, tennis courts, bath house with showers, coin operated
machines, and like uses, intended for and only used by resort guests. Sites include
full hookup, 30, 50 or higher amp service (as required by state electrical
regulations), water and sewer connections.



Amend Article 514. Recreational Vehicles

Recreational Vehicles may be used for temporary or permanent living quarters as outlined
in the following requirements:

A. Recreational Vehicles may be located in designated campgrounds, recreational parks,
private property, or public land where permitted statute and/or by the Zoning Ordinance
or regulations. Recreational vehicles used for thirty (30) days or less shall be
designated as Short-Term Rental (Transient) and be subject to the county hotel/motel
tax. Recreational vehicles used for more than thirty (30) days shall be designated as
Permanent/Occupation or Seasonal and shall be subject to the county property tax. The
owner and/or operator of the property or business shall be required to designate whether
each designated location for a Recreational Vehicle is for Short-Term Rental
(Transient) or for Permanent/Seasonal Occupation and shall file that designation within
thirty (30) days of the passage of this Resolution with the Office of Building and Zoning
to assist with compliance and enforcement of these regulations.

B. On private property, campers/RVs used as permanent living quarters must meet the
same lot, setback, and road frontage requirements as manufactured homes per Section
601 in addition to the following items:

1. Recreational Vehicles must be secured to the site through the frame as required
with manufactured housing.

2. Recreational vehicles shall provide at least one (1) primary means of egress by
porch or deck as approved by the building official.

3. All non-factory external fuel tanks must be secured against tip over and at least
twenty (20) feet from the primary means of egress.

4. Sanitary systems must be approved by TDEC.

5. Electrical supply must meet the requirements of the proper utility authority.

6. The recreational vehicle must be at least two hundred (200) square feet of living
space with a kitchen, full bathroom and designated sleeping area.

7. Must meet all applicable zoning regulations for permanent living quarters.

C. On private property where a home intended to provide permanent living quarters is
being built, for a period does not exceed one (1) year, unless an extension is approved
by the building official.

D. Used as a temporary accessory dwelling on private property, for a period not to exceed
sixty (60) days, provided the unit shall not be permitted in the front yard of the principal
use unless a gravel or paved area is used for parking the vehicle.



E. The Recreational Vehicle must comply with all applicable federal vehicle regulations
and does not require a special movement permit to legally use the highways.

Add Article 517. Campgrounds

517. Campgrounds _and RV Resorts. The purpose of this section is to regulate

campgrounds in a manner that will encourage enjoyment of the natural environment,
wildlife, and historical elements in Greene County, while ensuring their protection, and
limiting negative impact on area residents and property owners.

A.

General Information.

. These regulations shall apply to new campgrounds/dispersed
camping areas. The expansion area of existing campgrounds shall meet the
new regulations.

2. The minimum tract size for a campground, RV facility, or property
containing a dispersed camping area, is five (5) acres.
3, Fires, if allowed, shall only be permitted in designated fire pits, fire
rings, and grills.
4. Subdivision of campground property. Property approved and
operated as a campground cannot be subdivided unless:
a. Each lot or tract fronts on and has its own access from a
public County Road.
b. Each lot/tract meets all applicable regulations, including

those in the Zoning Resolution and Subdivision Regulations.
5. Campsites are not permitted to be accessed directly from an external
county, state or federal maintained roads but must front on and be accessed
from an internal access road or access area.

6. Potable water provision and sanitary facilities.
a. Water provision.
1. When potable water is provided, it may be provided

using either public or private systems.

ii. Private systems will only be permitted when:
(a) Public water is not available.
(b) The system meets the requirements of the
Tennessee Department of Environment and
Conservation (TDEC), Division of Water Resources.

b. Sanitary (toilet) facilities.
i. Toilet facilities are required for all campgrounds,



1i. The Tennessee Department of Environment and
Conservation (Division of Water Resources) must approve
septic systems, and other forms of waste collection must
meet their requirements.

i. Signage. Campgrounds shall be permitted to display one (1) free-
standing sign on each road frontage where an access point is located,
provided the sign has a maximum size of twenty (20) square feet.

8. Site plans.

A

For all Designated campsites.

A site plan meeting the requirements of Section 512. B.
Standard Site Plan must be approved by the Planning
Commission.

i. The maximum size vehicle permitted on each
campsite shall be identified on the site plan.

Information on the buffer design, and the width, height,
opacity, growing period to maturity, time schedule for
installation, and responsibility for perpetual maintenance of
the buffer, shall be submitted as part of the site plan.

ii. The Planning Commission may approve an alternate
buffer, such as opaque fencing, as part of the site plan
approval process.

9. Lighting. Campground lighting, whether permanent or temporary,
shall not be directed off-site or into the sky. Lighting provided by campers
shall not be directed off-site.

10.  Registration.

a.

An accurate register shall be maintained by the campground

manager, and shall contain a record of all occupants, including the
information listed below, if applicable:

1. Name and address of each visitor staying at the
campground/dispersed camping area.

ii. The number of the campsite.

1. The date the visitor reserving the campsite entered
the property;

v, The license number of each recreational vehicle

and/or car, truck, etc. with state of issuance, make and type
of vehicle.



b. The register shall be available at all times for inspection by
the Enforcement Officer, emergency responders, public health
officials, and other officials whose duties necessitate acquisition of
the information contained in the register.

c. Potable water shall be provided via a frost-proof yard
hydrant or comparable method at a distance not to exceed four
hundred (400) feet from each campsite, with at least one (1) yard
hydrant per five (5) campsites.

Campgrounds and RV Resorts with designated campsites
1.

Maximum permitted number of campsites/acres.

a. Campgrounds with septic facilities are permitted up to fifteen
(15) campsites/acre.
b. Campgrounds on sanitary sewer are permitted up to twenty

(20) units/acre.

Daily Operation.

a. All campgrounds shall have a person/persons available 24
hours a day, seven days a week, to serve as a contact in the event of
an emergency.

b. A notice containing the name(s) and telephone number(s) of
any emergency contact shall be posted at the manager’s office. The
information shall also be included as part of any paperwork provided
to a visitor/camper, such as a map of the campground and/or
campsite leasing information. The owner/operator must designate
permanent or temporary camp site usage.

Permanent placement of an RV.

a. An RV may be permitted to be placed in a campground and

maintained in the same location for year-round use provided it is

anchored to the site, inspected by the enforcement officer, and the

RV provides:

i. At least one (1) exit from the vehicle in the event of fire; and

ii. Has a safe heating source installed in a safe manner; and

iii. Electrical service and distribution wiring is adequate and safe
for the intended use; and



iv. The RV provides a safe living environment and teets
requirements of the Flood Ordinance, Zoning Resolution and
any other relevant regulations; and

v. The RV complies with all applicable federal vehicle regulations
and does not require a special permit to legally use the highways.

b. The RV is connected to a septic or sanitary sewer system.

C. Decks are permitted, provided they are permanently

anchored to the ground, and not attached to the RV. Decks greater

than 200 square feet require a building permit.

d. Carports that provide protection to campers may be

permanently installed provided they meet the building and fire

codes. Carports greater than 200 square feet require a building
permit.

Permanent occupation.

a. The permanent occupation of an RV in an approved RV
campground, park, or resort, shall be permitted provided:
b. The RVs meet the safety requirements set forth in Section
517.B.3.
c. The waste disposal system for the listed type of RV facility
meets certain requirements:
1. RV facilities open year-round shall have their
systems approved by TDEC for year-round use; or
ii. Facilities open seasonally shall have their systems

approved by TDEC as being sufficient for the anticipated
increase in use of the system for the time the facility is open.

Short-Term Rental (Transient).

a. Unless permitted elsewhere, a camper/visitor may stay no
more than thirty (30) days in a campground, RV resort or dispersed
camping area.

b. The permitee is responsible for collecting and submitting the
hotel/motel tax to the county.

Setbacks for campgrounds and dispersed camping areas.

a. To exterior property lines.
i. All uses and structures in campgrounds shall be
located at least fifty (50) feet from exterior property lines.
ii. The Enforcement Officer can increase the width of
the exterior setback from fifty (50) feet to a maximum of one



thousand (1,000) feet if they determine the campground 1may
generate excessive dust, noise, drainage, or any other type of
nuisance which may negatively impact the surrounding area.
The permittee may appeal the decision to the Board of
Zoning Appeals if they disagree with this assessment.
iii. Uses that, in the opinion of the Enforcement Officer,
have the potential to create a moderate nuisance (clubhouses,
active recreation areas, etc.), shall be located at least one
hundred (100) feet from exterior property lines which abut
residential or agricultural uses and zones.

b. Within the campground.
1. The boundaries of campsites shall be located at least
twenty (20) feet from access roads and twenty (20) feet from
other camp sites or uses/structures.
ii. Buildings.

(a) All buildings shall be set back at least twenty
(20) feet from campsite boundaries.

(b) Buildings shall be located at least twenty (20)
feet from internal access roads, except that
entry kiosks are permitted to adjoin or locate
within access roads, provided allowances are
made for thru travel to the satisfaction of the
Planning Commission.

(©) The minimum separation between buildings
shall be at least twenty (20) feet.
iii. Active recreation arcas shall be located at least

twenty (20) feet from internal roads, and twenty (20) feet
from buildings and campsite boundaries.

Requirements for campsites.

a. Each campsite shall be graded and hardened with small
gravel or similar material to prevent erosion and to direct storm
drainage away from any provided vehicle/RV pad and tent site.

b. Each campsite shall be clearly defined by a permanent sign
or marker.
C. Campsites shall be large enough to provide exterior areas for

cooking, eating, and sleeping, without extending beyond the
boundary of the campsite, i.e., RV slide-outs and awnings shall not
extend over required setback/green areas.



d. The slope of the surface of the vehicle/RV pad shall not
exceed three percent (3%).

e. Campsites shall be large enough that vehicles (including
towables), when parked, shall not extend over or onto internal access
roads.

Landscaping and buffers for campgrounds.

a. A buffer zone at least fifty (50) feet wide shall be provided
around the perimeter of the tract.

b. The buffer zone shall preserve, where practicable in the
opinion of the Enforcement Officer, existing trees and other
vegetation capable of meeting the screening requirements.

c. A buffer strip shall be placed in the outer portion of the
buffer zone and shall contain, at a minimum, three rows of trees
and/or shrubs planted in a staggered pattern.

d. A landscape plan shall be submitted as part of the site plan,
process and shall contain information on the buffer design, and the
width, height, opacity, and growing period to maturity, time
schedule for installation, and responsibility for perpetual
maintenance of the buffer, shall be submitted to and approved by the
Planning Commission.

€. The campground shall be landscaped with grass, trees, and
other plantings where the area is not being used for campsites,
buildings, parking, paths, or designated recreation areas (that require
an alternate ground cover).

Trash/Refuse Disposal.

a. In areas with bear activity, the receptacles shall be bear- and
insect-proof and located away from campsites.

b. In areas where there is no known bear activity, receptacles
shall lock or otherwise be inaccessible to flies, rodents, and small
animals.

c. Campground operators are required to collect and dispose of
trash/refuse in a manner and frequency to ensure that hazards to
public health and nuisances to neighbors are not created.

d. Trash receptacles may either be placed on each site, or
central garbage collection points may be used
€. The roll-off or other container(s) used to store contents of

individual trash cans, shall be screened from view and emptied at
least one time per week.



10.

11.

12.

13:

10

Other required services.
a. Water hookup.
1. A frost-proof yard hydrant or comparable facility
shall be installed at a distance not to exceed three hundred
(300) feet from each campsite where a potable water hookup
is not provided.
ii. A minimum of one hydrant per five (5) campsites
shall be provided.
b. For campsites lacking black water hookups, toilet facilities
that discharge to an on-site septic system or sanitary sewer shall be
provided and located no more than three hundred (300) feet from
each campsite.

Zoning.

a. Campgrounds and RV parks are permitted as of right in the
B-2 General Business District, and B-3 Arterial Business districts.
b. Campgrounds are permitted in the A-1 zone upon submission
and approval by the Greene County Regional Planning Commission.

Road design within the campground.

a. All roads within a campground shall be privately constructed
and maintained.
b Intersections, both at the property line and within the

development, shall be less than 4 percent slope.

c. Gravel roads are permitted in campgrounds, provided the
first 30 feet of the access road located on private property shall be
paved, concreted, or chip sealed.

d. The ground underlying roads must be prepared and the road
installed using generally accepted practices for the size and type of
vehicle using the site.

Parking requirements.
a. Each parking space shall be prepared with a minimum of
four inches of gravel on a firm base (compacted, not swampy, etc.),
or paved to generally accepted practice.
b. Parking on the campsite.
1. Unless designated as a dispersed campsite that is not
accessed via a vehicle, each campsite is required to designate
an area that is set aside and graded, graveled/paved,



11

stabilized, or otherwise prepared to permit parking of two (2)
passenger vehicles.
ii. Parking spaces shall be designed for the largest size
vehicle the campsite is capable of accommodating.

C. Parking off the campsite.
i. The minimum number of parking spaces required
for employees shall be based on the number of workers
onsite per shift when the campground is at capacity.
ii. At least one (1) parking space shall be provided for
every five (5) campsites. The spaces shall not be on or
alongside campground roads.

C. Special event campgrounds. These campgrounds are associated with cultural
events, musical events, celebrations, festivals, fairs, carnivals, circuses, artisan
sales, communal camping, and like uses.

1, Special event campgrounds are permitted as of right in the B-2 General
Business District, and B-3 Arterial Business districts.
2. Special event campgrounds are permitted as a special exception in the A-1
General Agriculture District provided:
a.  The special event is located on or near the campground.
b. A special event permit shall be obtained prior to each event,
which shall be issued a maximum of four times per year for the same
property, with a minimum of sixty days between permits.
c.  The Board of Zoning Appeals shall set the maximum number
of days of parking/overnight camping, which shall, in no instance,
be more than four (4) days/event.
d. Impact of the proposed event on the area shall be limited.
e.  Parking for the campground and special event shall be provided
on-site, or on nearby property with approval of the property owner.
f.  Parking areas are not required to be paved with a hard surface
material, but if an area is graded for parking, it shall be covered with
vegetation or other material so that soil is not washed from the site.
g. The location and treatment of parking areas shall not change the
location or volume of the natural drainage system.
h.  Parking shall not be permitted along public roads, whether they
be county, state, or federal.
3. A site plan must be reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission,
as per the requirements of Section 512 of these regulations.



12

4. A site plan is not requircd when the property will be used for special day-
parking events only, though a special event permit must be obtained for
such use.

5. Hours of operation for the event shall be limited to 10:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.,
though the BZA may extend the hours of operation if it is found to be in the
public interest and would not have an adverse effect on the neighboring
properties/occupants.

6. Services

a. At least one frost-free yard hydrant shall be provided
for every five campsites, located so that no campsite is more than
three hundred (300) feet from a hydrant.
b. At a minimum, portable toilets shall be provided. The
type and number of toilets shall be as per guidelines established by
the Portable Sanitation Association International (PSAI).
c. Trash/garbage collection.
(1) Receptacles shall be located on main walking routes
and near restrooms to encourage use by visitors,
(i)  Receptacles shall also be provided elsewhere in the
campground and parking areas, in a number and location that
is sufficient for the number and location of camping units.
(iii))  In areas with bear activity, the receptacles shall be
bear- and insect-proof and located away from campsites.
(iv)  In areas where there is no known bear activity,
receptacles shall lock or otherwise be inaccessible to flies,
rodents, and small animals.

7. Campsites shall be at least ten (10) feet apart, to prevent the spread of fires,
otter some privacy, and enable mobility of camping units.
8. Emergency access lanes shall be maintained within the campground.

D. RV Resort.

l.
P

The maximum density permitted is seven (7) units per acre.
Campsite dimensions are as follows:

a. Each campsite shall consist of a parking pad and a camping pad
and contain at least twenty-five hundred (2500) sq. ft.

b. The parking pad shall measure at least 20 ft. by 50 ft.

c. Adjacent to each camping pad, an area measuring at least 20 ft.
by 20 ft. shall be provided for outdoor living.

There shall be a minimum distance of twenty-five (25) feet between
Campsite boundaries.



13

This change shall take effect after its passage; the welfare of the County requires it.

Sponsor Greene County Regional
Planning Commission

Date
Date of Public Hearing by the
Greene County Commission:

Date
Decision by the Greene
County Commission:

Approved or Denied
Signed in Open Meeting:
County Mayor

Attest:

Approved as to Form:

ounty Court Clerk

& ounay Attomey





